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CORPORATE PROFILE

Advancer Global Limited (前进集团有限公司前进集团有限公司) and 
together with its subsidiaries and associated companies 
(“Advancer Global” or the “Group”), is a leading 
integrated solutions provider that specialises in providing 
workforce solutions and facilities management services.  

The Group has two core business segments: 

(1) Employment Services division, and 
(2) Facilities Management Services division which 

encompasses the Building Management 
Services and Security Services.

The Group operates its employment services business 
under Advancer Global Manpower. Through its 
established brands, “Nation”, Advancer Global Manpower 
provides an integrated and comprehensive employment 
solutions and services including sourcing, recruitment, 
training and deployment of foreign domestic workers 
to households. The Group has also expanded to include 
its associate company, Fullcast International Co., Ltd., 
which provides staffing and recruitment services to 
corporations in Japan.

Our broad-based facilities management services under 
Advancer Global Facility include cleaning and stewarding, 
property and facility management, property valuation, 
pest control and fumigation, waste management and 
recycling, landscaping and aquascaping. These business 

units allow Advancer Global Facility to provide a holistic 
and integrated facilities management solution to serve 
the diverse needs of our customers across residential 
and commercial properties, school, hospitals and hotels.

Another strategic business segment is the provision 
of security services under Advancer Global Security. 
Through its established subsidiaries, the Group provides 
manpower and smart security solutions integrated 
with technology, security advisory and consultancy and 
security related training to residential, commercial and 
industrial customers.

The Group’s competitive edge lies in its high-touch, 
dedication and successful integration of its diverse 
offerings of workforce solutions and staffing services 
across its three main business categories, allowing the 
Group to deliver a customised holistic suite of solutions 
and services for our customers.

Advancer Global is listed on the Catalist Board  of the  
SGX-ST on 11 July 2016 under stock code 43Q.

More information can be found on our website at 
https://advancer.sg.

Advancer Global’s Vision is to be the preferred Partner and pre-eminent 
Solutions Provider, known for our technology innovations, professional 
and excellent services and best practices.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Year 2020 was marked by disruptions and uncertainties 
due to the far-reaching effects of the COVID-19 pandemic 
which impacted countries and economies worldwide. 
In Singapore, all facets of society, individuals and 
businesses alike, were not spared but we are pleased to 
report that the Group had managed to navigate through 
the unknowns and continued evolving to be future-ready.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

The pandemic which started in early 2020 became a 
litmus test for the Group’s resilience and sustainability. 
Like many businesses in Singapore, the Group was 
similarly affected by the Circuit Breaker and the ensuing 
safe management measures to control the spread of the 
virus. The focus was then to pivot our business to adapt to 
the new environment, and continue our journey in digital 
transformation.  

The Group’s Employment Services business segment was 
directly affected when travel restrictions and movement 
controls in the source countries and Singapore resulted 
in a temporary disruption to the deployment of new 
Foreign Domestic Workers (“FDWs”) to households. We 
consolidated our resources and assets by reducing our 
physical presence to two branches and refocused on the 
core of our business being customer experience. We 
rolled out contactless service which enables potential 
employers to login to our online FDWs bio-database to 
select and hire a new FDWs. When travel restrictions 
were eased in Phase Two, sourcing and hiring of FDWs 
from the source countries have gradually resumed.  

Most of our subsidiaries under Building Management 
and Security business segments are considered 
essential services and allowed to continue their 
operations. However, some of their service contracts 
were disrupted when shopping malls, hotels, 
restaurants and corporate premises were closed during 
the lockdown period.  The Group however, displayed 
resilience and was nimble enough to quickly pivot and 
look for new revenue streams amidst the adversity.   

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

Our security subsidiary secured new contracts in 
servicing community care facilities for patients with mild 
symptom recovering from COVID-19 while our cleaning 
and pest control subsidiaries gained traction and were 
appointed by the National Environment Agency (“NEA”) 
as disinfection vendors. Cleaning contracts picked up 
when Phase Two returned, as shopping malls, F&B 
outlets and corporate premises gradually re-opened and 
required more frequent cleaning. 

With movement restrictions and safety management 
measures in place, the acceleration of online shopping 
became a new normal. It was timely that the Group 
launched an e-commerce platform, Our Express, for our 
subsidiaries to sell their services directly to households.

OPERATING RESULTS

Despite the trying times, the Group recorded a net 
profit of S$5.0 million, a substantial increase compared 
to S$0.4 million recorded for FY2019. This was on the 
back of a decrease in revenue across the Group’s core 
business segments, from S$70.9 million in FY2019 to 
S$56.4 million in FY2020 while costs of sales decreased 
by 19.2% from S$53.9 million in FY2019 to S$43.5 
million in FY2020. Correspondingly, the Group’s gross 
profit decreased by S$4.2 million or 24.5%, from S$17.1 
million in FY2019 to S$12.9 million in FY2020. The 
Group benefited from an increase in the amount from 
government grants and credit schemes such as Wage 
Credit Scheme, Jobs Support Scheme, levy rebate and 
rental rebate in response to the COVID-19 pandemic in 
FY2020, which resulted in an increase in other operating 
income to S$10.0 million in FY2020 from S$1.4 million in 
FY2019.

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 0.79 
Singapore cent per share for FY2020, together with the 
interim dividend of 0.59 Singapore cent per share paid 
in September 2020, the full year dividend will stand at 
1.38 Singapore cent per share.  This would constitute 
approximately 76.6% of Group’s net profit after tax 
attributable to owners of the Company in FY2020.  

Despite the trying times, the Group recorded a
net profit of S$5.0 million, a substantial increase
compared to S$0.4 million recorded for FY2019

“
”
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

TOWARDS A SUSTAINABLE AND RESILIENT FUTURE 

It is said that times of adversity often give way to 
unexpected resilience. Looking back, we realised the key 
lies in embracing the opportunities to pivot our business 
for positive change and to constantly innovate new 
methods and ways of doing business. Another takeaway 
is the need for flexibility and readiness to adapt to a 
turbulent business environment any time.

During the Circuit Breaker period, the Group’s senior 
management and work groups from the subsidiaries 
held frequent virtual meetings to reflect and map out 
strategies to adapt to the changing situation on the 
ground. We empowered and remote-enabled our staff 
with productivity tools and cloud applications to work 
effectively from home. We leveraged on technology 
to deliver exceptional customer experiences and use 
a variety of digital touchpoints and outcome-based 
strategies to increase customer engagement and loyalty.

So far, it was the cohesiveness and perseverance that 
helped the Group stay resilient and we will continue to 
forge ahead with same determination to make headway 
in the years ahead.

The management recognises that our collective 
core competencies give us an advantage to seize 
the opportunities offered by the growing Integrated 
Facilities Management (“IFM”) market, driven by 
the growing outsourcing culture and the acceptance 
of higher-value IFM propositions among MNCs and 
large corporations1. Therein lies the challenge of  
re-organising and developing Group’s Facility 
Management business segment into a market-oriented 
brand and a preferred partner to customers in estate 
management. Together with our subsidiaries, we offer 
a good mix of our capabilities tailored to the needs of 
our customers who would otherwise have to work with 
different single service providers across multiple service 
areas.

Technology and digital transformation which the Group 
had foresight to start its adoption two years ago will 
be playing an even bigger role to drive growth in the 
Facilities Management business segment. With the 
gradual opening of the economy and easing of control 
measures, business has resumed steadily although 
travel disruptions on the hospitality and F&B industries 
will continue to impact our subsidiaries’ businesses in 
cleaning and stewarding services.

As the ‘new normal’ emerges, the Group will be adopting 
a more robust and resilient business model and create 
a functional environment that fosters innovation, 
operational readiness and effective performance within 
the subsidiaries and work groups.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

We would like to extend our heartfelt appreciation to the 
management and staff for their relentless hard work 
and determination to navigate the Group through the 
difficult period and our business partners, customers 
and shareholders for their trust and confidence in us.   
We would also like to acknowledge the valuable 
contribution from our Independent Non-Executive 
Directors Mr. Loy Soo Chew and Mr. Vincent Leow  (who 
will be stepping down at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting) throughout the years and finally our Board 
members for their invaluable advice and counsel.

DANNY LIM
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

GARY CHIN
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

1 Frost & Sullivan. Growth Opportunities in the Asia-Pacific Facilities Management Market, Forecast to 2023 [online].  
Retrieved from https://www.marketresearch.com/Frost-Sullivan-v383/Growth-Opportunities-Asia-Pacific-Facilities-12793922/
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Advancer Global’s business model and value proposition lies in high-touch and dedicated workforce solutions and 
services, infused with technology enhancement to provide its wide base of customers with well-trained manpower, 
greater convenience, faster responses and higher mobility. Sensors development, machine learning and data analysis 
enable the Group to turn enormous amounts of unstructured data captured through daily operations into decisions that 
permit operational efficiencies and effectiveness in the most economical manner. 

The Group operates through two main business divisions: (i) Employment Services, and (ii) Facilities Management Services 
which encompasses the Building Management Services and Security Services. 

BUSINESS SEGMENTS
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BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Operating under an established brand name “Nation”, 
the Group maintained its position as one of the leading 
employment agencies for the sourcing, recruitment, 
training and deployment of FDWs to Singapore 
households. The Group’s dedication to servicing 
its customers’ needs has enabled it to build strong 
relationships with its customers, which is evidenced by 
numerous referrals from its existing customers and tens 
of thousands of placements since Nation’s inception over 
20 years ago. The recruitment processing system allows 
informed decision making in selection and keeping track 
of matters in every stage of recruitment process. 

Since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic during early 
2020, the Employment Services segment has been 
impacted by worldwide travel restrictions which have 
significantly reduced the number of FDWs entering 
Singapore. During the Circuit Breaker period which ran 
from 7 April 2020 till Phase Two of re-opening on 18 
June 2020, the Group’s Employment Services operations 
were suspended. Even with the gradual re-opening of the 
economy, deployment of FDWs were disrupted due to the 
lack of new FDWs entering Singapore and the Group’s 
business was limited largely to transfers of FDWs 
between employers and households. In this regard, the 
Group ceased the operations of four service centers in 
Hougang, Toa Payoh, Woodlands and Yishun around end-
June 2020 and consolidated all its resources and assets 
to two service centers in Jurong and Tampines.  

With reduced physical presence, the Group has 
recalibrated its operating procedures to improve 
customer experience, upgraded its service center 
facilities at Jurong, started developing an e-commerce 
platform which would eventually provide contactless 
services to potential employers to hire and select FDWs 
digitally. The Group commenced the home visit service 
since safe management measures have been eased. 
Service staff paid visits to potential employers to facilitate 
and ensure a smooth hiring process in the comfort of 
their homes while at the same time adhering to social 
distancing measures.

While Singapore gradually re-opens economic activities 
and lifts travel restrictions, the Group believes that  
pent-up demand should put Nation in good position 
to recover its business to pre-COVID days albeit the 
increased expenses in relation to accommodation for 
FDWs to serve the mandatory Stay-Home-Notice (“SHN”) 
and swab tests. 

EMPLOYMENT SERVICES

Lic. No.: 09C5332/12C5507 Lic. No.: 09C4745

(Photo was taken on January 2020)
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BUILDING MANAGEMENT SERVICES

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

It has been the Group’s long-term strategy to increase its 
market presence in the Integrated Facilities Management 
(“IFM”) industry by leveraging on the products and 
services of the subsidiaries and associated companies.  

The comprehensive suite of products and services offered 
by the Group’s subsidiaries and associated companies 
include: 

(i) cleaning and stewarding services (namely Master Clean 
Facility Services Pte. Ltd. (“Master Clean”), World Clean 
Facility Services Pte. Ltd.  (“World Clean”), First Stewards 
Private Limited and Advancer Smart Technology Pte. Ltd. 
(“AST”); 

(ii)  property consultancy, property and facilities 
management services (Newman & Goh Property 
Consultants Pte Ltd, Newman & Associates Pte. 
Ltd., SRE Global Pte. Ltd. (f.k.a Suntec Real Estate 
Consultants Pte. Ltd.) (“SRE”) and Our Express Pte. 
Ltd. (f.k.a. Envirocare Landscape (S) Pte. Ltd.));

(iii) specialised pest control services such as fumigation, 
elimination of pest infestations and disinfection 
services  (Premier Eco-Care Pte. Ltd. (“Premier”) 
and Prestige Enviro-Care Pte. Ltd.); 

(iv) gardening, landscaping and aquascaping (Country 
Cousins Pte. Ltd. (“Country Cousins”)); and 

(v) waste management and recycling solutions  (TEE 
Environmental Pte. Ltd., TEE Recycling Pte. Ltd. and 
Envotek Engineering Pte. Ltd.). 

During the Circuit Breaker period, many businesses in 
Singapore were affected by the lockdown and movement 
restrictions but most of the subsidiaries under the Building 
Management Services, such as cleaning, stewarding, 
property and facilities management, landscaping and 
disinfection services were generally considered essential 
services by the Singapore government and were 
exempted from the suspension of workplace activities.

Despite this, our cleaning subsidiaries faced with 
challenges when hotel, restaurants, shopping malls, 
and other premises were closed and contracts were 
suspended. They also faced a manpower crunch when 
Malaysian workers were displaced by the Malaysia 
Movement Control Order across the Johor border. 
Cleaning contracts picked up when Phase Two returned, 
and shopping malls were opened and called for frequent 
cleaning.  

Similarly, pest control services were disrupted during 
the Circuit Breaker but Premier, Master Clean and World 
Clean have been quick to pivot by obtaining approval from 
NEA as approved disinfection vendors, which provided 
new revenue streams from disinfections at corporate 
and commercial premises such as offices and shopping 
centres. 

In 2020, the Group’s pest control arm launched a digital 
system to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency 
of its operations management. The digital system, 
which comprises an electronic platform and a mobile 
application, allows the Group to perform e-scheduling 
of workers at jobsites, take digital attendance of workers 
as well as provides live monitoring of job sites and 
status of operation on an on-demand basis. The digital 
system also generates an e-service report which is 
automatically forwarded to customers upon completion 
of a project and allows for timely communication and 
update to customers. Real-time information tracking and 
statistics captured through this digital system helps the 
Group to best plan its resources and deploy pest control 
specialists on a need-to basis thereby improving the 
Group’s productivity and efficiency.

For the past two years, the Group has been pursuing a 
path of technology innovation with the SMART Toilet 
System which saw its commercialisation in 2019 when 
the system was deployed at Changi Airport Terminal 3.  
Developed by AST, the product range has since expanded 
from solely sensors for toilet to track usage patterns, 
to various facilities including IoT sensors that provides, 
amongst others, smoke and scent detection, monitoring 
system for toilet paper and water usage as well as digital 
deployment of cleaners based on sensor learning. The 
certified pre-approved solution of smart technology for 
facilities management by Infocomm Media Development 
Authority (“IMDA”) is an acknowledgement of the 
robustness of the system. Its clientele now includes 
shopping malls and one of the busiest transport hubs in 
Singapore - Bukit Panjang Integrated Transport Hub. 

The Group also launched its inaugural Advancer Managing 
Agent Partnership (“AMAP”) programme offering job 
opportunities to displaced professionals, managers and 
executives (“PMEs”) and allow these PMEs undergo 
intensive training and job attachments across various 
divisions in the Group for better understanding and be 
ready in providing a full spectrum of IFM solutions. 

PEST CONTROLWASTE 
MANAGEMENT

LANDSCAPINGCLEANING

PROPERTY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT
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The Group’s Security Services segment offers integrated 
comprehensive security solutions built around advanced 
technology, security advisory and consultancy, security 
related training, and well-trained security officers 
through subsidiaries namely KH Security Agency Pte. Ltd., 
KH Security Pte. Ltd. (f.k.a. KC Security & Investigation 
Services Pte. Ltd.), Ashtree International Pte. Ltd. 
(“Ashtree”), and AGS Integration Pte. Ltd.(“AGSI”).  

In 2020, the Security Service segment was one of the 
affected sectors during the COVID-19 pandemic. The 
Group saw a decrease in income from airport, schools, 
shipyard, commercial properties during the Circuit 
Breaker period. However, security services remained 
essential for residential properties and some corporate 
properties. Security technologies provided by our 
subsidiary, AGSI became an integral part in serving our 
clients with prompt security investigations, remote off-
site surveillance and access control. During the Circuit 
Breaker period and the subsequent three-phased re-
opening of the economy while people were advised to 
stay at home to minimize the risks of virus transmission, 
customers were still able to receive reports through the 
remote analytics video monitoring and data analytics 
related to visitor management and challenging safety 
and security matters such as illegal parking, illegal 
dumping, breach of safety measures, trespassing, 
misuse of facilities and missing objects etc. Any gathering 
in common areas can be monitored remotely, without 
compromising on the safety of our security officers. Until 

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

SECURITY SERVICES

the virus is under control, our customers will continue to 
benefit from the smart technology implemented and the 
resultant cost savings.  

In line with the Group’s pivoting strategy in the face 
of adversity, Ashtree successfully secured a security 
protection contract at a COVID-19 community care facility 
in Jurong East which is able to house up to 2,900 patients 
with mild symptoms1. Ashtree mobilised resources and 
trained hundreds of security personnel in operation and 
safety protocols within a short timeframe of 10 days after 
being awarded the contract. About hundred security 
personnel were deployed round the clock to ensure the 
security protection plan was executed to the highest 
standards, which included actions to address incidents 
of trespass, medical and service delivery, medical 
evacuations, patient in-process and out-process. With 
their proven capabilities, Ashtree was subsequently 
selected to provide similar services at the community 
care facility in Tuas South, from end November 2020.

A new revenue stream of traffic control management has 
also been pursued by Ashtree in 2020, which includes 
supplying of traffic marshals, among others, with the 
objective to ensure events proceed smoothly, and work 
sites as well as key facilities are secured.

 1 可容纳2900病患 裕廊商场Big Box变身社区护理设施 | 早报 (https://www.zaobao.com.sg/znews/singapore/story20200817-1077410)
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a corporate citizen, Advancer Global firmly believes 
in contributing meaningfully to the communities and 
environment where we operate. Besides corporate 
giving, our outreach initiatives also support social causes 
and champion advocacy projects. We encourage our 
employees to make a positive impact on the community 
by volunteering and partaking in community service 
events.

ADVOCACY PROJECTS

The Group has been an ardent advocate of fair treatment 
and empowerment of FDWs to lead meaningful lives 
during their service employment in Singapore. We 
referred FDWs in dire distress to the Centre for Domestic 
Employees (CDE) and Foreign Domestic Worker 
Association for Social Support and Training (FAST) and 
worked together with them to resolve their issues.  We 
also supported activities aimed at helping domestic 
employees achieve better social integration and training 
programmes to upskill FDWs so that they can value-add 
to the workplace. Our executive director, Mr. Desmond 
Chin, sits on the Board of Trustee of the Domestic 
Employees Welfare Fund (DEWF) set up by National Trade 
Union Congress (NTUC) to improve the lives of domestic 
employees in Singapore.  

INDUSTRY OUTREACH

In response to the call by the Singapore Business 
Federation (SBF) Foundation for the business community 
to support its various programmes, the Group’s 
subsidiary, World Clean stepped up and has been involved 
in the provision of employment opportunities since 2018.  
Their contribution was recognised when they were 
awarded the Certificate of Appreciation from New Hope 
Community Services in July 2020 under the auspices of 
SBF Foundation.  

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Group’s subsidiary, Premier participated in the 
‘Project We Care: Enrich Lab’ organised by the People’s 
Association to enrich needy residents through skills 
acquisition and/or advancement through job placement. 
A skills-sharing session on pest management was held 
at the Bishan Community Club on 11 November 2020 
where the residents were taught how to spot ant and 
termite infestations, setting up traps for rodents, etc.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 

REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS GROSS PROFIT BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Notes:

EMPLOYMENT SERVICES BUILDING MANAGEMENT SERVICES SECURITY SERVICES

FY2019 FY2019

FY2020 FY2020

-20.5%
YoY Growth
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5,592

30,681

20,118

5,585

2,584

7,180

3,109

37,473 8,431

20,318 3,045

YoY Growth
-24.5%

Income Statement (S$’000) 2020 2019
Revenue 56,391 70,944
Gross profit 12,873 17,061
Profit before tax 4,951 562
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 4,525 471

Balance Sheet (S$’000)
Shareholders’ equity 46,920 43,865
Total assets 60,118 56,279
Total liabilities 12,400 12,114
Net asset value 46,920 43,865
Net tangible asset value 40,814 37,677
Cash and bank balances 27,617 25,651
Net loans and borrowing Net Cash Net Cash

Per Share (Singapore Cents)
Basic earnings (1) 1.80 0.19
Net asset value (2) 18.67 17.45
Net tangible asset value (2) 16.24 14.99
Dividends (2) (3) 1.38 -

Financial Ratios
Return on equity 9.64% 1.07%
Return on assets 7.78% 0.86%
Dividend payout ratio (3) 76.6% -

(1) For illustrative purposes, basic earnings per share was computed based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 
251,348,691 and 251,346,538 for FY2019 and FY2020, respectively.

(2) For illustration purposes, net asset value per share, net tangible asset per share and dividends per share were computed  based 
on the number of Company’s ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares) of 251,348,961 and 251,246,691 at the end of FY2019  and 
FY2020.

(3) An interim dividend of S$0.0059 per share was paid on 30 September 2020. A final one-tier tax-exempt dividend of S$0.0079 per share 
for the second half of FY2020 is recommended, subject to approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be 
held on 29 April 2021.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

REVENUE
The Group’s revenue decreased by S$14.6 million or 20.5% from S$70.9 million in FY2019 to S$56.4 million in FY2020 due 
to the decrease in revenue across all of the Group’s business segments. The reasons for the decrease of revenue are as 
follows: 

•  Employment Services 
 Revenue from the Employment Services segment decreased by S$7.6 million from S$13.2 million recognised 

in FY2019 to S$5.6 million recognised in FY2020. For FY2020, there was a decrease in the number of FDWs that 
the Group had placed out to households in Singapore as compared to FY2019 due to worldwide travel controls 
which restricted FDWs entering into Singapore. All branches of the Group were closed during the Circuit Breaker 
period. In FY2020, the Employment Sevices segment division also reduced its physical presence by consolidating 
all its resources and assets at the 2 branches in Jurong and Tampines and ceased operations in 4 branches in 
Hougang, Toa Payoh, Woodlands and Yishun. 

•  Building Management Services 
 Revenue from the Building Management Services segment decreased by S$6.8 million from S$37.5 million 

recognised in FY2019 to S$30.7 million recognised in FY2020. A decrease in service income received from 
stewarding and cleaning, pest control and fumigation, rendered to customers across residential, commercial 
properties, hotels and restaurants, mainly due to outbreak of COVID-19.

•  Security Services 
Revenue from the Security Services segment decreased marginally by S$0.2 million from S$20.3 million 
recognised in FY2019 to S$20.1 million recognised in FY2020. A decrease in service income from security projects 
at Changi airport, shipyard, schools and commercial properties, mainly due to outbreak of COVID-19. 

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has service contracts from its Building Management and Security Services segments 
(with varying contract periods) amounting to approximately S$3.3 million monthly (31 December 2019: S$3.7 million 
monthly).
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

COST OF SALES
The Group’s cost of sales decreased by S$10.4 million or 
19.2%, from S$53.9 million in FY2019 to S$43.5 million in 
FY2020, which was in line with the decrease in revenue. 
The decrease was mainly due to:

•  Employment Services Segment
A decrease in (a) recruitment costs paid 
(or payable) to overseas recruiters, and (b) 
insurance, training, transportation and medical 
expenses incurred in relation to FDWs. The 
decrease in cost of sales was offset by increase 
in FDWs’ accommodation expenses for the 
provision of housing to FDWs who are required 
to serve SHN; 

•  Building Management Services Segment
 A decrease in (a) direct labour costs including a 

waiver of foreign worker levies and two rounds 
of levy rebate for each S pass and work permit 
holder as part of the support schemes from 
Singapore government to ease labour costs of 
employers during Circuit Breaker (“Levy Waiver 
and Rebate”), and (b) subcontractors’ fee for 
Group’s stewarding and cleaning projects. The 
decrease was offset by increase in (a) short-term 
lease expenses incurred for accommodation 
of Malaysian employees who have no living 
arrangements in Singapore (“Additional Lease 
Expenses”), (b) depreciation of right-of-use 
assets in relation to the lease of hostel, (c) 
purchases of chemical material and electronic 
products for the Group’s cleaning projects, (d) 
purchases of face masks for employees in the 
Building Management Services segment and 
(e) direct labour costs of property management 
services for work done during the Circuit Breaker.

•  Security Services Segment 
Due to the Levy Waiver and Rebate and decrease 
in number of security officers employed. The 
decrease was offset by increase in (a) Additional 
Lease Expenses, (b) subcontractors’ fee, and (c) 
depreciation of right-of-use assets in relation to 
the lease of hostel.

GROSS PROFIT
As a result of the foregoing, gross profit decreased by 
S$4.2 million or 24.5%, from S$17.1 million in FY2019 to 
S$12.9 million in FY2020, which was mainly due to the 
decrease in gross profit from Employment Services and 
Building Management Services segments. 

The Group’s gross profit margin remained relatively 
constant at 24.0% in FY2019 and 22.8% in FY2020. 

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 
Other operating income increased by S$8.6 million or 
592.7% from S$1.4 million in FY2019 to S$10.0 million in 
FY2020, mainly due to the increase in the amount from 
government grant and credit scheme such as (a) Wage 
Credit Scheme as a result of under-accrual in FY2019 
and revisions made to the scheme in FY2020, (b) Jobs 
Support Scheme announced in FY2020, (c) rental rebate 
from landlords as a result of remission of property tax 
from Singapore government in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic, (d) dividend income from investment in quoted 
shares, and (e) gain on bargain purchase from acquisition 
of SRE in FY2020. The increase was offset by decrease 
in interest income from fixed deposits placed with the 
banks.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Administrative expenses remained constant at S$17.7 
million in FY2020 and FY2019, mainly due to the following:
  
(a) increased loss allowance for trade receivables 

arising from the trade receivables from the 
Group’s property management, pest control and 
cleaning businesses which are more than 365 
days past due; 

(b) increased depreciation of right-of-use assets 
due to renewal of certain leases and new leases;

(c) increased depreciation of Group’s property, 
plant and equipment arising from the increase 
in capital expenditure at the end of FY2019 of 
which started to depreciate in FY2020;

(d) accrual of bonus for key management personnel 
in FY2020;

(e) increased IT related expenses for system 
support and maintenance;

(f) increased directors’ fee arising from 
appointment of new director; and

(g) increased key management personnel 
remuneration including a special bonus paid 
to a subsidiary director (who is an independent 
and unrelated third party to the Directors and 
controlling shareholders of the Company) in 
FY2020 for operating of the Group’s Security 
Service segment.
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Conversely, the increase in administrative expenses was 
offset by the decrease in:

(a) advertisement expenses;
(b) amortisation of intangible assets arising from 

the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years 
having been fully amortised;

(c) rental of office due to the closure of 4 branches 
in Employment Services segment;

(d) bank charges incurred for Group’s Employment 
Service segment;

(e) legal and professional fees; and 
(f) other general expenses such as entertainment, 

transportation, travelling and office maintenance. 

FINANCE EXPENSES
Finance expenses remained constant at S$0.1 million for 
FY2020 and FY2019.

SHARE OF LOSSES FROM EQUITY-ACCOUNTED FOR 
ASSOCIATES 
The Group recorded share of loss of S$98,000 from 
investment in Fullcast International Co., Ltd. for FY2020. 

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Income tax credit was mainly due to non-taxable other 
income from Jobs Support Scheme and reversal of 
deferred tax liabilities recognised in prior years. The 
Group’s profit after tax increased by S$4.6 million or 
1,041.2% from S$0.4 million in FY2019 to S$5.0 million 
in FY2020, mainly due to the explanation set out above.

REVIEW OF GROUP’S FINANCIAL POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS
The Group’s current assets increased by S$4.1 million 
or 9.3% from S$44.2 million as at 31 December 2019 to 
S$48.3 million as at 31 December 2020, mainly due to the 
increase of (a) inventories of S$0.1 million comprising 
of mainly purchases of face masks, (b) trade and other 
receivables of S$1.0 million, (c) other investments of 
S$1.0 million arising from the Group’s investment in 
quoted equity securities listed on SGX-ST during the 
financial year and (d) cash and cash equivalents of S$2.0 
million (more details of the cash movement is explained 
in the review of the Group’s Statement of Cash Flows). 
This was offset by the decrease of trade receivables of 
S$0.5 million. 

The increase in trade and other receivables by 
approximately S$1.0 million or 5.8% was a result of an 
increase in the following:

(a) receivables of S$1.2 million in relation to the 
government grant and credit schemes such 
as Wage Credit Scheme, Special Employment 
Credit and Jobs Support Scheme;

(b) prepayment and deposits in relation to 
advertisement, insurance, rental of motor 
vehicles and properties, adoption of technological 
systems, and rental of autonomous patrol robot 
for certain of the Group’s subsidiaries; 

(c) advances to staffs and suppliers (who are 
independent and unrelated third parties to the 
Directors and controlling shareholders of the 
Company);

(d) deferred recruitment costs for the Employment 
Services segment of which revenue will be 
invoiced during the next financial year.

The increase in trade and other receivables was offset 
by the increase in loss allowances for trade receivables 
arising from expected credit losses from trade 
receivables from the Group’s property management, 
pest control, cleaning and security businesses which 
are more than 365 days past due, and decreases in (i) 
trade receivables which were in line with the decrease 
in revenue, (ii) accrued receivables in relation to revenue 
recognised for completion of installation contracts for 
security systems and provision of security and cleaning 
which have not been invoiced to the customers as at the 
end of the financial year.
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
The Group’s non-current assets decreased by S$0.2 
million or 2.2% from S$12.0 million as at 31 December 
2019 to S$11.8 million as at 31 December 2020, mainly 
due to decrease in (a) right-of-use assets and property, 
plant and equipment arising from depreciation charges 
and offset by capital expenditures during the period, (b) 
investments in associates arising from share of their 
losses in FY2020, and (c) goodwill on consolidation arising 
from impairment loss in relation to goodwill recorded for 
the acquisition of Envirocare. The decrease was offset 
by the increase of (a) investment in Beijing Singapore 
Technology & Facility Management Co., Ltd. (“BSTFM”)
through recognition of fair value gain in FY2020, (b) AST’s 
investment in Zhe Jiang Zhi Wu Hui Yun Technology Co., 
Ltd. (“ZWHY”) and (c) intangible assets of operation 
systems implemented by Group’s property management 
and pest control businesses.

CURRENT LIABILITIES
The Group’s current liabilities increased by S$1.0 million 
or 10.0% from S$9.6 million as at 31 December 2019 to 
S$10.6 million as at 31 December 2020, mainly due to 
increase in lease liabilities, contract liabilities arising 
from advance payments received for the Employment 
Services Business segment and due to new rulings by 
the Indonesian authorities for employers to borne the 
placement fee for Indonesian FDWs from 1 January 
2021, accrued operating expense, and other payables 
relating to (i) amount due to directors, (ii) credit notes 
to customers for property management business and 
Security Services segment, (iii) deferred income of S$0.3 
million in relation to government grant received and is 
recognised as other income over the periods to match 
with their related costs, (iv) AST’s Investment of S$0.6 
million in ZWHY and (v) provision for unutilised leave. The 
increase was offset by the decrease in (i) trade payables, 
(ii) other payables related to employees’ remuneration, 
(iii) income tax payables, and (iv) dividend payables to 
non-controlling interest in FY2019.

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
The Group’s non-current liabilities decreased by S$0.7 
million or 27.1% from S$2.5 million as at 31 December 
2019 to S$1.8 million as at 31 December 2020, mainly due 
to the decrease of lease liabilities, deferred tax liabilities 
and bank borrowings.

NET ASSET VALUE
Net asset value of the Group increased by S$3.6 million 
or 8.0% from S$44.2 million as at 31 December 2019 to 
S$47.8 million as at 31 December 2020 due to the reasons 
set out above.

REVIEW OF GROUP’S CASH FLOWS

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
The Group’s net cash generated from operating activities 
amounted to S$6.9 million for FY2020, which resulted 
from operating cash flows before movements in working 
capital of S$7.4 million and the increase in (a) inventories 
of S$0.1 million, (b) trade and other receivables of 
S$0.7 million, (c) contract liabilities from contracts 
with customers of S$147,000, and (d) trade and other 
payables of S$79,000 as well as payment of income tax 
of S$167,000. 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to 
S$1.3 million for FY2020, which was mainly due to (a) 
purchase of property, plant and equipment of S$0.5 
million, (b) investment in quoted shares of S$1.0 million, 
and (c) development of operation systems for property 
management and pest control business (i.e. intangible 
assets) of S$0.3 million. The investing cash outflow was 
offset by (a) cash and cash equivalent of S$0.5 million 
acquired in relation to the acquisition of SRE, (b) dividend 
received of S$12,000 from investment in quoted shares, 
and (b) investment of S$10,000 in Country Cousins from 
non-controlling interests on 16 July 2020. 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to S$3.6 
million for FY2020, mainly due to payment for lease 
liabilities of S$1.8 million, payment of dividend of S$1.7 
million, interest payment of S$39,000 in relation to bank 
borrowings and lease liabilities, repayment of bank 
borrowings of S$29,000, purchase of treasury shares of 
S$9,000 and repayment to directors of S$47,000.

Therefore, the overall cash and cash equivalents 
increased by S$2.0 million from S$25.6 million as at 31 
December 2019 to S$27.6 million as at 31 December 
2020. 
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DANNY LIM
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Mr. Danny Lim was appointed to the Board on 
31 December 2019 and is the Independent Non-
Executive Chairman of the Company. 

Mr. Danny Lim joined Rajah & Tann Singapore LLP 
in 1998 and is currently a Partner in the Capital 
Markets and Mergers & Acquisitions Practice 
Group, advising on all aspects of corporate legal 
advisory and transactional work, both locally and 
regionally. His experience covers acquisitions, 
investments, takeovers, initial public offerings, 
corporate restructurings and reorganisations, 
amongst others, and his clients include multi-
national companies, small and medium enterprises, 
private equity and institutional investors, Singapore 
and foreign listed companies as well as financial 
institutions and others. 

Mr. Danny Lim graduated from the National 
University of Singapore with a Bachelor of Law 
(Honours) and a Master of Science (Applied Finance) 
from the Nanyang Technological University. He has 
been admitted as an advocate and solicitor of the 
Supreme Court of Singapore since 1999.  

Mr. Danny Lim is currently an independent director 
of Kimly Limited, Choo Chiang Holdings Ltd, and 
Stamford Land Corporation Ltd. He is a member 
of the Law Society of Singapore and the Singapore 
Academy of Law.

GARY CHIN
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

Mr. Gary Chin was appointed to the Board on 2 
February 2016 and is the Executive Director and CEO 
of the Company.

Mr. Gary Chin has more than 20 years of experience 
in the Employment Services and Facilities 
Management Business and is responsible for the 
overall administration, operation and development 
of the Group, as well as the key liaison with relevant 
authorities. 

He has held various executive positions in the 
employment services business sector since he began 
his career in 1996. He was tasked with spearheading 
business growth through acquisitions and mergers to 
achieve strategic, business and financial objectives. 
In 2009, he was appointed as the Director of Nation 
Employment Pte Ltd. Throughout the years, he 
successfully negotiated and formed strategic 
alliances with business partners, both locally and 
overseas. He was also able to synergise various 
business units to improve business efficiency, create 
complementary businesses, and achieve greater 
competitive advantage. 

At Advancer Global Limited, he leads the acceleration 
of its business strategy for organic and vertical growth 
in the Facilities Management Services Division. He 
strongly believes in value creation through innovation 
and technology and via the integrated facility 
management model to bring the Group to the next 
phase of continued sustainable growth. 

Mr. Gary Chin graduated with a Bachelor of Electrical 
& Electronic Engineering (Hons) from the University of 
Aberdeen, Scotland in 1995.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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DESMOND CHIN 
Executive Director

Mr. Desmond Chin was appointed to the Board on 9 
June 2016 as our Executive Chairman and was re-
designated to Executive Director on 31 December 
2019.

Mr. Desmond Chin has over 20 years of experience 
in the employment services business and has 
been instrumental in spearheading the growth 
and development of our Group since 1992. He is 
responsible for ensuring the effective operation of 
our Group and the Board of Directors. From 1990 
to 1992, Mr. Desmond Chin was employed at UMW 
Engineering Ltd, where he was involved in the sale 
of auto retriever systems for store management, 
and Suntze Communication Engineering Pte Ltd, 
where he was involved in the sale of computer and 
peripheral devices and IT network solutions. In 1992, 
Mr. Desmond Chin co-founded Nation Employment 
Agency, to offer employment services in Singapore. In 
1994, Nation Employment Agency partnership ceased 
and Nation Employment Pte Ltd was incorporated to 
offer the same services. 

He currently services as a member of the Board of 
Trustees of the Domestic Employees Welfare Fund, an 
initiative of the National Trade Union Congress.

Mr. Desmond Chin graduated with a Bachelor of 
Engineering from the National University of Singapore 
in 1990 and subsequently obtained a Master of 
Business Administration from the National University 
of Singapore in 2012.

ONG ENG TIANG 
Executive Director

Mr. Ong Eng Tiang was appointed to the Board on 9 
June 2016 as our Executive Director.

Mr. Ong Eng Tiang is the Executive Director and Head 
of Building Management and Security Services of the 
Group. He has an aggregate of more than 15 years of 
experience in the cleaning and stewarding services 
and the security services business segments. He 
is responsible for heading the Group’s Facilities 
Management Services division as well as overseeing 
the daily operations which include marketing 
strategies, manpower deployment and cash flow 
management. 

Mr. Ong Eng Tiang began his career at Intrapac 
Investments Ltd. as a marketing executive in 1994, 
where he serviced major customer accounts and 
coordinated with the paper mills in Singapore and 
Malaysia for order requirements and shipment 
arrangements. From 1995 to 1998, he joined Muda 
Packaging Industries (Qing Yuan) Ltd. as a marketing 
manager, where he was responsible for the Marketing 
Department. In 1998, Mr. Ong Eng Tiang joined United 
Paper Industries Pte. Ltd. as an assistant sales 
manager and rose through the ranks to become its 
deputy marketing manager in 1999. In 2001, he joined 
First Stewards Private Limited (“First Stewards”), a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and became 
a shareholder of First Stewards in 2004. 

Mr. Ong Eng Tiang graduated with a Bachelor of 
Business Administration from the University of 
Wisconsin-Madison in the United States of America 
in 1993.
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FRANCIS YAU THIAM HWA 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Francis Yau was appointed to the Board on 9 
June 2016 as our Independent Non-Executive 
Director.

Mr. Francis Yau serves as the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee and a member of the 
Remuneration Committee. His experience spans 
across a wide spectrum of expertise ranging from 
corporate banking, corporate finance, financial 
and risk management, strategic planning to 
the management of the corporate affairs in a 
public listed company and has good knowledge 
of corporate governance, investor relations and 
sustainability. He is currently the Chief Financial 
Officer of Megachem Ltd. since 2007, a public 
listed company in Singapore, and serves as an 
independent director in Abundance International 
Limited, a Singapore listed company. 

Mr. Francis Yau holds a bachelor’s degree in 
Business Administration from the National 
University of Singapore, majoring in finance and 
is also a member of the Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

VINCENT LEOW 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vincent Leow was appointed to the Board on 9 June 
2016 and is currently an Independent Non- Executive 
Director of the Company. Mr. Leow is a partner at 
Allen & Gledhill LLP, where he handles dispute 
resolution, investigations, and financial regulatory and 
compliance work. Mr. Leow presently serves on the 
faculty of the Singapore Institute of Directors, and as a 
supervising lawyer at the Legal Clerkship Programme 
of the Singapore University of Social Sciences School 
of Law.  He was previously an adjunct faculty member 
at the faculty of law of the National University of 
Singapore from 2004 to 2013 and at the School of Law 
of the Singapore Management University from 2011 to 
2017. Mr. Leow graduated from the National University 
of Singapore with a Bachelor of Laws (Honours), and 
from Harvard Law School with a Master of Laws.
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TAKEHITO HIRANO  
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

Mr. Takehito Hirano was appointed to the Board 
on 16 October 2018. He has years of experience in 
the manpower outsourcing business. In 1990, he 
established Fullcast Holdings Co., Ltd. (formerly 
known as Resort World Co., Ltd.) as one of the 
founders, where he was responsible for its overall 
administration, operation and management as a 
Representative Director. Fullcast Holdings Co., Ltd. 
has been engaging in the manpower outsourcing 
business for various industries and occupations and 
is a forerunner of short-term manpower outsourcing 
companies in Japan, meeting the human resource 
needs of a wide variety of companies ranging from 
leading Japanese corporations to small and medium-
sized firms. The company is listed on the First Section 
of the Tokyo Stock Exchange. 

He is currently the Director and Chairman of Fullcast 
Holdings Co., Ltd. and is also a Representative 
Director and Chairman of F-PLAIN Corporation 
(formerly known as Fullcast Marketing Co., Ltd. and a 
subsidiary of Fullcast Holdings Co., Ltd.).

Mr. Hirano graduated with a Bachelor of Economics 
from the Kanagawa University in Japan in 1984
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FRANCIS CHIN
Head of Employment Services

Mr. Francis Chin is our Head of Employment Services. He is responsible for the 
operations and management of the Employment Services Business to achieve desirable 
objectives, quality services and profitability.

Mr. Francis Chin began his career in 1978 as a technician and a tooling planner with 
Dupont Electronic Pte Ltd, where he was responsible for assisting engineers in 
performing operations, modification tooling and costing planning. He then co-founded 
Nation Employment Pte Ltd in 1994 and has since been responsible for the daily 
operations and management of the Group’s Employment Services Business.

Mr. Francis Chin was conferred the Pingat Bakti Masyarakat (Public Service Medal) for 
commendable community service in Singapore in 2005.

MICHELLE LI YING
Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Michelle Li Ying is our Chief Financial Officer since 2015 and is responsible for the 
Group’s internal controls, financial and accounting functions. She has over 20 years of 
experience in accounting and financial management in listed and non-listed companies. 
Ms. Michelle Li worked at Pacific International Lines (Pte) Ltd from 1999 to 2005, where 
she was over time promoted to an assistant accounting executive and led a finance team 
to review revenue reporting and collections from overseas agents and subsidiaries. In 
2005, she joined BDO LLP as an audit assistant, before leaving the firm as an audit senior 
in 2008. From 2008 to 2010, Ms. Michelle Li was a finance manager at JES International 
Holdings Limited, where she was responsible for statutory reporting and financial 
results announcements, and she also assisted the chief financial officer in financial, 
accounting, internal controls, taxation matters and investor relations of the group. From 
2010 to 2011, she was a finance manager at Ferrell International Limited, and led the 
finance department of the company. From 2011 to 2013, she was the financial controller 
of SGX-ST Mainboard listed, AVIC International Maritime Holdings Limited, where she 
oversaw its internal controls, finance and accounting functions, including statutory 
and SGX-ST reporting, banking, tax and audit related matters and investor relations. 
She joined Goyes Group Holdings Company Ltd as chief financial officer in 2014, where 
she was responsible for overseeing group’s internal controls, financial functions and 
accounting matters. 

Ms. Michelle Li is a member of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants 
(previously known as Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore), a Fellow 
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom, and a Certified 
Internal Auditor of the Institute of Internal Auditors.

Ms. Michelle Li graduated from Oxford Brookes University with a Bachelor of Science 
in Applied Accounting in 2008 and subsequently obtained a Master of Business 
Administration from the University of Manchester in 2015.

KEY MANAGEMENT
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GROUP STRUCTURE

FIRST STEWARDS
PRIVATE LIMITED

100%

(EA LIC. NO. 12C5507) 

NATION HUMAN RESOURCES 
PTE. LTD. 

100%

KH SECURITY
AGENCY PTE. LTD.

100%

NEWMAN & GOH PROPERTY 
CONSULTANTS PTE LTD 

76%

(EA LIC NO. 12C6266)

APAC CITIES EMPLOYMENT  
PTE. LTD.

100%

ASHTREE INTERNATIONAL 
 PTE. LTD. 

100%

PREMIER ECO-CARE 
PTE. LTD.

100%

PRESTIGE 
 ENVIRO-CARE PTE. LTD. 

100%

TEE RECYCLING 
 PTE. LTD. 

100%
ENVOTEK ENGINEERING 

PTE. LTD. 

100%

FULLCAST  
INTERNATIONAL CO., 

LTD. 

49%

TEE ENVIRONMENTAL 
PTE. LTD. 

100%

ADVANCER NATION PTE. LTD.

100%

SRE GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNTEC REAL ESTATE 

CONSULTANTS PTE. LTD.)

82%

WORLD CLEAN FACILITY 
 SERVICES PTE. LTD.

100%

(EA LIC. NO. 09C4745)
ENREACH EMPLOYMENT 

 PTE. LTD.

100%

KH SECURITY
PTE. LTD. 

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS KC SECURITY &  
INVESTIGATION SERVICES PTE. LTD.)

100%

NEWMAN & ASSOCIATES  
PTE. LTD. 

76%

(EA LIC. NO. 09C5332)

NATION EMPLOYMENT PTE LTD  

100%

AGS INTEGRATION
PTE. LTD. 

70%

GREEN MANAGEMENT 
PTE. LTD.

100%

OUR EXPRESS PTE. LTD.  
(FORMERLYKNOWN AS ENVIROCARE  

LANDSCAPE (S) PTE. LTD.)

100%

MASTER CLEAN FACILITY  
SERVICES PTE. LTD.

100%

ADVANCER SMART  
TECHNOLOGY PTE. LTD. 

100%

COUNTRY COUSINS 
 PTE. LTD.

76%

G3 ENVIRONMENTAL  
PRIVATE LIMITED

20.01%

Building Management Services
Advancer Global Facility Pte. Ltd. 100%

Employment Services
Advancer Global Manpower Pte. Ltd. 100%

Security Services
Advancer Global  Security Pte. Ltd. 100%

As at 31 December 2020

19 ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITEDANNUAL REPORT 2020



CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Danny Lim Teck Chai
Independent Non-Executive Chairman 

Mr. Gary Chin Mei Yang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. Desmond Chin Mui Hiong
Executive Director

Mr. Ong Eng Tiang
Executive Director

Mr. Francis Yau Thiam Hwa
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vincent Leow
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Takehito Hirano
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Francis Yau Thiam Hwa (Chairman)
Mr. Vincent Leow
Mr. Danny Lim Teck Chai 

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Danny Lim Teck Chai (Chairman)
Mr. Francis Yau Thiam Hwa
Mr. Vincent Leow

NOMINATING COMMITTEE
Mr. Vincent Leow (Chairman)
Mr. Gary Chin Mei Yang
Mr. Danny Lim Teck Chai

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Sin Chee Mei, ACIS and PMP
Ms. Koo Wei Jia, ACIS

REGISTERED OFFICE
135 Jurong Gateway Road #05-317
Singapore 600135
Website: https://advancer.sg
Tel: (65) 6665 3855
Fax: (65) 6665 0969

SHARE REGISTRAR
In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as 
RHT Corporate Advisory Pte. Ltd. )
30 Cecil Street
#19-08 Prudential Tower
Singapore 049712

AUDITORS
Mazars LLP
135 Cecil Street
#10-01
Singapore 069536

Partner-in-charge:
Mr. Lai Keng Wei
(Chartered Accountant of Singapore)
(appointed with effect from the financial year ended 31
December 2020)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
DBS Bank Ltd.
12 Marina Boulevard
Marina Bay Financial Centre, Tower 3
Singapore 018982

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
65 Chulia Street
#09-00 OCBC Centre
Singapore 049513

United Overseas Bank Limited
80 Raffles Place
UOB Plaza
Singapore 048624

Standard Chartered Bank (Singapore) Limited
8 Marina Boulevard #27-01
Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 1
Singapore 018981

CONTINUING SPONSOR 
SAC Capital Private Limited
1 Robinson Road
#21-00 AIA Tower
Singapore 048542
Tel: (65) 6232 3210
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Advancer Global Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to 
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance by adhering to the principles and provisions set out in the 
Code of Corporate Governance 2018 (the “Code”), where appropriate. These principles and provisions refl ect the 
Board’s commitment in having effective corporate practices to safeguard against, amongst others, fraud and dubious 
fi nancial transactions, with the aim of protecting shareholders’ interests as well as maximizing long-term success of 
the Company and Group. 

The Listing Manual Section B: Rules of Catalist (the “Catalist Rules”) of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading  
Limited (the “SGX-ST”) requires all listed companies to describe in their annual reports, their corporate governance 
practices, with specifi c reference to the principles of the Code. 

This report sets out the corporate governance practices that were adopted by the Group during the fi nancial year 
ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020”) (“Report”), with specifi c reference to the principles and provisions of the Code 
as well as the accompanying practice guidance, which forms part of the continuing obligations of the Catalist Rules 
of the SGX-ST. 

The Board confi rms that, for FY2020, the Group has generally adhered to the principles and provisions outlined 
in the Code. Where there were deviations from the provisions of the Code, appropriate explanations are provided. 
The Board will continue to assess the needs of the Company and improve on its corporate governance practices as 
appropriate. 

1. THE BOARD’S CONDUCT OF AFFAIRS 

Principle 1: The company is headed by an effective Board which is collectively responsible and works with 
Management for the long-term success of the company. 

 
As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises the following members, all of whom have the appropriate core 
competencies and diversity of experience needed to enable them to effectively contribute to the Group. 

Lim Teck Chai, Danny (“Danny Lim”) Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman 
Chin Mei Yang (“Gary Chin”) Chief Executive Offi cer and Executive Director 
Chin Mui Hiong (“Desmond Chin”) Executive Director 
Ong Eng Tiang Executive Director
Yau Thiam Hwa (“Francis Yau”) Independent Non-Executive Director 
Vincent Leow Independent Non-Executive Director 
Takehito Hirano Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

The principal functions of the Board, in addition to carrying out its statutory responsibilities, inter alia, are as follows: 

(i) overseeing and approving strategic formulation of the Group’s overall long-term objectives and directions, 
taking into consideration sustainability issues, e.g. environmental and social factors; 

(ii) overseeing and reviewing the management of the Group’s business affairs and fi nancial controls, performance 
and resource allocation, including ensuring that the required fi nancial and human resources are available for 
the Group to meet its objectives;

(iii) monitoring the performance of Group’s management (“Management”) towards achieving organisational goals;

(iv) establishing a framework of prudent and effective controls to assess and manage risks and safeguard 
shareholders’ interests and the Group’s assets; 

(v) reviewing and evaluating the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal controls, risk management and 
fi nancial reporting systems;

(vi) identifying the key stakeholder groups and recognise that their perceptions affect the Company’s reputation; 

21 ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITEDANNUAL REPORT 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(vii) considering sustainability issues including environmental and social factors in the formulation of the Group’s 
strategies;

(viii) setting the Company’s values and standards (including ethical standards and code of conduct), and ensures 
proper accountability within the Group such that obligations to shareholders and other stakeholders are 
understood and met; 

(ix) ensuring compliance with the Code, the Companies Act (Chapter 50) of Singapore, the Company’s 
Constitution, the Catalist Rules, accounting standards and other relevant statutes and regulations; and

(x) assuming the responsibilities for corporate governance. 

All Directors exercise due diligence and independent judgment, and are obliged to act in good faith and in the best 
interest of the Company, so as to enhance the long term value of the Group to its shareholders.  Each Director is 
required to promptly disclose any confl icts or potential confl icts of interest, whether direct or indirect, in relation to 
any transaction or matter discussed and contemplated by the Group. Where a potential confl ict of interest arises, the 
Director concerned will recuse himself from discussions and decisions involving the issue of confl ict and refrains 
from exercising any infl uence over other members of the Board in respect of the issue as well as abstain from 
participating in any Board decision.

All Directors are expected to objectively discharge their duties and responsibilities at all times as fi duciaries in the 
interests of the Company. In line with the Board’s enduring commitment to high level of corporate governance, all 
Directors update the Board on a timely basis, through the Company Secretary, of interest in new companies that 
were not previously disclosed to the Board.  Additionally, at the start of each fi nancial year, all Directors submit a 
letter to the Company Secretary of all their interest in other companies to be read and acknowledged by the Board. 

Newly appointed directors will receive a formal letter explaining their duties and responsibilities, and are provided 
an orientation (including site visits to the Group’s principal place of operations) and be briefed on, inter alia, the 
business operations including industry-specifi c information relating to the Group’s business, governance practices 
and regulatory requirements of the Group.  

The Directors are encouraged to constantly keep themselves abreast of the latest developments in regulatory, legal 
and accounting frameworks that are of relevance to the Group and attend appropriate courses and seminars that will 
be arranged and funded by the Company. The external auditors, during their presentation of the audit plan annually, 
will update the Directors on the new or revised fi nancial reporting standards. Regular updates on developments 
and amendments to the Companies Act, corporate governance and listing rules are circulated by the Sponsor, the 
Company Secretary and the Company’s legal counsel to the Board.  

The Directors also attend other appropriate courses and seminars to keep abreast with changes in regulations, 
fi nancial reporting standards, continuing listing obligations as well as industry-related matters during FY2020. In 
accordance with Rule 406(3)(a) of the Catalist Rules, the Nominating Committee (“NC”) will ensure that any new 
director appointed by the Board, who has no prior experience as a director of an issuer listed on the SGX-ST, must 
undergo mandatory training in the roles and responsibilities of a director as prescribed by the SGX-ST. During 
FY2020, no new directors were appointed to the Board.

In FY2020, briefi ngs and updates provided to the Directors include but not limited to the following:-

 Updates on the developments in fi nancial reporting and governance standards, where relevant, by the external 
auditors of the Company to the Audit Committee and the Board;

 Updates on business and strategies developments pertaining to the Group’s business by the Management to 
the Non-Executive Directors; and

 Updates on news releases issued by the SGX-ST and the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority on 
matters including but not limited to enhancing rules on auditors, valuers and valuation reports and guidance 
on the conduct of general meetings amid evolving COVID-19 pandemic which are relevant to the Directors by 
the Company Secretary and the Sponsor.
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As part of the Company’s continuing education for the Directors, the Management circulates to the Board, articles, 
reports and press release relevant to the Group’s business to keep Directors updated on current industry trends and 
issues. 

Matters specifi cally reserved for the Board’s approval include corporate restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, 
major investments and divestments, material acquisitions and disposals of assets, major corporate policies on key 
areas of operations, major corporate actions such as share issuance, share buy-backs, the release of the Group’s 
half-year and full-year results, declaration of dividends and interested person transactions. 

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has, without abdicating its responsibility, established 
three Board Committees, comprising an Audit Committee (the “AC”), a Nominating Committee (“NC”) and a 
Remuneration Committee (the “RC”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). These Board Committees function 
within clearly defi ned written terms of reference and operating procedures. The Board accepts that while these 
Board Committees have the authority to examine particular issues and report back to the Board with their decisions 
and recommendations, the ultimate responsibility on all matters lie with the Board. The terms of reference and 
further details of the activities of the Board committees in FY2020 are set out under the respective sections in this 
Report.

The Board meets regularly on a half-yearly basis and ad-hoc Board Committee or Board meetings are convened 
when they are deemed necessary. The number of Board Committee and Board meetings held in FY2020 and each 
individual directors’ attendance at such meetings is set out below: 

Director

No. of Meetings held and attended in FY2020

Board
Audit

Committee
Nominating 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended

Danny Lim 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2

Desmond Chin 2 2 – – – – – –

Gary Chin 2 2 – – 1 1 – –

Ong Eng Tiang 2 2 – – – – – –

Francis Yau 2 2 2 2 – – 2 2

Vincent Leow 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2

Takehito Hirano 0 0 – – – – – –

Loy Soo Chew(a) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Note:
 
(a) Mr. Loy Soo Chew retired as a Director of the Company at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) on 17 June 2020.  Accordingly, he 

has relinquished his position as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of Audit Committee and Nominating 
Committee. 

The Company recognises that the fl ow of relevant, complete and accurate information on a timely basis is critical 
for the Board to discharge its duties effectively. The Management provides the Board with half-yearly accounts, 
as well as relevant background or explanatory information relating to the matters that would be discussed at the 
Board meetings, prior to the scheduled meetings. All Directors are also furnished with updates on the fi nancial 
position and any material developments of the Group as and when necessary. Directors may request to visit the 
Group’s operating facilities and meet with the Management to gain a better understanding of the Group’s business 
operations and corporate governance practices. 

The Board may have informal discussions on matters requiring urgent attention, which would then be formally 
confirmed and approved by circulating written resolutions. Ad-hoc meetings are also convened whenever 
circumstances require. The Constitution of the Company provides for Board and Board Committee meetings to 
be held by way of telephonic and videoconferencing. The Board committees may also make decisions by way of 
circulating written resolution.  

23 ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITEDANNUAL REPORT 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All Directors are required to declare their board appointments. When a Director has multiple board representations, 
the NC will consider whether the director is able to adequately carry out his/her duties as a director of the Company, 
taking into consideration the Director’s number of listed company board representations and other principal 
commitments. Directors with multiple board representations must ensure that suffi cient time and attention are 
given to the affairs of the Group.

The Board (whether individually or as a whole) has separate and independent access to the Management, internal 
auditors, external auditors and the Company Secretary at all times, and may seek independent professional advice, 
if necessary, at the expense of the Company. Key management and the Company’s auditors are invited to attend 
Board and Board Committees meetings to update and provide professional advice on specifi c issues if required. 
The Company Secretary attends all Board meetings and ensures that all Board procedures are followed. The 
Company Secretary also ensures that the Company complies with the requirements of the Companies Act, Chapter 
50 of Singapore, and the Catalist Rules. The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary are subject to the 
approval of the Board as a whole. 

2. BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE 

Principle 2:  The Board has an appropriate level of independence and diversity of thought and background in its 
composition to enable it to make decisions in the best interests of the company. 

The Board consists of seven Directors, comprising of three Executive Directors, three Independent Directors and one 
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director. The Independent Directors are Mr. Danny Lim, Mr. Francis Yau and Mr. 
Vincent Leow.  Mr. Takehito Hirano is a Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director of the Company.   

As set out under the Code, an independent director is one who is independent in conduct, character and judgement, 
and has no relationship with the company, its related corporations, its substantial shareholders or its offi cers that 
could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the director’s independent business 
judgement in the best interests of the company. The NC assess and review annually the independence of a Director 
bearing in mind the salient factors as set out under the Code and Practice Guidance, as well as all other relevant 
circumstances and facts.  

Each Independent Director is required to complete a checklist annually to confi rm his independence based on the 
provisions as set out in the Catalist Rules, the Code and the Practice Guidance. The NC adopts the Code’s defi nition 
of what constitute an “independent” director in its review. The NC takes into account, among other things, whether a 
Director has a business relationship with the Company, its related companies and its substantial shareholders, and 
if so, whether such relationships could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the 
Director’s independent business judgment with a view to the best interests of the Company. 

For FY2020, the Board considers Mr. Danny Lim, Mr. Francis Yau and Mr. Vincent Leow to be independent on the 
following basis:

(a) The Independent Directors: (i) are not employed by the Company or any of its related corporations for the 
current or any of the past three fi nancial years; and (ii) do not have an immediate family  member who is 
employed or  has been  employed  by the  Company  or  any of  its related  corporations for  the  past three  
fi nancial years, and whose remuneration on is determined by the RC.  

(b) None of the Independent Directors has served on the Board beyond nine years from the date of fi rst 
appointment. 

(c) None of the Independent Directors and their immediate family member had in the current or immediate 
past fi nancial year (i) provided or received material services or payments aggregated over any fi nancial 
year in excess of S$50,000 for services other than compensation for board service; or (ii) was a substantial 
shareholder, partner, executive offi cer or a director of any organization which provided or received payments 
aggregated over any fi nancial year in excess of S$200,000 for services rendered.
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(d) None of the Independent Directors are directly associated with a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Independence of each Independent Non-Executive Director is assessed at least annually by the NC. Particular 
scrutiny is applied in assessing the continued independence of Directors having served beyond nine years from the 
date of his fi rst appointment, with attention to ensuring their allegiance remains clearly aligned with shareholders’ 
interest.  As of the date of this Report, there is no Independent Director who has served for an aggregate period of 
nine or more years from the date of his fi rst appointment.

The Company has complied with the relevant provisions as the Board is made up of at least one-third of independent 
directors and a majority of non-executive directors. Hence, the Board and NC are satisfi ed that the Board is able to 
exercise independent and objective judgment on corporate affairs and provide the Management with a diverse and 
objective perspective on issues.

The composition of the Board and Board Committees is reviewed on an annual basis by the NC to ensure that the 
Board and the Board Committees has the appropriate mix of expertise and experience, and collectively possesses 
the necessary core competencies for effective functioning and informed decision-making. The Company does 
not have a Board diversity policy but it remains committed to ensuring diversity on the Board by consisting of 
professionals from various disciplines. The NC considers the benefi ts of Board diversity from a number of aspects, 
including but not limited to gender, age, educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. 
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, 
having due regard for the benefi ts of diversity on the Board.

The Board as a whole comprises members with core competencies in accounting and fi nance, legal, business 
and management experience, industry knowledge, strategic planning and customer-based experience and 
knowledge. This enables the Management to benefi t from the external and expert perspectives of the Directors who 
constructively challenge key issues and strategies put forth by Management.  

The NC, with concurrence of the Board, is of the opinion that the Board’s present size and composition to be 
appropriate for the Company’s needs and nature of the operations, with an objective of achieving a good mix and 
diversity of skills, experiences, gender and knowledge of the business to ensure that the Board will be able to make 
satisfactory and independent decisions regarding the affairs of the Company.   

The Independent Non-Executive Directors participate actively in Board meetings. With their professional expertise 
and competency in their respective fi elds in the legal, fi nance, accounting and commercial sectors, collectively, the 
Independent Non-Executive Directors provide constructive advice and guidance for effective discharge by the Board 
of its principal functions over the Group’s strategies, businesses and other affairs.  

The Non-Executive Directors and/or Independent Directors meet among themselves without the presence of the 
Management at least once a year. The Independent Directors communicate regularly to discuss matters related to 
the Group, including, inter alia, the performance of the Management.  During FY2020, the Independent Directors, 
communicated among themselves without the presence of Management as and when the need arose. Where 
appropriate, the Independent Directors provide feedback to the Board after such meetings.

The profi les of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to 17 of this Annual Report.
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3. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Principle 3:  There is a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the Board and Management, 
and no one individual has unfettered powers of decision-making. 

Mr. Danny Lim holds the position as Chairman of the Board while Mr. Gary Chin is the Chief Executive Offi cer 
(“CEO”) of the Company. Both positions are held by separate individuals to ensure an appropriate balance of power, 
increased accountability and greater capacity for independent decision-making. 

The overall role of the Chairman is to lead and ensure the effectiveness of the Board which includes:-

(a) promoting a culture of openness and debate at the Board;

(b) facilitating the effective contribution of all directors; 

(c) encouraging constructive relations between the Board and Management as well as between the executive 
directors and independent directors; 

(d) promoting high standards of corporate governance with full support of the Board, the Management and the 
Company Secretaries; and

(e) ensuring effective communication with shareholders.

There is a clear division between the leadership of the Board and the CEO. The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day 
operations of the Group, as well as to carry out the Board’s decisions. The Chairman and the CEO are not related.

As the Chairman is a separate independent individual, there is no need for a lead independent director to be 
appointed.

4. BOARD MEMBERSHIP 

Principle 4: The Board has a formal and transparent process for the appointment and re-appointment of 
directors, taking into account the need for progressive renewal of the Board. 

The NC is responsible for making recommendations on all board appointments and re-nominations, having regard to 
the contribution and performance of the Director seeking re-election. 

The NC comprises Mr. Vincent Leow, Mr. Danny Lim and Mr. Gary Chin. The chairman of the NC is Mr. Vincent Leow. 
A majority of the NC, including the chairman, is independent.  

The written terms of reference of the NC have been approved and adopted. The key responsibilities of the NC are: 

(a) review the structure, size and composition (including skills, qualifi cations, experience and diversity) of the 
Board and Board Committees and recommend changes, if any, to the Board;

(b) nominate director (including Independent Directors) taking into consideration each Directors’ contribution, 
performance and ability to commit suffi cient time, resources and attention to the affairs of our Group 
including their principal occupation and board representations in other companies;

(c) review and recommend the appointment and re-appointment of directors (including alternate directors, if 
applicable); 

(d) determine annually whether or not a director (including alternate director) of the Company is independent 
having regard to the Code and any other salient factors;
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(e) develop a process for evaluating the effectiveness and performance of the Board and its committees; and 
propose objective performance criteria, as approved by the Board, that allow comparison with the industry 
peers (if available) and address how the Board has enhanced long term shareholders’ value;

(f) assess the performance of the Board as a whole and contribution of each director to the effectiveness of the 
Board;

(g) recommend the membership of the Board committees to the Board;

(h) review of succession plans for Board Chairman, Directors, CEO and key management personnel of the 
Company;

(i) review and decide, in respect of a director who has multiple board representations on various companies, 
whether or not, such director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a director, having 
regard to the competing time commitments that are faced by the director when serving on multiple boards 
and discharging his duties towards other principal commitments; 

(j) determine and recommend to the Board on the maximum number of listed company board representations 
which any director may hold; 

(k) review of training programmes for the Board and assist with similar programmes for the Board Committees;

(l) review and approve any new employment of persons related to the director(s) and substantial shareholder(s), 
and the proposed terms of their employment; 

(m) keep up to date with developments in corporate governance initiatives, changes to relevant legislations, 
strategic issues and commercial changes that may affect the company and the industry in which it operates; 
and

(n) other acts as may be required by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and the Code of 
Corporate Governance from time to time. 

Having made its review on an annual basis, taking into consideration the checklist provided by the Independent 
Directors as mentioned under Principle 2 above, the NC has affi rmed that Mr. Danny Lim, Mr. Francis Yau and Mr. 
Vincent Leow have satisfi ed the criteria for independence. Each of the Independent Directors has also confi rmed his 
independence.  

The Company does not have a formal criteria of selection for the appointment of new Directors to the Board.  When 
a vacancy arises under any circumstance, either as part of the Board renewal process or where it is considered that 
the Board would benefi t from the services of a new director with particular skills, the NC, in consultation with the 
Board, will determine the selection criteria and will select candidates with the appropriate expertise and experience 
for the position. In its search and nomination process for new directors, the NC may rely on search companies, 
personal contacts and recommendations for the right candidates. The NC will make reference checks, meet up with 
the candidates and assess their suitability prior to making recommendations to the Board. Furthermore, the Board 
will also conduct thorough check on candidates’ background and experience, especially on any record of public 
reprimand and criminal record. Shortlisted candidates will then meet up with the other Board members before the 
Board approves the appointment. 

Board appointments are made by the Board after the NC has, upon reviewing the resume of the proposed Director 
and conducting appropriate interviews, recommended the appointment to the Board and the Board approving the 
appointment. Pursuant to the Constitution of the Company, each Director is required to retire at least once every 
three years by rotation, and all newly appointed Directors who are appointed by the Board are required to retire at 
the next annual general meeting following their appointment. The retiring Directors are eligible to offer themselves 
for re-election. 
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The dates of initial appointment together with their directorships in other listed companies and principal 
commitments, are set out below: 

Director Position
Date of initial 
appointment

Date of last 
re-appointment

Current directorships 
in listed companies

Other Principal 
Commitments (outside the 

Group)

Danny Lim Independent Non-
Executive Director 
& Chairman of the 

Board

31 December 2019 17 June 2020  Kimly Limited

 Stamford Land 
Corporation Limited

 Choo Chiang Holdings 
Ltd

 Rajah & Tann Singapore 
LLP

Gary Chin Executive Director 
and Chief Executive 

Offi cer

2 February 2016 29 April 2019 – –

Desmond Chin Executive Director 9 June 2016 27 April 2018 – –

Ong Eng Tiang Executive Director 9 June 2016 17 June 2020 – –

Francis Yau Independent Non-
Executive Director

9 June 2016 27 April 2018 Abundance International 
Limited

Megachem Limited

Vincent Leow Independent Non-
Executive Director

9 June 2016 29 April 2019 UG Healthcare Corporation 
Limited

 Allen & Gledhill LLP

 Heartware Network 

 Hometeam NS 

Takehito Hirano Non-independent 
Non-Executive 

Director

16 October 2018 29 April 2019 Fullcast Holdings Co., Ltd. 
(Listed on Tokyo Stock 
Exchange)

 F-Plain Corporation

 Hirano Associates Co., 
Ltd

 D.League.inc
 
Mr. Desmond Chin, Mr. Francis Yau and Mr. Vincent Leow will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting 
(“AGM”) pursuant to Regulation 117 of the Company’s Constitution. Mr. Desmond Chin and Mr. Francis Yau 
had offered themselves for re-election while Mr. Vincent Leow will not be seeking re-election at the forthcoming 
AGM. In this regard, the NC, having considered Mr. Desmond Chin and Mr. Francis Yau’s overall contribution and 
performance, had recommended their re-election to the Board and the Board has concurred with the NC’s 
recommendation. Please refer to the section entitled “Disclosure of Information on Directors Seeking Re-election” of 
this Annual Report for the information as set out in Appendix 7F to the Catalist Rules relating to Mr. Desmond Chin 
and Mr. Francis Yau.  

Subsequent to the completion of the forthcoming AGM, Mr. Vincent Leow will cease to be an Independent Director 
of the Company, Chairman of the NC and member of the AC and RC. The Board wishes to express its gratitude to 
Mr. Vincent Leow for his invaluable contributions during his service. 
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As explained in Principle 1 above, the Directors are provided a formal letter detailing their duties and responsibilities 
to the Company. When a Director has multiple board representations, the NC also considers whether or not the 
Director is able to and has adequately carried out his duties as a Director of the Company. The NC is satisfi ed that 
suffi cient time and attention has been given by the Directors to the affairs of the Company at the Board meetings, 
Board committees’ meetings and/or discussion sections. The NC is of the view that the matter relating to multiple 
board representations should be left to the judgement of each Director given that time requirements for different 
board representations vary. As such, the NC and the Board have decided that there is no necessity to determine the 
maximum number of listed company board representations which a Director may hold at this point in time. 

Each member of the NC has abstained from reviewing and voting on any resolution relating to the assessment of his 
performance and independence, or his re-nomination as Director, or in any matter where he has an interest. 

The Company does not have any alternate Director on Board currently and none of the Directors hold shares in the 
subsidiaries of the Company. 

The key information regarding the Directors are set out on pages 14 to 17 and pages 41 to 44 of this Annual Report.   

5. BOARD PERFORMANCE 

Principle 5: The Board undertakes a formal annual assessment of its effectiveness as a whole, and that of each 
of its board committees and individual directors. 

The Board’s performance is linked to the overall performance of the Group. The Board ensures that the Company 
is in compliance with the applicable laws, and members of our Board are required to act in good faith, with due 
diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. 

On an annual and formal basis, the NC assesses the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution by 
each Director (including the Chairman) to the effectiveness of the Board as well as the effectiveness of the Board 
Committees.

For the fi nancial year under review, each individual Director has completed assessment checklists with a set of 
proposed performance criteria determined by the NC which includes matters such as the Board’s structure, conduct 
of Board and Board Committee meetings, risk management and internal control, as well as the Board’s relationship 
with the Management. The NC also assesses the Board’s performance based on a set of quantitative criteria 
and fi nancial performance indicators as well as share price performance. The completed assessment checklists 
are submitted to the Company Secretary for collation and the results are presented to the NC for their review. 
Individual Director’s performance through self-assessment and peer review by completing the Individual Director 
Assessment Checklist and Director Peer Performance Evaluation Forms, which takes into consideration factors 
such as commitment of time for meetings, level of participation and contribution at such meetings and the technical 
knowledge of the Directors. 

The performance criteria are not subject to changes from year to year. Nonetheless, where circumstances deem it 
necessary for any of the criteria to be changed, the Board will justify such changes. 

The Board and the NC have endeavored to ensure that Directors appointed to the Board possess the background, 
experience, business knowledge, fi nance and management skills critical to the Group’s business. They also ensure 
that each Director, with his unique skillsets, contributes to the Board by bringing with him an independent and 
objective perspective of matters to enable balanced and well-considered decisions to be made. 

The Company did not engage any external facilitator for the evaluation process during FY2020. Where necessary, the 
NC will consider such an engagement. 
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6. REMUNERATION MATTERS 

Principle 6: The Board has a formal and transparent procedure for developing policies on director and executive 
remuneration, and for fi xing the remuneration packages of individual directors and key management 
personnel. No director is involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.  

The RC makes recommendations to the Board on the framework of remuneration, and the specifi c remuneration 
packages for each Director. The RC comprises Mr. Danny Lim, Mr. Francis Yau and Mr. Vincent Leow all of whom are 
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The chairman of the RC is Mr. Danny Lim.

The terms of reference of the RC have been approved and adopted. The key responsibilities of the RC are:

(a) recommend to the Board a remuneration policy/framework for the Directors and key management personnel 
(“KMPs”);

(b) recommend to the Board the specifi c remuneration packages for each director as well as for the KMPs;

(c) review the remuneration of employees related to the directors and substantial shareholders to ensure that 
their remuneration packages are in line with the staff remuneration guidelines and commensurate with their 
respective job scopes and level of responsibilities;

(d) review and consider all aspects of remuneration and remuneration policy for directors and KMPs, including 
termination terms and payments, to ensure they are fair;

(e) review the design of all long-term and short-term incentive plans for directors and KMPs for approval by the 
Board and/or shareholders;

(f) work and liaise, as necessary, with all other Board Committees on any other matters connected with 
remuneration;

(g) keep up to date with developments in corporate governance initiatives, changes to relevant legislations, 
strategic issues and commercial changes that may affect the company and the industry in which it operates; 
and

(h) other acts as may be required by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and the Code from time 
to time. 

The members of the RC are familiar with executive compensation matters as they manage their own businesses 
and/or are holding other senior positions and directorships. The RC has access to expert advice regarding executive 
compensation matters, if required.  

The RC’s recommendations will be submitted for endorsement by the Board. No member of the RC or any Director is 
involved in deciding his own remuneration. 

The RC review the Company’s obligations arising in the event of termination of the Executive Directors and KMP’s 
contracts of services, to ensure that such contracts of service contain fair and reasonable termination clauses which 
are not overly generous with an aim to be fair and avoid rewarding poor performance.  

The RC from time to time and where necessary will seek advice from the external remuneration consultant in 
framing the remuneration policy and determining the level and mix of remuneration for Directors and KMPs. The 
Board did not engage any external remuneration consultant to advise on remuneration matters for FY2020. None of 
the members of the RC or any Director is involved in deliberations in respect of any remuneration, compensation or 
any form of benefi ts to be granted to him. 
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7. LEVEL AND MIX OF REMUNERATION 

Principle 7: The level and structure of remuneration of the Board and key management personnel are 
appropriate and proportionate to the sustained performance and value creation of the company, 
taking into account the strategic objectives of the company. 

In setting remuneration packages, the RC takes into account pay and employment conditions within the same 
industry and in comparable companies, as well as the Group’s relative performance and the performance of 
individual Directors and KMPs. The remuneration package is designed to allow the Company to better align the 
interests of the Executive Directors and KMPs with those of shareholders and link rewards to corporate and 
individual performance. 

The Non-Executive and Independent Directors receive directors’ fees for their effort and time spent, responsibilities 
and level of contribution to the Board and Board Committees, and are subject to shareholders’ approval at AGM. 
The RC also ensures that the Independent Director should not be over-compensated to the extent that their 
independence is compromised. 

The Company has entered into fi xed-term service agreements with the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Desmond 
Chin, Mr. Gary Chin and Mr. Ong Eng Tiang. The service agreements are valid for an initial period of three years 
with effect from the date of admission of the Company to the Catalist. Subsequent to the expiry of the initial period 
of three years, the employment of Mr. Desmond Chin, Mr. Gary Chin and Mr. Ong Eng Tiang have been renewed for 
three years from 1 July 2019 on such terms and conditions as the parties agreed in writing.  Following the period of 
three years, either party may terminate the service agreements at any time by giving the other party not less than 
six months’ notice in writing. 

The Company has also entered into separate employment contracts with the KMPs which provides for remuneration 
payable to them, annual leave entitlement and termination arrangements. 

Remuneration for the Executive Directors comprises a basic salary component as well as fi xed and variable incentive 
bonus component that is based on the performance of the Group as a whole and the ability to meet certain profi t 
targets. KMPs are paid basic salary and performance bonus is based on a yearly appraisal. All revisions to the 
remuneration packages for the Directors and KMPs are subjected to the review by and approval of the RC and the 
Board. Directors’ fees are further subjected to the approval of the shareholders at the AGM. For 2021, directors’ 
fee of S$145,000, payable quarterly in arrears are recommended by the Board and are subject to the approval of 
shareholders at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. 

Both the Advancer Global Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Advancer Global ESOS”) and Advancer Global 
Performance Share Plan (the “Advancer Global PSP”) form an integral component of the compensation plan and are 
designed primarily to reward and retain the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent 
Directors) and employees whose services are vital to Group’s well-being and success.  The RC is responsible for 
administering the Company’s Advancer Global ESOS and Advancer Global PSP. 

8. DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION 

Principle 8: The company is transparent on its remuneration policies, level and mix of remuneration, the 
procedure for setting remuneration, and the relationships between remuneration, performance and 
value creation.  

The Board is of the view that full disclosure of the specifi c remuneration of each individual Director and the CEO is 
not in the best interests of the Company, taking into account the sensitive nature of the subject, the high competitive 
business environment the Group operates in and the potential negative impact such disclosure will have on the 
Group, and that the current disclosure on a named basis and in bands of S$250,000 including the provision of a 
breakdown in percentage terms is suffi cient.  

The Company only has 2 KMPs (who are not Directors or the CEO) during FY2020 and their remuneration is disclosed 
in bands of S$250,000. 
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The level and mix of remuneration paid or payable to the Directors and KMPs for FY2020 are set out as follows: 
 

Remuneration bands

Salary 
& CPF

%

Bonus 
s& CPF

%

Director’s 
Fee(1)

%

Other 
Benefi ts

%
Total

%

Directors

S$500,000 to below S$750,000

Gary Chin 58 42 – – 100

Ong Eng Tiang  56 44 – – 100

S$250,000 to below S$500,000

Desmond Chin 56 44 – – 100

Below S$250,000

Danny Lim – – 100 – 100

Francis Yau – – 100 – 100

Vincent Leow – – 100 – 100

Takehito Hirano – – 100 – 100

Loy Soo Chew (2) – – 100 – 100

Key Management

Below S$250,000

Francis Chin 88 12 – – 100

Li Ying 100 – – – 100

Notes:

(1) Directors’ fees have been approved by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM held on 17 June 2020.  

(2) Mr. Loy Soo Chew retired on 17 June 2020.

The aggregate remuneration paid to the KMPs of the Company (who are not Directors or CEO) in FY2020 amounted 
to approximately S$488,014. 

There are no termination, retirement or post-employment benefi ts that are granted to the Directors, CEO and the 
KMPs of the Group.
 
Save as disclosed below, there were no employees of the Company who are substantial shareholders or are 
immediate family members of any Director, the CEO or a substantial shareholder and whose remuneration exceeded 
S$100,000 during FY2020. 

Remuneration bands

Salary 
& CPF

%

Bonus 
& CPF

%
Total

%

S$200,000 to below S$250,000
Francis Chin(1) 88 12 100
Chin Chwee Hwa(1) 92 8 100

Note: 

(1) Francis Chin and Chin Chwee Hwa are the siblings of Desmond Chin (Executive Director and substantial shareholder) and Gary Chin 
(Executive Director, CEO and substantial shareholder). Francis Chin is Head of Employment Services while Chin Chwee Hwa is a 
director at World Clean Facilities Services Pte. Ltd..
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The Company had adopted the Advancer Global ESOS and Advancer Global PSP. The RC’s duties include the 
administration of the Advancer Global ESOS and Advancer Global PSP. 

The aggregate number of shares or options over which the RC may grant on any date, when added to the number of  
shares issued and issuable or transferred and to be transferred in respect of all options granted under the Advancer 
Global ESOS and the number of shares issued and issuable or transferred and to be transferred in respect of all 
options or awards granted under any other share option schemes or share schemes of our Company, including 
the Advancer Global PSP, shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding shares held by our 
Company as treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) on the day immediately preceding the date on which an offer 
to grant an option is made. 

The exercise price of the options shall be fi xed by the RC at: 

(a) the Market Price (as defi ned below); or 

(b) a price which is set at a discount to the Market Price, the quantum of such discount to be determined by the 
RC in its absolute discretion, provided that the maximum discount which may be given in respect of any option 
shall not exceed 20% of the Market Price in respect of that option. 

Market Price is the average of the last dealt prices for a share determined by reference to the daily Offi cial List  
published by the SGX-ST for a period of 5 consecutive market days immediately prior to the relevant offer date  
provided always that in the case of a market day on which the shares are not traded on the SGX-ST, the last dealt  
price for shares on such market day shall be deemed to be the last dealt price of the shares on the immediately 
preceding market day on which the shares were traded. 

During FY2017, there were 1,156,500 share options granted to the employees (not being a director or substantial 
shareholder) of which 248,500 share options had lapsed as at 31 December 2020 due to resignation of employees. 
Further details on the options or awards granted pursuant to the Advancer Global ESOS can be found in the 
Directors’ Statement and Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 45 and 49 and 109 and 110 respectively. 

Since the commencement of the Advancer Global ESOS, there were no share options granted to the Directors, 
controlling shareholders and their associates, nor did any participant receive 5% or more of the total number of 
options available under the Advancer Global ESOS. 

Under the Advancer Global PSP, the maximum number of shares issuable or to be transferred by our Company  
pursuant to awards granted under the Advancer Global PSP on any date, when aggregated with the aggregate 
number  of shares over which options or awards are granted under any other share option schemes or share 
schemes of our  Company, will be 15% of our Company’s total number of issued shares (excluding shares held by 
our Company as  treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) on the day preceding that date. No share awards have 
been issued since the commencement of the Advancer Global PSP to date.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Principle 9: The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and ensures that Management maintains a sound 
system of risk management and internal controls, to safeguard the interest of the company and its 
shareholders.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the overall internal control framework, but recognises that no 
cost-effective control system will preclude all errors and irregularities, as a system is designed to manage rather 
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute 
assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

The Group has implemented a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable but not absolute 
assurance that assets are safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, operational controls are adequate 
and business risks are suitably managed. The Board oversees the Management in the design, implementation and 
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems, and reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of 
such systems at least annually. 

33 ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITEDANNUAL REPORT 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The AC has appointed Nexia TS Risk Advisory Pte Ltd (“Nexia TS”) as internal auditors (“IA”) to perform a review of 
the internal controls of the Group in accordance with the Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing 
laid down by the International Professional Practices Framework issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors. For 
FY2020, the internal audit review focused on Group’s sales, procurement, human resources and payroll for the 
landscaping business as well as IT general controls. No high risk items were noted in the review. The fi ndings from 
the review performed by the IA, including any material non-compliance or lapses in internal controls, together with 
recommendations for improvement, are reported to the AC and the Board. Timely and proper implementation of all 
required corrective, preventive or improvement measures are closely monitored by the AC. Nexia TS is a company 
of Nexia TS Public Accounting Corporation, which is recognised as an established mid-tier accounting fi rm for 
more than 25 years. Nexia TS possesses vast experience in providing internal audits, risk management services 
and advisory services in the region. The current engagement team assigned comprises of 3 members and is led by 
the engagement director who is a Chartered Accountant (Singapore), a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors 
(Singapore) and has more than 12 years of experience performing internal audits for listed companies. Taking into 
account the above, the AC is of the view that the IA function is independent, effective and adequately resourced.

The Board and the AC work closely with the IA, external auditors and the Management to institute, execute and 
monitor relevant controls with a view to enhance the Group’s risk management system. Having considered the scale 
of the Group’s operation and current existing risk management and internal control system, the Board is of the 
view that no separate Board risk committee is required for the time being as the Board is currently assisted by 
the AC, internal and external auditors in carrying out its responsibility of overseeing the Group’s risk management 
framework and policies. 

The Board has received assurance from (a) the CEO and the Chief Financial Offi cer (“CFO”) that the fi nancial records 
have been properly maintained and the fi nancial statements for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020 give 
a true and fair view of the Company’s operations and fi nances; and (b) the CEO, Executive Directors and the CFO 
that the Company’s risk management and internal control systems in place is adequate and effective in addressing 
the material risks in the Company in its current business environment including material fi nancial, operational, 
compliance and information technology controls, and risk management systems.  

Based on the assurance from the CEO, Executive Directors and CFO referred to in the preceding paragraph, the 
various internal controls put in place by the Group, the work performed and reports submitted by the internal 
auditors of  the Group and the reviews carried out by the Board and the AC, the Board, with the concurrence of the 
AC, is of the opinion that the risk management and internal control systems of the Group, addressing fi nancial, 
operational, compliance and information technology controls, were adequate and effective as at 31 December 2020. 

An overview of the key risks, the extent of the Group’s exposure and the approach to managing these risks are set 
out on pages 116 to 125 of the Annual Report.

10. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Principle 10: The Board has an Audit Committee which discharges its duties objectively.  

The AC comprises Mr. Francis Yau, Mr. Vincent Leow and Mr. Danny Lim, all of whom are Independent Non-Executive 
Directors. The chairman of the AC is Mr. Francis Yau. No former partner or Director of the Company’s existing audit 
fi rm or auditing corporation is a member of the AC and none them have fi nancial interest in the Company’s existing 
auditing or auditing corporation. The members of the AC have suffi cient accounting or fi nancial management 
expertise, as interpreted by the Board in its business judgment, to discharge the AC’s functions. 

The written terms of reference of the AC have been approved and adopted. The key responsibilities of the AC include: 

(a) review with the external auditors the audit plans, their evaluation of the system of internal controls, their 
audit report, their management letter and the management’s response thereto; 
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(b) review with the internal auditors the internal audit plans, which includes a review of the interested person 
transactions including the guidelines and procedures for the monitoring of all such transactions, and their 
evaluation of the adequacy of our internal control (including the effectiveness of the procedures in relation to 
compliance with the rules and regulations applicable to the Group’s operations), accounting system and the 
management’s response before submission of the results of such review to the Board for approval prior to the 
incorporation of such results in the Company’s annual report (where necessary); 

(c) review the half yearly and annual consolidated fi nancial statements and any formal announcements relating 
to the Group’s fi nancial performance, and discuss on changes in  accounting policies and practices, major 
risk areas, signifi cant adjustments resulting from the audit, signifi cant reporting issues and judgements, 
compliance with accounting standards as well as compliance with any stock exchange and statutory/
regulatory requirements, concerns and issues arising from their audits including any matters which the 
auditors may wish to discuss in the absence of management to ensure the integrity of the consolidated 
fi nancial statements and the announcements relating the Group’s fi nancial performance, where necessary, 
before submission to the Board for approval; 

(d) review the internal control and procedures and ensure co-ordination between the external and internal 
auditors and the Management, and review the assistance given by the Management to the auditors, and 
discuss problems and concerns, and any matters which the auditors may wish to discuss in the absence of 
the Management, where necessary; 

(e) review and report to the Board at least annually on the adequacy and effectiveness of the company’s risk 
management and internal controls;

(f) review and discuss with the external and internal auditors any suspected fraud or irregularity, or suspected 
infringement of any relevant laws, rules or regulations, which has or is likely to have a material impact on the 
Group’s operating results or fi nancial position, and the Management’s response;

(g) review the independence and objectivity of the external and internal auditors, taking into account the non-
audit services provided by them, as well as consider the appointment or re-appointment of the external and 
internal auditors and matters relating to resignation or dismissal of the auditors, including approving the 
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external and internal auditors; 

(h) make recommendations to the Board on the proposals to the Shareholders with regard to the appointment, 
re-appointment and removal of external and internal auditors, and approve the remuneration and terms of 
engagement of the auditors;

(i) review all interested person transactions and determine methods or procedures for checking that the 
transaction prices are adequate for transactions to be carried out on normal commercial terms, and that they 
will not prejudice the company or its minority shareholders. 

(j) review potential confl icts of interests (if any) and to set out a framework to resolve or mitigate any potential 
confl icts of interest;

(k) review key fi nancial risk areas and key audit matters, with a view to providing an independent oversight on the 
Group’s fi nancial reporting, the outcome of such review to be disclosed in the annual reports or if the fi ndings 
are material, immediately announced via SGXNet; 

(l) review all hedging policies and instruments, if any, to be implemented by the Group; 

(m) undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board and report to the Board its 
fi ndings from time to time on matters arising and requiring the attention of the AC; 

(n) review the policy and procedures by which the employees may, in confi dence, raise concerns to the chairman 
of the AC on possible improprieties in matters of fi nancial reporting or other matters, and ensure that there 
are arrangements in place for the independent investigations of such matter and for appropriate follow-up in 
relation thereto; 
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(o) review the company’s programmes and policies to identify and prevent fraud as well as work with 
management to oversees the establishment of appropriate controls and anti-fraud programmes;

(p) review and discuss with investigators, any suspected fraud, irregularity, or failure of internal controls or 
suspected infringement of any relevant laws, rules or regulations of the jurisdictions in which the Group 
operates, which has or is likely to have a material impact on our Group’s operating results or fi nancial 
position, and our Management’s response thereto;

(q) review the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control (including fi nancial, 
operational, compliance and information technology controls), and states whether the AC concurs with the 
Board’s comment on adequacy and effectiveness of the company’s internal controls and risk management 
systems.  These may include reviewing management and/or assurance provider reports to highlight 
signifi cant fi ndings and recommendations, including management’s responses;

(r) review the assurance provided by the CEO and CFO on the fi nancial records and fi nancial statements;

(s) review the assurance provided by the CEO and other key management personnel on the effectiveness of risk 
management and internal controls; and

(t) review of Group’s compliance with such functions and duties as may be required under the relevant statutes 
or the Listing Manual, including such amendments made thereto from time to time. 

The AC has full authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference, full access to and cooperation from 
the Management, and full discretion to invite any Director, executive offi cer or other employee of the Group to attend 
its meetings, and is given reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its functions properly and effectively. 

During FY2020, the external auditors and internal auditors were invited to attend the AC meetings to present their 
audit plan and audit fi ndings report to the AC. The AC has met with the external and internal auditors without the 
presence of the Management, twice during FY2020.   

The external auditors update the AC on any changes in accounting standards impacting the fi nancial statements 
of the Group before an audit commences. Signifi cant matters that were discussed with the Management and the 
external auditors have been included as key audit matters as set out in the Auditors’ Report for FY2020.    

The following key audit matters were discussed between external auditors and Management, and reviewed by the 
AC.

Key Audit Matter How the AC reviewed these matters and what decisions were made

Impairment Assessment 
on Goodwill 

The AC has considered and is satisfied with the approach and methodology 
applied to the valuation model in goodwill impairment assessment as well as the 
assessment for indicators of impairment of intangible assets. The external auditors 
shared their approach to the impairment review as part of their presentation of the 
detailed audit plan and fi nal audit fi ndings. The impairment review is an area of 
focus for the external auditors. The external auditors has included it as a key audit 
matter in the independent auditors’ report for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 
2020. Please refer to page 51 of this Annual Report.

Recoverability of Loan 
Receivable from an 
Associate 

The AC has considered and is satisfied with the approach and methodology 
applied to the evaluation of recoverability of loan receivable from an associate. The 
external auditors shared their approach to the impairment review as part of their 
presentation of the detailed audit plan and fi nal audit fi ndings. The impairment 
review is an area of focus for the external auditors. The external auditors has 
included it as a key audit matter in the independent auditors’ report for the fi nancial 
year ended 31 December 2020. Please refer to page 52 of this Annual Report.
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The fees paid and payable by the Company to the external auditors, Mazars LLP in FY2020 for audit and non-audit 
services amounted to S$234,545 and S$41,621 respectively. The AC, having undertaken a review of all non-audit 
services provided by the external auditors which relate to taxation services and fi nancial due diligence services 
provided to the Group, is of the opinion that such services would not affect the independence of the external 
auditors. In reviewing the nomination of Mazars LLP for reappointment for the fi nancial year ending 31 December 
2021, the AC and the Board are satisfi ed with the standard and quality of work performed by Mazars LLP and have 
recommended the nomination of Mazars LLP for reappointment as external auditors of the Company for the ensuing 
year be tabled for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM. 

The Company has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the Catalist Rules in relation to its external auditors for 
FY2020. 

The AC reviewed the fi nancial statements of the Group and the Company before submitting them to the Board for its 
approval and the announcement of the fi nancial results. The AC also reviewed and monitored the Group’s and the 
Company’s fi nancial condition, internal and external audits, and the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s 
system of accounting and internal controls. 

The internal auditors report directly to the AC. The AC approves the engagement, removal, evaluation and 
compensation of the internal auditors. The internal auditors has full access to the Company’s documents, records, 
properties and personnel. The AC is satisfi ed that the internal audit fi rm is staffed by suitably qualifi ed and 
experienced persons. The internal audit plan is submitted to the AC for approval prior to the commencement of the 
internal audit.   

The Group is committed to the high standard of ethical, moral and legal business conduct and has in place a 
whistle-blowing policy. The policy aims to provide an avenue for employees and external parties to raise concerns 
about misconduct or improprieties in the Group and at the same time assure them that they will be protected from 
victimization for whistle-blowing in good faith. Cases that are signifi cant are reviewed by the AC for adequacy of 
investigation actions and resolutions. The Company’s Whistle-blowing policy is available on the Company’s website 
at http://advancer.sg/our-company/whistleblow/. There was no such incident reported to the AC during FY2020. 

11. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS AND CONDUCT OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Principle 11: The company treats all shareholders fairly and equitably in order to enable them to exercise 
shareholders’ rights and have the opportunity to communicate their views on matters affecting 
the company. The company gives shareholders a balanced and understandable assessment of its 
performance, position and prospects.

The Board strongly encourages shareholders to participate in and vote at general meetings. Shareholders are 
informed on a timely basis of general meetings through notices published in the newspapers and through reports or 
circulars sent to all shareholders. 

The Company tables separate resolutions at general meetings on each distinct issue unless the issues are 
interdependent and linked so as to form one signifi cant proposal. Where the resolutions are “bundled”, the company 
explains the reasons and material implications in the notice of meeting. Each item of special business included 
in the notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by an explanation or circular in respect of the 
proposed resolution. A proxy form is sent with the notice of general meeting to the shareholders. The resolutions 
will be put to vote by poll and an announcement of the results showing the number of votes cast for and against 
each resolution and the respective percentages for general meetings will be made subsequent to the meeting. 
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Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company’s upcoming AGM in respect of FY2020 will be held by way of electronic 
means pursuant to COVID-19 (Temporary Measures) (Alternative Arrangements for Meetings for Companies, 
Variable Capital Companies, Business Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) Order 2020 (“Order 2020”). 
The Notice of AGM of the Company will be disseminated to shareholders through publication on SGXNet and the 
Company’s website. More details on the arrangements of the AGM are set out in a separate announcement released 
together with this annual report. The Company will also publish an announcement, together with the notice of AGM, 
detailing the alternative arrangements for the AGM, during the COVID-19 pandemic. Shareholders will participate in 
the AGM via electronic means, and their questions in relation to any resolution set out in the notice of AGM will be 
sent to the Company in advance of the AGM. The Company will provide their responses to the substantial queries 
and relevant comments from shareholders at the AGM via electronic means, and the responses will be subsequently 
published on the SGXNet and the Company’s website together with the minutes of the AGM. 

The Company encourages shareholders’ participation at general meetings and all shareholders are given the 
opportunity to voice their views and to direct queries regarding the Group to Directors, including the chairman of 
each of the Board Committees. All Directors and the Company’s external auditors were present at the last AGM 
held on 17 June 2020 save for Mr. Loy Soo Chew (retired director) and Mr. Takehito Hirano (who has committed to a 
meeting).   

The Constitution of the Company currently allows a member of the Company who is not a relevant intermediary 
to appoint up to two proxies and for a member who is a relevant intermediary to appoint more than two proxies to 
attend and vote and general meetings.

For the upcoming AGM,  voting at the AGM is by proxy only.  Shareholders who wish to vote on any or all of the 
resolutions at the AGM, appointed the Chairman of the Meeting as their proxy by completing the proxy form for the 
AGM, and submitted the proxy form by post or by email to the Company seventy-two (72) hours before the AGM. 

For the time being, the Company has decided not to allow for absentia voting methods such as by mail, email and fax 
at the general meetings due to concerns over the authentication of shareholders’ identity. Voting in absentia by mail, 
email or fax will only be permitted under the until security, integrity and other pertinent issues are satisfactorily 
resolved.

The minutes of general meetings of shareholders recording substantial and relevant comments or queries from 
shareholders relating to the agenda of the general meeting and responses from the Board and Management are 
available on the Company’s website. In compliance with the requirements stipulated in the Order 2020, the Company 
will publish the minutes of the AGM on SGXNet within one (1) month from the date the AGM is held. 

The Company currently does not have a formal dividend policy. The form, frequency and amount of dividends will 
depend on the Group’s earnings, fi nancial position, capital needs, plans for future growth, working capital and other 
factors as the Board may deem appropriate.  

The Board has recommended a fi nal dividend of 0.79 Singapore cent per share for FY2020 which is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. 

12. ENGAGEMENT WITH SHAREHOLDERS 

Principle 12: The company communicates regularly with its shareholders and facilitates the participation of 
shareholders during general meetings and other dialogues to allow shareholders to communicate 
their views on various matters affecting the company.  

The Company strives for timeliness and consistency in its disclosures to shareholders. It is the Company’s policy 
to keep all shareholders informed of developments or changes that will have a material impact on the Company’s 
share price, through announcements via SGXNet. Such announcements are communicated on an immediate basis, 
or as soon as possible where immediate disclosure is not practicable due to confi dentiality reasons. The Company 
does not practice preferential and selective disclosure to any group of shareholders. 

The Company has its internal corporate affairs team, who facilitates communications with shareholders and 
analysts, attend to their queries or concerns and keep them apprised of the Group’s corporate developments and 
fi nancial performance. The enquiries can be posted through the Company’s website http://advancer.sg/contact-us/.
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13. ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Principle 13: The Board adopts an inclusive approach by considering and balancing the needs and interests of 
material stakeholders, as part of its overall responsibility to ensure that the best interests of the 
company are served.

The Group has made efforts to seek the opinions of many stakeholders either through informal or formal means by 
evaluating the needs and expectations of key stakeholder groups which are signifi cant to the Group’s value creation 
strategy and strive to build mutually benefi cial relationships.

The Group has identifi ed diverse stakeholder groups based on their level of infl uence in the business and also 
regularly engage and consult all stakeholder groups for any feedback and suggestions. Where appropriate and 
relevant to the business, the Company will incorporate their feedback into the Group’s plans and actions. 

General information on the Group such as annual reports, fi nancial results, news releases and investor relations 
contacts are provided in the Company’s website.

For more information on the Company’s stakeholder engagement, please refer to the Company’s Sustainability 
Report which will be released by May 2021. 

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

In compliance with the Catalist Rules on dealings in securities, Directors and employees of the Company are advised 
not to deal in the Company’s shares on short-term considerations or when they are in possession of unpublished 
price-sensitive information. The Company shall not deal in and prohibits dealings in its shares by its Directors, 
offi cers and employees of the Group, who are in possession of unpublished price sensitive information, during 
the period commencing one month before the announcement of the Company’s half-year and full-year fi nancial 
statements, and ending on the date of the announcement of the results.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Company has established procedures to ensure that all transactions with interested persons are reported in 
a timely manner to the AC, and that the transactions are carried out on normal commercial terms and will not be 
prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority shareholders.

During FY2020, the Group did not enter into any interested person transactions of S$100,000 and more. The Group 
does not have a general mandate pursuant to Rule 920 of the Catalist Rules for interested person transactions.

MATERIAL CONTRACT

There were no material contracts of the Group involving the interests of the CEO, each Director or controlling 
shareholder, either still subsisting at the end of FY2020 or if not than subsisting except for Directors’ remuneration 
as disclosed in the Financial Statements in this Annual Report. 

 NON-SPONSOR FEES

For FY2020, no non-sponsor fees were paid to its sponsor, SAC Capital Private Limited.
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USE OF NET SUBSCRIPTION PROCEEDS

As at the date of this Report, the utilisation of the net subscription proceeds from the Company’s issue and allotment 
of 65,000,000 make subscription shares on 31 August 2018 is set out as below:

Amount 
allocated

Amount
utilised Balance

S$ million S$ million S$ million

Expansion of business operations 16.30 (2.28) 14.02
General corporate and working capital purposes of the Group, 

mainly to support administrative and operational expenses(1) 5.44 (3.92) 1.52
21.74 (6.20) 15.54

Note: 

(1) Breakdown of the general and corporate working capital requirement:

S$’000

Professional and listing related expenses 719
Administrative expenses – staff costs 382
Administrative expenses - others 49
Purchase of inventory for a subsidiary 170
Repayment of loan incurred by a subsidiary 300
Advances to subsidiaries for operational expenses 2,300

3,920
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-ELECTION

Mr. Chin Mui Hiong and Mr. Francis Yau Thiam Hwa are the Directors seeking re-election at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be convened and held on 29 April 2021 (“AGM”) (collectively, the “Retiring 
Directors” and each a “Retiring Director”).  Mr. Vincent Leow who is also subject to retirement by rotation at the 
AGM will not seek re-election and will retire as Director of the Company at the close of the AGM. 

Pursuant to Rule 720(5) of the Catalist Rules, the following is the information relating to the Retiring Directors as set 
out in Appendix 7F to the Catalist Rules of SGX-ST:

MR. CHIN MUI HIONG MR. FRANCIS YAU THIAM HWA

Date of Appointment 9 June 2016 9 June 2016

Date of last re-appointment 27 April 2018 27 April 2018

Age 56 56

Country of principal residence Singapore Singapore

The Board’s comments on this appointment 
(including rationale, selection criteria, and the 
search and nomination process)

The re-appointment of Mr. Chin 
Mui Hiong as Executive Director of 
the Company was recommended 
by the NC and approved by the 
Board of Directors after having 
considered his past contribution 
and suitability. The Board have 
reviewed and concluded that 
Mr. Chin Mui Hiong possess the 
experience, expertise, knowledge 
and skills to continue contribute 
towards the existing businesses of 
the Group.

The re-appointment of Mr. Francis 
Yau Thiam Hwa as Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the 
Company was recommended 
by the NC and approved by the 
Board of Directors after having 
considered Mr. Francis Yau Thiam 
Hwa’s experience, expertise, 
knowledge and skills to contribute 
towards the core competencies of 
the Board.

Whether appointment is executive, and if so, the 
area of responsibility

Executive 

Mr. Chin Mui Hong is responsible 
for ensuring the overall 
effectiveness of the Group’s 
operations.

Non-Executive

Job Title (e.g.) Lead ID, AC Chairman, AC Member 
etc.) 

Executive Director Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

Chairman of the Audit Committee 
and member of the Remuneration 
Committee 

Professional qualifi cations Bachelor of Engineering from the 
National University of Singapore

Master of Business Administration 
from the National University of 
Singapore

Bachelor of Business Administration 
from the National University of 
Singapore

Working experience and occupation(s) during the 
past 10 years

June 2016 to present: Executive 
Director of Advancer Global 
Limited

June 1994 to May 2016: Founder 
and shareholder of Nation 
Employment Pte Ltd

January 2007 to present:  Chief 
Financial Officer of Megachem 
Limited
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Shareholding interest in the listed issuer and its 
subsidiaries

Direct interest: 37,573,963 None

Any relationship (including immediate family 
relationships) with any existing director, existing 
executive offi cer, the issuer and/or substantial 
shareholder of the listed issuer or of any of its 
principal subsidiaries.

Mr. Chin Mui Hiong is a brother 
of Mr. Chin Mei Yang (Chief 
Executive Officer and Executive 
Director) and Mr. Chin Swee 
Siew@Chen Yin Siew (Head 
of Employment Services and 
controlling shareholder).

None

Conflict of Interest (including any competing 
business)

None None

Undertaking (in the format set out in Appendix 
7H) under Rule 720(1) has been submitted to the 
listed issuer

Yes Yes

Other Principal Commitments Including Directorships

Past (for the last 5 years) Kah Kah Holdings Limited Nil 

Present Advancer Global Security Pte. Ltd. 
D8 Management Pte. Ltd.
The Kongzi Culture Fund Ltd.
Sunlife Educare Pte. Ltd.
East Asian Humanistic Studies 
Pte. Ltd.
Domestic Employee Welfare Fund
Nanyang Confucian Association

Abundance International Limited

Disclose the following matters concerning an appointment of director, chief executive offi cer, chief fi nancial offi cer, chief 
operating offi cer, general manager or other offi cer of equivalent rank. If the answer to any question is “yes”, full details 
must be given.

a) Whether at any time during the last 10 
years, an application or petition under any 
bankruptcy law of any jurisdiction was 
fi led against him or against a partnership 
of which he was a partner at the time 
when he was a partner or any time within 
2 years from the date he ceased to be a 
partner?

No No

b) Whether at any time during the last 
10 years, an application or a petition 
under any law of any jurisdiction was 
filed against an entity (not being a 
partnership) of which he was a director or 
an equivalent person or a key executive, 
at the time when he was a director or 
an equivalent person or a key executive 
of that entity or at any time within 2 
years from the date he ceased to be a 
director or an equivalent person or a key 
executive of that entity, for the winding up 
or dissolution of that entity or whether 
that entity is the trustee of a business 
trust, that business trust, on the group of 
insolvency?

No No
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c) Whether there is any unsatisfied 
judgement against him?

No No

d) Whether he has ever been convicted of 
any offence, in Singapore or elsewhere, 
involving fraud of dishonesty which 
is punishable with imprisonment, or 
has been the subject of any criminal 
proceedings (including any pending 
criminal proceedings of which he is 
aware) for such purpose?

No No

e) Whether he has ever been convicted of 
any offence, in Singapore or elsewhere, 
involving a breach of any law or regulatory 
requirement that relates to the securities 
or futures industry in Singapore or 
elsewhere, or has been the subject of 
any criminal proceedings (including any 
pending criminal proceedings of which he 
is aware) for such breach?

No No

f) Whether at any time during the last 
10 years, judgement has been entered 
against him in any civil proceedings in 
Singapore or elsewhere involving a breach 
of any law of regulatory requirement 
that relates to the securities or futures 
industry in Singapore or elsewhere, or 
a fi nding of fraud, misrepresentation or 
dishonesty on his part, or he has been the 
subject of any civil proceedings (including 
any pending civil proceedings of which he 
is aware) involving an allegation of fraud, 
misrepresentation of dishonesty on his 
part?

No No

g) Whether he has ever been convicted in 
Singapore or elsewhere of any offence 
in connection with the formation or 
management of any entity or business 
trust?

No No

h) Whether he has ever been disqualified 
from acting as a director or an equivalent 
person of any entity (including the trustee 
of a business trust), or from taking part 
directly or indirectly in the management of 
any entity or business trust?

No No

i) Whether he has ever been the subject 
of any order, judgment or ruling of any 
court, tribunal or governmental body, 
permanently or temporarily enjoining 
him from engaging in any type of 
business practice or activity?

No No
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j) Whether he has ever, to his knowledge, 
been concerned with the management or 
conduct, in Singapore or elsewhere, of the 
affairs of:–

i. any corporation which has been 
investigated for a breach of any law 
or regulatory requirement governing 
corporations in Singapore or 
elsewhere; or

Yes (Please refer to page 209 and 
210 of Company’s Offer Document 
dated 30 June 2016).

No

ii. any entity (not being a corporation) 
which has been investigated for 
a breach of any law or regulatory 
requirement governing such entities 
in Singapore or elsewhere; or

No No

iii. any business trust which has been 
investigated for a breach of any law 
or regulatory requirement governing 
business trusts in Singapore or 
elsewhere; or

No No

iv. any entity or business trust 
which has been investigated 
for a breach of any law or 
regulatory requirement that  
relates to the securities or futures 
industry in Singapore or elsewhere

No No

in connection with any matter occurring 
or arising during that period when he was 
so concerned with the entity or business 
trust?

No No

k) Whether he has been the subject of 
any current or past investigation or 
disciplinary proceedings, or has been 
reprimanded or issued any warning, by 
the Monetary Authority of Singapore or 
any other regulatory authority, exchange, 
professional body or government agency, 
whether in Singapore or elsewhere?

No No

44 ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020



DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

The directors present their statement to the members together with the audited fi nancial statements of Advancer 
Global Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the fi nancial year ended 31 
December 2020 and the statement of fi nancial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company as at 31 
December 2020.

1. Opinion of the directors

 In the opinion of the directors,

 (i) the fi nancial statements of the Group and the statement of fi nancial position and the statement of 
changes in equity of the Company are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the fi nancial 
position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2020 and the fi nancial performance, 
changes in equity and cash fl ows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the fi nancial 
year ended on that date; and

 (ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to 
pay its debts as and when they fall due.

2. Directors

 The directors of the Company in offi ce at the date of this statement are:

 Executive directors
 Chin Mei Yang (Chief Executive Offi cer)
 Chin Mui Hiong
 Ong Eng Tiang

 Non-executive director
 Takehito Hirano

 Independent directors
 Lim Teck Chai, Danny (Non-Executive Chairman)
 Vincent Leow
 Yau Thiam Hwa

3. Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares or debentures

 Neither at the end of nor at any time during the fi nancial year was the Company a party to any arrangement 
whose objects were, or one of the objects was, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefi ts by 
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, except as 
disclosed in paragraphs 4 and 5 below.
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4. Directors’ interests in shares or debentures

 The directors of the Company holding offi ce at the end of the fi nancial year had no interests in the shares 
and debentures of the Company and its related corporations as recorded in the Register of Directors’ 
Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the 
“Act”), except as disclosed below:

Direct interest Deemed interest
As at

1 January
2020

As at
31 December 

2020

As at
1 January

2020

As at
31 December 

2020

The Company
Ordinary shares
Chin Mei Yang 30,931,018 30,931,018 – –
Chin Mui Hiong 37,573,963 37,573,963 – –
Ong Eng Tiang 19,985,436 19,985,436 – –
Lim Teck Chai, Danny – – 642,500 642,500
Takehito Hirano – – 65,000,000 65,000,000

 Takehito Hirano and his family hold 100% ordinary shares in Hirano Associates Co., Ltd. (of which Takehito 
Hirano himself holds 18.04% ordinary shares). In addition, Takehito Hirano is a director and the chairman of 
Fullcast Holdings Co., Ltd.. Hirano Associates Co., Ltd. holds 37.39% ordinary shares in Fullcast Holding Co., 
Ltd., which in turn holds 25.87% ordinary shares of Advancer Global Limited (excluding treasury shares) as 
at 31 December 2020. Hence, Takehito Hirano and Hirano Associates Co., Ltd. are deemed interested in the 
65,000,000 shares held by Fullcast Holdings Co., Ltd. in the Company by virtue of Section 7 of the Act.

 Lim Teck Chai, Danny holds 642,500 shares of Advancer Global Limited through iFast Financial Pte. Ltd. (a 
nominee). Hence, Lim Teck Chai, Danny is deemed interested in the 642,500 shares held by custodian, iFast 
Financial Pte. Ltd. in the Company by virtue of Section 7 of the Act.

 The directors’ interests in the shares of the Company on 21 January 2021 were the same as at 31 December 
2020.

5. Advancer Global Employee Share Option Scheme

 The Employee Share Option Scheme (the “ESOS”) of the Company was approved and adopted on 6 June 2016. 
The ESOS is administered by the Company’s Remuneration Committee, which comprises three independent 
directors:

 Lim Teck Chai, Danny (Chairman)
 Yau Thiam Hwa
 Vincent Leow

 The ESOS entitles the option holder to subscribe for a specifi c number of ordinary shares in the Company at 
a subscription price per share determined with reference to the market price of the share at the time of grant 
of option.

 Other information regarding the ESOS is set out below:

 (i) Group employees (including Directors of the Company) who have attained the age of 21 years and are 
not undischarged bankrupts and have not entered into a composition with their respective creditors, 
and who have been in the employment of the Group for a period of at least 12 months, or such shorter 
period as the Remuneration Committee may determine, are eligible to participate in the ESOS.
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5. Advancer Global Employee Share Option Scheme (Continued)

 Other information regarding the ESOS is set out below: (Continued)

 (ii) The maximum discount shall not exceed 20% of the market price on the date of the grant of the 
options.

 (iii) The options granted with the exercise price set at market price should only be exercised after the fi rst 
anniversary from the grant date and before the tenth anniversary of the grant date.

 (iv) The option granted with exercise price set at a discount to market price should only be exercised after 
the second anniversary from the grant date and before the tenth anniversary of the grant date.

 (v) The option shall immediately lapse and become null and void when the participant cease to be in 
employment of the Group.

 (vi) All options are settled by delivery of shares.

 The details of the options movement during the fi nancial year are as follows:

Date of grant
Balance as at

1 January 2020 Lapsed

Balance as at
31 December 

2020
Exercise price 

per share
Exercisable

period
(S$)

20 April 2017 960,000 (52,000) 908,000 0.40 19 April 2019 to
19 April 2022

 Since the commencement of the ESOS, no options have been granted to the controlling shareholders and 
directors of the Company or their associates and no participants under the ESOS have been granted 5% or 
more of the total number of options available under the ESOS.

 The options granted by the Company do not entitle the holders of the options, by virtue of such holding, to any 
rights to participate in any share issue of any other company.

6. Warrants

 At the end of the fi nancial year, details of the outstanding warrants are as follows:

Date of issue

Warrants 
outstanding 
at 1 January 

2020
Warrants 

issued
Warrants 
exercised

Warrants 
expired

Warrants 
outstanding at 
31 December 

2020
Date of 

expiration

17 May 2017 6,250,000 – – 6,250,000 – 16 May 2020

 The Company issued 6,250,000 warrants (the “Warrant Issue”) on 17 May 2017 with each warrant carrying the 
right to subscribe for one new ordinary in the capital of the Company (the “Warrant Share”) at the exercise 
price of S$0.45 per Warrant Share during the period commencing on and including the date of the Warrant 
Issue and expiring on the market day immediately preceding the third anniversary of the date of the Warrant 
Issue.

 No warrants were exercised and converted into ordinary shares in the capital of the Company since the date 
of the Warrant Issue. On 16 May 2020, all the 6,250,000 warrants in total were expired.
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7. Audit Committee

 The Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Company comprises three independent directors and at the date of this 
report, they are:

 Yau Thiam Hwa (Chairman) 
 Vincent Leow
 Lim Teck Chai, Danny

 The AC has convened two meetings during the fi nancial year with key management and the internal and 
external auditors of the Company.

 The AC carried out its functions in accordance with Section 201B (5) of the Act, the SGX Listing Manual and 
the Code of Corporate Governance. In performing those functions, the AC:

 (i) reviewed the audit plan and results of the external audit, the independence and objectivity of the 
external auditors, including, where applicable, the review of the nature and extent of non-audit services 
provided by the external auditors to the Group, and the assistance given by the Group’s and the 
Company’s management to the external auditors;

 (ii) reviewed the audit plans of the internal auditors of the Group and their evaluation of the adequacy of 
the Group’s system of internal accounting controls, and the assistance given by the Group’s and the 
Company’s management to the internal auditors;

 (iii) reviewed the Group’s annual fi nancial statements and the external auditors’ report on the annual 
fi nancial statements of the Group and of the Company before their submission to the Board of 
Directors;

 (iv) reviewed the half-yearly and annual announcements as well as the related press releases on the 
results of the Group and fi nancial position of the Group and of the Company including signifi cant 
adjustments resulting from audit, signifi cant fi nancial reporting issues and judgements as well as 
compliance with accounting standards;

 (v) reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s material internal controls, including 
fi nancial, operational, compliance and information technology controls, and risk management systems 
via reviews carried out by the internal auditors;

 (vi) met with the external auditors, internal auditors, other committees, and management in separate 
executive sessions to discuss suspected fraud or irregularity (if any), potential confl icts of interests (if 
any), and any matters that these groups believe should be discussed privately with the AC;

 (vii) reviewed and checked the Group’s compliance with legal requirements and regulations, including the 
related compliance policies and programmes and reports received from regulators, if any;

 (viii) reviewed interested person transactions in accordance with SGX listing rules;

 (ix) reviewed the nomination of external auditors and gave approval of their compensation; and

 (x) submitted of report of actions and minutes of the AC to the Board of Directors with any 
recommendations as the AC deemed appropriate.

 The AC has full access to and has the co-operation of the management and has been given the resources 
required for it to discharge its functions properly. It also has full discretion to invite any director and executive 
offi cer to attend its meetings. The external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the AC.

 The AC has recommended to the Board of Directors the nomination of Mazars LLP for re-appointment as 
external auditors of the Group at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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8. Auditors

 The auditors, Mazars LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

 
Chin Mui Hiong Chin Mei Yang
Director Director

Singapore
19 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To The Members Of Advancer Global Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the fi nancial statements of Advancer Global Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the 
“Group”) which comprise the statements of fi nancial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 
2020, and the statements of profi t or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash fl ows of the 
Group, and the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the fi nancial year then ended, and notes to the 
fi nancial statements, including a summary of signifi cant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying fi nancial statements of the Group and the statement of fi nancial position and 
the statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)s”) so 
as to give a true and fair view of the fi nancial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2020 and 
of the fi nancial performance, changes in equity and cash fl ows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company 
for the fi nancial year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory 
Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (the 
“ACRA code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the fi nancial statements in 
Singapore, and we have fulfi lled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ACRA code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Overview

Audit Approach

We designed a risk-based audit approach in identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement at both the 
fi nancial statement and assertion levels.

Materiality

As in all our audits, we exercised our professional judgement in determining our materiality, which was also affected 
by our perception of the fi nancial information needs of the users of the fi nancial statements, being the magnitude of 
misstatement in the fi nancial statements that makes it probable for a reasonably knowledgeable person to change 
or be infl uenced in his economic decision.

Scope of audit

For the audit of the current year’s fi nancial statements, we performed full scope audit of all 25 components as the 
appointed statutory auditors, and we identifi ed 11 signifi cant components, either because of their size or/and their 
risk characteristics.

Areas of focus

We focused our resources and effort on areas which were assessed to have higher risks of material misstatement, 
including areas which involve signifi cant judgements and estimates to be made by directors.

We will elaborate on the salient areas of focus as follows:

 Impairment Assessment on Goodwill; and
 Recoverability of Loan Receivable from an Associate
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Report on the Audit of Financial Statements (Continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most signifi cance in our audit 
of the fi nancial statements of the current fi nancial year. These matters include the aforementioned salient areas 
of focus in our audit and do not represent all the risks identifi ed by our audit. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the fi nancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment Assessment on Goodwill
Refer to Note 3 for critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, and Note 11 
(Goodwill on consolidation) for disclosures relating to the impairment assessment.

Key Audit Matter Audit Response

As at 31 December 2020, the Group reported goodwill 
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries with 
carrying value approximately S$5.4 million.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of 
impairment, the management is required to perform an 
impairment assessment of goodwill annually.

The recoverable amounts are determined based on 
estimates of forecasted revenues, growth rates and 
discount rates. These estimates require judgement and 
the determination of the recoverable amounts is a key 
focus area in our audit.

Our audit procedures included, and were not limited to, 
the following:

 Discussed with management on their planned 
strategies around business expansion, revenue 
stream growth strategies and cost initiatives, the 
progress of negotiations with target customers, 
and obtained the list of secured and lost 
contracts;

 Assessed the achievability of the forecast 
based on actual results with comparison to the 
previous forecast; 

 Evaluated the reasonableness of management’s 
estimate of expected future cash flows and 
challenged management’s estimates applied 
in the value-in-use (“VIU”) models, with 
comparison to recent performance, trend 
analysis and market expectations;

 Involved internal valuation expert on the 
assessment of VIU models; and

 Reviewed the sensitivity analysis to assess 
the impact on the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating units (“CGU”) subsequent 
to reasonably possible changes to the key 
assumptions for adequacy of disclosure in the 
fi nancial statements.

51 ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITEDANNUAL REPORT 2020



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To The Members Of Advancer Global Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Recoverability of Loan Receivable from an Associate
Refer to Note 2.16 for Financial Instruments accounting policy, Note 3 for critical accounting judgements and key 
sources of estimation uncertainty, Note 20 (Trade and other receivables) and Note 31 (Financial instruments and 
fi nancial risks) for disclosures relating to the loss allowance for other receivables.

Key Audit Matter Audit Response

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a 
loan receivable of S$3.3 million from an associate, 
G3 Environmental Private Limited (“G3”), which is 
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. 

The principal activities of G3 and its subsidiaries 
(collectively referred herein as the “G3 Group”) are 
commercial/industrial real estate management and 
collection and recycling of metal waste and scraps.

Based on the management accounts as at 31 
December 2020, G3 Group’s current liabilities and total 
liabilities exceeded its current assets and total assets 
by S$8.3 million and S$2.8 million, respectively. 

Given the above fi nancial condition of the associate, it 
has been assessed that there is a signifi cant increase 
in credit risk from initial recognition. Management 
assessed the expected credit losses (“ECL”) relating 
to the loan receivable from the associate based on 
lifetime ECL. The Group considered the ability of the 
associate to settle the loan on a repayable on demand 
basis, with reference to the viability of the fi nancial 
support provided by its immediate holding company 
and where the associate had obtained confi rmations 
from its immediate holding company and other 
shareholder not to demand for repayment of their 
respective proportionate shareholders’ loans for a 
period of 13 months from the date of authorisation for 
the issuance of the fi nancial statements. The Group 
also considered the profi t or loss forecast of G3 Group 
during the expected recovery period with reference 
to relevant and reliable forward-looking outlook and 
information, including their best estimate of the impact 
of COVID-19, specifi c to the associate and the economic 
environment which could affect the ability of the 
associate to settle the loan receivables.

Accordingly, the Group determined that there is no ECL 
for the loan receivable from its associate.

Our audit procedures focused on evaluating and 
challenging the key assumptions used by management 
in conducting the impairment review. These procedures 
included:

 Performed a credit risk analysis of the associate 
by assessing its historical and current fi nancial 
performance, net current asset/(liability) and net 
equity/(capital defi ciency) position;

 Evaluated the reasonableness of management’s 
cash flow forecasts and challenged 
management’s estimates applied in the VIU 
models, with comparison to recent performance, 
trend analysis and market expectations to 
establish the viability of the associate’s business; 

 Reviewed the sensitivity analysis to assess the 
impact on the recoverable amount of the loan 
receivable subsequent to reasonably possible 
changes to the key assumptions for adequacy of 
disclosure in the fi nancial statements;

 Confirmed the existence, legality and 
enforceability of arrangements to provide or 
maintain financial support of the associate’s 
immediate holding company and other 
shareholder and not to demand for repayment 
of the proportionate shareholders’ loans for the 
period agreed; and

 Reviewed the financial capability of the 
associate’s immediate holding company to 
provide additional funds and performed a credit 
risk analysis by assessing its liquidity position.
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report, other than the fi nancial statements and the independent auditors’ report thereon, which we 
obtained prior to the date of this report.

Our opinion on the fi nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the fi nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identifi ed 
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the fi nancial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this report, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act and SFRS(I)s, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting 
controls suffi cient to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised 
use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the 
preparation of true and fair fi nancial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the fi nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s fi nancial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infl uence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these fi nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
suffi cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group’s internal control.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast signifi cant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
fi nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the fi nancial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the fi nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

 Obtain suffi cient appropriate audit evidence regarding the fi nancial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
signifi cant audit fi ndings, including any signifi cant defi ciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most signifi cance 
in the audit of the fi nancial statements of the current fi nancial year and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefi ts of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by the 
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Lai Keng Wei.

MAZARS LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
19 March 2021

54 ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these fi nancial statements.

Note 2020 2019
S$’000 S$’000

Revenue 4 56,391 70,944

Cost of sales (43,518) (53,883)

Gross profi t 12,873 17,061
Other operating income 5 10,030 1,448
Administrative expenses (17,714) (17,708)
Finance expenses 6 (140) (141)

Share of losses from equity-accounted for associates 14 (98) (98)

Profi t before income tax 7 4,951 562
Income tax credit/(expense) 9 36 (125)

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, REPRESENTING
 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 4,987 437

Profi t for the fi nancial year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 4,525 471
Non-controlling interests 462 (34)

Profi t for the fi nancial year 4,987 437

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company
 (cents per share)
Basic and diluted 10 1.80 0.19
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these fi nancial statements.

Group Company
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Goodwill on consolidation 11 5,440 5,585 – –
Intangible assets 12 666 603 – –
Investments in subsidiaries 13 – – 11,486 11,478
Investments in associates 14 396 494 – –
Other investments 15 624 – – –
Property, plant and equipment 16 2,296 2,379 – –
Right-of-use assets 17 2,338 2,968 – –
Deferred tax assets 18 28 20 – –

Total non-current assets 11,788 12,049 11,486 11,478

Current assets
Inventories 19 1,047 947 – –
Other investments 15 1,007 – 1,007 –
Trade and other receivables 20 18,659 17,632 14,365 11,316
Cash and bank balances 21 27,617 25,651 16,182 18,080

Total current assets 48,330 44,230 31,554 29,396

Total assets 60,118 56,279 43,040 40,874

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Share capital 22 40,607 40,607 40,607 40,607
Treasury shares 22 (232) (223) (232) (223)
Retained earnings 9,375 6,331 2,001 230
Other reserves 23 (2,830) (2,850) 112 106

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 46,920 43,865 42,488 40,720
Non-controlling interests 798 300 – –

Total equity 47,718 44,165 42,488 40,720

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 18 123 165 – –
Lease liabilities 17 1,129 1,732 – –
Bank borrowing 25 562 592 – –

Total non-current liabilities 1,814 2,489 – –

Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 17 1,472 1,457 – –
Trade and other payables 26 8,205 7,261 547 129
Contract liabilities from contracts with
 customers 27 793 646 – –
Bank borrowing 25 30 29 – –
Income tax payable 86 232 5 25

Total current liabilities 10,586 9,625 552 154

Total liabilities 12,400 12,114 552 154

Total equity and liabilities 60,118 56,279 43,040 40,874
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these fi nancial statements.

Attributable to owners of the Company

Group Note
Share 
capital

Treasury 
shares

Retained 
earnings

Share 
options 
reserve

Capital 
reserve

Merger 
reserve Total

Non- 
controlling 
interests

Total 
equity

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Balance at 1 January 2019 40,607 (223) 6,237 86 (353) (2,603) 43,751 359 44,110

Profi t for the fi nancial year, representing
 total comprehensive income for the
 fi nancial year – – 471 – – – 471 (34) 437
Share options expenses pursuant to the ESOS 7 – – – 20 – – 20 – 20
Acquisition of a subsidiary – – – – – – – 23 23
Dividends declared to non-controlling
 interests – – – – – – – (48) (48)
Dividends declared 35 – – (377) – – – (377) – (377)

Balance at 31 December 2019 40,607 (223) 6,331 106 (353) (2,603) 43,865 300 44,165

Profi t for the fi nancial year, representing
 total comprehensive income for the
 fi nancial year – – 4,525 – – – 4,525 462 4,987
Purchase of treasury shares – (9) – – – – (9) – (9)
Share options forfeited – – 2 (2) – – – – –
Share options expenses pursuant to the ESOS 7 – – – 8 – – 8 – 8
Acquisition of remaining non-controlling
 interest in a subsidiary – – – – 14 – 14 (14) –
Acquisition of a subsidiary – – – – – – – 206 206
Non-controlling interests’ investment in
 a subsidiary – – – – – – – 10 10
Dividends declared to non-controlling
 interests – – – – – – – (166) (166)
Dividends declared 35 – – (1,483) – – – (1,483) – (1,483)

Balance at 31 December 2020 40,607 (232) 9,375 112 (339) (2,603) 46,920 798 47,718
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these fi nancial statements.

Company Note
Share
capital

Treasury 
shares

Retained 
earnings

Share 
options 
reserve Total

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Balance at 1 January 2019 40,607 (223) 453 86 40,923

Profi t for the fi nancial year,
 representing total comprehensive
 income for the fi nancial year – – 154 – 154
Share options expenses pursuant
 to the ESOS 7 – – – 20 20
Dividends declared 35 – – (377) – (377)

Balance at 31 December 2019 40,607 (223) 230 106 40,720

Profi t for the fi nancial year,
 representing total comprehensive
 income for the fi nancial year – – 3,252 – 3,252
Purchase of treasury shares – (9) – – (9)
Share options forfeited – – 2 (2) –
Share options expenses pursuant
 to the ESOS 7 – – – 8 8
Dividends declared 35 – – (1,483) – (1,483)

Balance at 31 December 2020 40,607 (232) 2,001 112 42,488
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these fi nancial statements.

Note 2020 2019
S$’000 S$’000

Operating activities
Profi t before income tax 4,951 562

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of intangible assets 12 279 596
Impairment loss of goodwill 11 145 –
Bad debts written-off 7 15 14
Bad debts recovered (*) –
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16 529 507
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17 1,685 1,301
Deposit forfeited on proposed acquisition 7 – 100
Dividend income 5 (12) –
Fair value loss arising from quoted fi nancial assets at FVTPL 7 9 –
Fair value gain arising from unquoted fi nancial assets at FVTPL 5 (12) –
Gain on lease modifi cation 5 (6) –
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 5 – (35)
Gain on bargain purchase arising from acquisition 5 (325) –
Interest expense 6 140 141
Interest income 5 (245) (354)
Loss allowances for receivables (trade) 7,20 104 58
Property, plant and equipment written-off 7 16 12
Reversal of provision for warranties 7 (1) (7)
Reversal of loss allowance for receivables (trade) 5,20 – (2)
Share options expenses pursuant to the ESOS 7 8 20
Share of losses from equity-accounted for associates 14 98 98
Unrealised exchange gain (4) –

Operating cash fl ows before movements in working capital 7,374 3,011

Changes in working capital:
Inventories (100) (400)
Trade and other receivables (727) (603)
Trade and other payables 79 556
Contract liabilities from contracts with customers 147 69

Cash generated from operations 6,773 2,633

Interest received 245 354
Income taxes paid (167) (268)

Net cash generated from operating activities 6,851 2,719

Investing activities
Deposits on proposed acquisition, net of refund – 100
Dividend received 12 –
Net cash infl ow on acquisition of a subsidiary 13(d),13(c) 463 21
Non-controlling interests’ investment in a subsidiary 10 –
Investment in an associate 14 – (514)
Repayment from an associate 20 – 40
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment – 37
Purchase of intangible asset 12 (334) (122)
Purchase of quoted equity instruments held at FVTPL 15 (1,016) –
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 16 (460) (648)
Purchase of right-of-use assets through certain lease arrangement 17 – (23)

Net cash used in investing activities (1,325) (1,109)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these fi nancial statements.

Note 2020 2019
S$’000 S$’000

Financing activities
Dividends paid to:
  Owners of the Company 35 (1,483) (377)
  Non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (214) (144)
Interest paid (39) (51)
Purchase of treasury shares 22 (9) –
Repayment of bank borrowings (29) (28)
Repayment of lease liabilities (1,739) (1,280)
Repayment to directors (47) (85)

Net cash used in fi nancing activities (3,560) (1,965)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,966 (355)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fi nancial year 25,646 26,001

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fi nancial year 21 27,612 25,646

* Denotes amount less than S$1,000

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from fi nancing activities not disclosed in notes:

Financing cash outfl ows Non-cash movements

1 January 
2020 Interest paid

Repayment 
made, net Acquisition

Gain on 
lease 

modifi cation
Interest 
expense

31 December 
2020

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Liabilities
Bank borrowing 621 (14) (29) – – 14 592
Lease liabilities 3,189 (25) (1,739) 1,210 (160) 126 2,601
Amount due to 
 director 47 – (47) – – – –

Financing cash outfl ows Non-cash movements
1 January 

2019 Interest paid
Repayment 
made, net Acquisition

Interest 
expense

31 December 
2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Liabilities
Bank borrowing 649 (19) (28) – 19 621
Lease liabilities 2,087 (32) (1,280) 2,292 122 3,189
Amount due to director 132 – (85) – – 47
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying fi nancial statements.

1. General

 Advancer Global Limited (the “Company”) (Registration Number 201602681W) is a limited liability company 
incorporated and domiciled in Singapore and listed on the Catalist Board of the Singapore Exchange 
Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”).

 The registered offi ce and principal place of business of the Company is located at 135 Jurong Gateway Road, 
#05-317, Singapore 600135.

 The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.

 The principal activities of the respective subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 13 to the fi nancial statements.

 The fi nancial statements of the Group, and the statement of fi nancial position and the statement of changes in 
equity of the Company for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020 were authorised for issue by the Board 
of Directors at the date of the Directors’ Statement.

2. Summary of signifi cant accounting policies

 2.1 Basis of preparation

  The fi nancial statements of the Group and the statement of fi nancial position and statement of changes 
in equity of the Company have been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore 
Companies Act, Chapter 50 and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)s”) 
including related Interpretations of SFRS(I) (“SFRS(I) INTs”) and are prepared on the historical cost 
basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

  The individual fi nancial statements of each Group entity are measured and presented in the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). The fi nancial 
statements of the Group and the statement of fi nancial position and statement of changes in equity 
of the Company are presented in Singapore dollar (“S$”) which is also the functional currency of the 
Company, and all values presented are rounded to the nearest thousand (“S$’000”), unless otherwise 
indicated.

  In the current fi nancial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised SFRS(I)s and SFRS(I) INTs 
that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. 
The adoption of these new or revised SFRS(I)s and SFRS(I) INTs did not result in changes to the Group’s 
and Company’s accounting policies, and has no material effect on the current or prior year’s fi nancial 
statement and is not expected to have a material effect on future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

2. Summary of signifi cant accounting policies (Continued)

 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

  SFRS(I)s and SFRS(I) INTs issued but not yet effective

  At the date of authorisation of these fi nancial statements, the following SFRS(I)s and SFRS(I) INTs that 
are relevant to the Group were issued but not yet effective:

SFRS (I) Title

Effective date 
(annual periods 

beginning
on or after)

SFRS(I) 16 Amendment to SFRS(I) 16: Covid-19- Related Rent 
 Concessions

1 June 2020

SFRS(I) 3 Amendments to SFRS(I) 3: Reference to the Conceptual 
 Framework

1 January 2022

SFRS(I) 1-16 Amendments to SFRS(I) 1-16: Property, Plant and Equipment
 – Proceeds before Intended Use

1 January 2022

SFRS(I) 1-37 Amendments to SFRS(I) 1-37: Onerous Contracts – Cost of
 Fulfi lling a Contract

1 January 2022

SFRS(I) 1-1 Amendments to SFRS(I) 1-1: Classifi cation of Liabilities as 
 Current or Non- current

1 January 2023

SFRS(I) 10,
 SFRS(I) 1-28

Amendments to SFRS(I) 10 and SFRS(I) 1-28: Sale or
 Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
 Associate or Joint Venture

To be determined

Various Amendments to SFRS(I) 9, SFRS(I) 1-39, SFRS(I) 7, SFRS(I) 4,
 SFRS(I) 16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2

1 January 2021

Various Annual Improvements to SFRS(I)s 2018-2020 1 January 2022

  Consequential amendments were also made to various standards as a result of these new or revised 
standards.

  The Group does not intend to early adopt any of the above new or revised standards, interpretations 
and amendments to the existing standards. Management anticipates that the adoption of the 
aforementioned new or revised standards will not have a material impact on the fi nancial statements of 
the Group and Company in the period of their initial adoption.

 2.2 Basis of consolidation

  The fi nancial statements of the Group comprise the fi nancial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) (i) over which the Group has power 
and the Group is (ii) able to use such power to (iii) affect its exposure, or rights, to variable returns from 
then through its involvement with them.

  The Group reassesses whether it controls the subsidiaries if facts and circumstance indicate that there 
are changes to the one or more of the three elements of control.

  When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it still has power over the 
investee when the voting rights are suffi cient, after considering all relevant facts and circumstances, 
to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group 
considers, among others, the extent of its voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings 
of the other vote holders, currently exercisable substantive potential voting rights held by all parties, 
rights arising from contractual arrangements and voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

2. Summary of signifi cant accounting policies (Continued)

 2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

  Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to the 
effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate.

  Intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cashfl ows relating to intragroup 
transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

  The fi nancial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the fi nancial statements are 
prepared for the same reporting date as that of the Company. Where necessary, accounting policies of 
subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

  Non-controlling interests are identifi ed separately from the Group’s equity therein. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at fair value or at their 
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifi able net assets. Subsequent to acquisition, 
the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition 
plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Losses in the subsidiary 
are attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a 
defi cit balance.

  Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted 
for as equity transactions. Any differences between the amount by which the non-controlling interests 
are adjusted to refl ect the changes in the relative interests in the subsidiary and the fair value of the 
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the 
Company.

  When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, the profi t or loss on disposal is calculated as the 
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value 
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and 
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in 
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for (i.e. reclassifi ed to profi t 
or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings) in the same manner as would be required if 
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed off. The fair value of any investments retained in the 
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for 
subsequent accounting under SFRS(I) 9 Financial Instruments (“SFRS(I) 9”) or, when applicable, the 
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

  Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment loss that has been recognised in 
profi t or loss in the Company’s separate fi nancial statements.

 2.3 Business combinations

  The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method when the acquired set 
of activities and assets constitute a business. When determining the acquired set of activities and 
assets that constitute a business, the Group assesses whether the acquired set of activities and assets 
includes, at a minimum, an input and substantive process, which together contribute to the creation of 
outputs.

  The Group has the option to apply a “concentration test” as a simplifi ed assessment to determine 
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group makes the election 
separately for each transaction or other event. The concentration test is met if substantially all of the 
fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifi able asset or group of similar 
identifi able assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

2. Summary of signifi cant accounting policies (Continued)

 2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

  The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of 
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange 
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group determines whether to measure 
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at proportionate share in the recognised 
amounts of the acquiree’s identifi able net assets. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profi t or 
loss as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

  The acquiree’s identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for 
recognition under SFRS(I) 3 Business Combinations (“SFRS(I) 3”) are recognised at their fair values 
at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classifi ed as held 
for sale in accordance with SFRS(I) 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 
(“SFRS(I) 5”), which are recognised and measured at the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell.

  The Group recognises any contingent consideration to be transferred for the acquiree at the fair 
value on the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classifi ed as equity is not remeasured and its 
subsequent settlement shall be accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classifi ed as an 
asset or liability that is a fi nancial instrument and within the scope of SFRS(I) 9, is measured at fair 
value with the changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profi t or loss in accordance with 
SFRS(I) 9. Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of SFRS(I) 9 is measured at fair 
value at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profi t or loss.

  Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held interests in the 
acquired entity are remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date the Group attains 
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profi t or loss. Amounts arising from 
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other 
comprehensive income are reclassifi ed to profi t or loss, where such treatment would be appropriate if 
that interest were disposed off.

  The acquiree’s identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for 
recognition under SFRS(I) 3 are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

   deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit 
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with SFRS(I) 1-12 Income Taxes and 
SFRS(I) 1-19 Employee Benefi ts respectively;

   liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-
based payment awards are measured in accordance with SFRS(I) 2 Share-based Payment; and

   assets (or disposal groups) that are classifi ed as held for sale in accordance with SFRS(I) 5 are 
measured in accordance with that Standard.

  If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period 
in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the 
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period 
(see below), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to refl ect new information obtained about 
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the 
amounts recognised as of that date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

2. Summary of signifi cant accounting policies (Continued)

 2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

  The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains 
complete information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date, and is 
subject to a maximum of one year.

  Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset at the acquisition date and is initially 
measured at cost, being the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer previously held equity interest (if 
any) in the entity over net acquisition-date fair value amounts of the identifi able assets acquired and 
the liabilities assumed.

  If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifi able net assets 
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the 
excess is recognised immediately in profi t or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

  For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating 
units expected to benefi t from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which 
goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an 
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less 
than the carrying amount of the unit (including the goodwill), the impairment loss is allocated fi rst to 
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit 
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised 
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

  The attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of gain or loss on disposal of the 
subsidiary or jointly controlled entity.

 2.4 Revenue recognition

  The Group is principally in the business of providing Employment Services, Building Management 
Services and Security Services (Note 34), sales of electronic products and provision of related 
installation services. Revenue from contracts with its customers is recognised when or as the 
Group satisfi es a performance obligation by transferring a promised goods or service generated in 
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities to its customer, at a transaction price that refl ects 
the consideration the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods or service and that is 
allocated to that performance obligation. The goods or service is transferred when or as the customer 
obtains control of the goods or service.

  Service income

  (a) Building Management Services and Security Services

   Revenue from a contract to provide Building Management Services and Security Services 
is recognised over time, using the output method to measure progress towards complete 
satisfaction of the service, as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefi ts 
provided by the Group. In the application of the output method, the Group has used appraisals 
of results achieved method. Accordingly, in view of the nature of the service income on contract 
basis, management considers that this output method is most appropriate in measuring the 
progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations under SFRS(I) 15 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“SFRS(I) 15”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

2. Summary of signifi cant accounting policies (Continued)

 2.4 Revenue recognition (Continued)

  Service income (Continued)

  (a) Building Management Services and Security Services (Continued)

   Revenue from adhoc in Building Management Services and Security Services is recognised 
at a point in time when the service has been provided and the right to consideration has been 
earned.

   Advance consideration received from customers for services not yet provided is recognised as a 
contract liability (Note 27).

  (b) Employment Services

   Revenue from Employment Services in relation to provision of sourcing, employment and 
training of foreign domestic workers (“FDWs”) is recognised at a point in time when the service 
has been provided and the right to consideration has been earned.

   Revenue from administrative services in Employment Services Business is recognised over time, 
using the output method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the services.

   Advance consideration received from customers for services not yet provided is recognised as a 
contract liability (Note 27).

  Sales of electronic products and face masks

  The Group sells a range of electronic products in relation to provision of security services, Internet 
of Things (“IoT”) sensors and face masks to its customers. Revenue is recognised at a point in time 
when control of the goods is transferred to the end customers (i.e. when the goods are delivered in 
accordance with the terms and conditions and signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 
have been transferred to the customer).

  Installation services

  The Group provides installation services, which includes running of electrical cables, for security 
systems and Smart Toilet System that are either sold separately or bundled together with the sale of 
electronic products in relation to provision of security services and building management solutions 
to customers. The installation service can be obtained from other providers and does not signifi cantly 
customise or modify the electronic products.

  The bundled sale of installation services and electronic products comprises two performance 
obligations because the promises to provide the installation services and to transfer the electronic 
products are capable of being distinct and separately identifi able. Accordingly, the Group allocates 
the transaction price based on the relative stand-alone selling prices of the installation services and 
electronic products.

  Revenue from the installation service is recognised at a point in time upon completion of installation 
and acceptance by customers.

  The customer is invoiced on a milestone payment schedule. If the value of the goods or services 
transferred by the Group exceeds the payment, an accrued receivable is recognised. If the payment 
exceeds the value of the goods transferred, an advanced consideration from customer is recognised 
under contract liabilities from contract with customers.
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 2.5 Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs are recognised in profi t or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

 2.6 Retirement benefi t costs

  Payments to defi ned contribution retirement benefi t plans are charged as an expense as they fall 
due. Payments made to state-managed retirement benefi t schemes, such as the Singapore Central 
Provident Fund, are dealt with as payments to defi ned contribution plans where the Group’s obligations 
under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defi ned contribution retirement benefi t plan.

 2.7 Employee leave entitlements

  Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is 
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to 
the end of the fi nancial year.

 2.8 Share-based payments

  The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at fair value of the equity instruments (excluding the effect of non 
market-based resting conditions) at the date of grant. Details regarding the determination of the fair 
value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in Note 24. The fair value determined at 
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the 
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of the number of equity instruments that will eventually 
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. At the end of each fi nancial 
year, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact 
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised over the remaining vesting period with a 
corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled share options reserve.

  The policy described above is applied to all equity-settled share-based payments that were granted on 
20 April 2017. No amount has been recognised in the fi nancial statements in respect of other equity-
settled share-based payments.

  The transfer of the balance in the share option reserve to share capital or treasury shares upon 
exercise of the option and the transfer of the balance in the share option reserve to retained earnings 
upon expiry of the option are not mandatory and may be kept as a separate reserve upon expiry or 
exercise of the option.

 2.9 Income tax

  Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

  The tax currently payable is based on taxable profi t for the fi nancial year. Taxable profi t differs from 
profi t as reported profi t or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or tax deductible. The 
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted in countries where the Company and subsidiaries operate by the end of the 
fi nancial year.
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 2.9 Income tax (Continued)

  Deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the fi nancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profi t, 
and are accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profi ts will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or 
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a 
transaction that affects neither the taxable profi t nor the accounting profi t.

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognised on taxable temporary differences arising on investments in 
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is 
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

  A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profi t will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each fi nancial year and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that suffi cient taxable profi ts will be available to allow all or part 
of the asset to be recovered.

  Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability 
is settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the fi nancial year and based on the tax consequence that will follow 
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the fi nancial year, to recover or settle the 
carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, or 
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which signifi cant 
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

  Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profi t or loss, except when they 
relate to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also recognised directly 
in equity, or where they arise from the initial accounting for a business combination. In the case of a 
business combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill or determining the 
excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifi able assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities over cost.

 2.10 Dividends

  Equity dividends are recognised as a liability when they become legally payable. Interim dividends are 
recorded in the fi nancial year in which they are declared payable. Final dividends are recorded in the 
fi nancial year in which dividends are approved by shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised 
in equity.
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 2.11 Foreign currency transactions and translation

  Foreign currency transactions are translated into the individual entities’ respective functional 
currencies at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of each fi nancial 
year, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing as of 
the end of the fi nancial year. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 
retranslated.

  Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary 
items are included in profi t or loss for the year. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation 
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profi t or loss for the year except for 
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are 
recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or 
loss is also recognised directly in equity through other comprehensive income.

  Exchange differences relating to assets under construction for future productive use, are included in 
the cost of those assets where they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency 
borrowings.

  For the purpose of presenting consolidated fi nancial statements, the assets and liabilities of the 
Group’s foreign operations (including comparatives) are expressed in Singapore dollars using exchange 
rates prevailing at the end of the fi nancial year. Income and expense items (including comparatives) are 
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fl uctuated signifi cantly 
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. 
Exchange differences arising, if any, are classifi ed as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation 
reserve. Such translation differences are recognised in profi t or loss in the period in which the foreign 
operation is disposed off.

  On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign 
entities (including monetary items that, in substance, form part of the net investment in foreign 
entities), and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, 
are taken to the foreign currency translation reserve.

  Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as 
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

 2.12 Property, plant and equipment

  Leasehold building held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative 
purposes, is shown at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation, and where applicable, 
accumulated impairment losses.

  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and any costs 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management. Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs 
are included as part of the cost of property, plant and equipment if the obligation for dismantlement, 
removal or restoration is incurred as a consequence of acquiring or using the property, plant and 
equipment.
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 2.12 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

  Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is added to the carrying amount 
of the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefi ts associated with the item will fl ow 
to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance 
expenses are recognised in profi t or loss when incurred.

  Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the 
straight-line method, on the following bases:

   Leasehold building 46 years
   Equipment 5 years
   Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years
   Computers and offi ce equipment 3 to 5 years
   Renovation, furniture and fi ttings 3 to 5 years

  For right-of-use assets for which ownership of the underlying asset is not transferred to the Group by 
the end of the lease term, depreciation is charged over the lease term, using the straight-line method. 
The lease periods are disclosed in Note 17.

  The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

  The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted as 
appropriate, at the end of each fi nancial year.

  The gain or loss, being the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset, arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in 
profi t or loss.

  Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment are retained in the fi nancial statements until they are 
no longer in use.

 2.13 Intangible assets

  Acquired intangible assets

  Acquired intangible assets are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a 
business combination is their fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent to initial recognition, the 
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses.

  Acquired intangible assets have either fi nite or indefi nite useful life.

  Intangible assets with fi nite useful life are amortised over its useful life, using its straight-line method, 
over the following bases:

   Customer contracts and contractual customer relationships 1 to 5 years
   Non-contractual customer relationships 2 to 10 years

  The amortisation charge is recognised in profi t or loss and is assessed for impairment when there 
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The estimated amortisation period and 
amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end of each fi nancial year.
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 2.13 Intangible assets (Continued)

  Acquired intangible assets (Continued)

  The intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefi ts are expected 
from its use or disposal, with any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset, 
being the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, 
recognised in profi t or loss.

  Operation system, operational web portal and mobile application

  Operation system, operational web portal and mobile application are initially measured at cost. 
Following initial recognition, operation system, operational web portal and mobile application are 
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The operation 
system, operational web portal and mobile application are amortised to profi t or loss over its estimated 
useful lives of 3 years and 5 years, respectively.

 2.14 Investments in associates

  An associate is an entity over which the Group has signifi cant infl uence, being the power to participate 
in the fi nancial and operating policy decisions of the entity but is not control or of joint control of these 
policies, and generally accompanying a shareholding of 20% or more of the voting power.

  On acquisition of the associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the 
net fair value of the associate identifi able assets and liabilities is accounted as goodwill and is included 
in the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the 
associate identifi able assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment is included as income in the 
determination of the Group’s share of the associate’s profi t or loss in the reporting period in which the 
investment is acquired. Investments in associates are carried at cost less any impairment loss that has 
been recognised in profi t or loss in the Company’s separate fi nancial statements.

  The results, assets and liabilities of an associate are incorporated in these fi nancial statements using 
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classifi ed as held for sale, in which 
case it is accounted for under SFRS(I) 5 from the date on which the investee become an associate. 
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition 
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment loss of individual 
investments. The Group’s share of losses in an associate in excess of the Group’s interest in that 
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net 
investment in the associate) are not recognised, unless the Group has incurred legal or constructive 
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Distributions received from the associate 
reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Group’s 
interest in an associate is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for goodwill 
arising on such acquisitions (see above).

  Unrealised profi ts and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that 
there is no impairment.

  The Company has accounted for its investments in associates at cost in its separate financial 
statements.
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 2.15 Impairment of non-fi nancial assets excluding goodwill

  The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-fi nancial assets as at each reporting date to assess 
for any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of 
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

  The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to 
sell and its value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash fl ows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refl ects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specifi c to the asset.

  An impairment loss for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverable 
amount is recognised immediately in profi t or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued 
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

  Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior fi nancial years. A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profi t or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

 2.16 Financial instruments

  The Group recognises a fi nancial asset or a fi nancial liability in its statement of fi nancial position when, 
and only when, the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

  Effective interest method

  The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a fi nancial instrument 
and allocating the interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees on points 
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the fi nancial instrument, or where appropriate, 
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the fi nancial instrument. Income and expense are 
recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those fi nancial instruments at 
fair value through profi t or loss.

  Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the 
effective interest rate applicable.

  Financial assets

  Initial recognition and measurement

  All fi nancial assets are recognised on trade date – the date on which the Group commits to purchase 
or sell the asset. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a signifi cant fi nancing 
component or for which the Group applies a practical expedient, all fi nancial assets are initially 
measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those fi nancial assets classifi ed as at fair 
value through profi t or loss, which are initially measured at fair value. Such trade receivables that do 
not contain a signifi cant fi nancing component or for which the Group applies a practical expedient are 
measured at transaction price as defi ned in SFRS(I) 15 in Note 2.4.
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 2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

  Financial assets (Continued)

  Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

  Financial assets are classifi ed as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and fair value through profi t or loss (“FVTPL”). The classifi cation at 
initial recognition depends on the Group’s business model for managing the fi nancial assets and the 
contractual cash fl ow characteristics of the fi nancial asset.

  The Group’s business model refers to how the Group manages its fi nancial assets in order to generate 
cash fl ows which determines whether cash fl ows will result from collecting contractual cash fl ows, 
selling fi nancial assets or both.

  The Group determines whether the asset’s contractual cash fl ows are solely payments of principal and 
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding to determine the classifi cation of the fi nancial 
assets.

  Financial assets at amortised cost

  A fi nancial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if the fi nancial asset is held within a 
business model whose objective is to hold fi nancial assets in order to collect contractual cash fl ows 
and the contractual terms of the fi nancial asset give rise on specifi ed dates to cash fl ows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  Subsequent to initial recognition, the fi nancial asset at amortised cost are measured using the effective 
interest method and is subject to impairment. Gains or losses are recognised in profi t or loss when the 
asset is derecognised, modifi ed or impaired.

  Financial assets held at FVTOCI

  A fi nancial asset that is an investment in debt instrument is subsequently measured at FVTOCI 
if the fi nancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash fl ows and selling the fi nancial assets and the contractual terms of the fi nancial asset 
give rise on specifi ed dates to cash fl ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. Gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, except 
for impairment gains or losses, foreign exchange gains or losses and interest which are recognised in 
profi t or loss.

  At initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election to classify its investment in equity 
instruments, for which the equity instrument is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration 
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which SFRS(I) 3, as subsequently measured at 
FVTOCI so as to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. The election 
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

  Upon derecognition, other than the aforementioned equity instruments for which their subsequent 
cumulative fair value changes would be transferred to accumulated profi ts, the cumulative fair value 
changes recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profi t or loss.

  Dividends from equity instruments are recognised in profi t or loss only when the Group’s right to 
receive payment of the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefi ts associated with 
the dividend will fl ow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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 2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

  Financial assets (Continued)

  Financial assets at FVTPL

  A fi nancial asset is subsequently measured at FVTPL if the fi nancial asset is a fi nancial asset held for 
trading, is not measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, or is irrevocably elected at initial recognition 
to be designated FVTPL if, by designating the fi nancial asset as FVTPL, eliminates or signifi cantly 
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring 
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

  Gains or losses are recognised in profi t or loss.

  Impairment of fi nancial assets

  The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on fi nancial assets measured 
at amortised cost and debt instruments measured at FVTOCI. At each reporting date, the Group 
assesses whether the credit risk on a fi nancial asset has increased signifi cantly since initial recognition 
by assessing the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the fi nancial 
instrument. Where the fi nancial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date, the 
Group assumes that the credit risk on a fi nancial asset has not increased signifi cantly since initial 
recognition.

  The Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking information that is available without 
undue cost or effort as well as past due information when determining whether credit risk has 
increased signifi cantly since initial recognition.

  Where the credit risk on that fi nancial instrument has increased signifi cantly since initial recognition, 
the Group measures the loss allowance for a fi nancial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime 
ECL. Where the credit risk on that fi nancial instrument has not increased signifi cantly since initial 
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that fi nancial instrument at an amount equal to 
12-month ECL.

  The Group uses a practical expedient to recognise the ECL for trade receivables, which is to measure 
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL using an allowance matrix derived based on 
historical credit loss experience adjusted for current conditions and forecasts of future economic 
conditions.

  The amount of ECL or reversal thereof that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting 
date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognised in profi t or loss.

  The Group directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a fi nancial asset when the entity has no 
reasonable expectations of recovering a fi nancial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

  For details on the Group’s accounting policy for its impairment of fi nancial assets, refer to Note 31.
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 2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

  Financial assets (Continued)

  Derecognition of fi nancial assets

  The Group derecognises a fi nancial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash fl ows from the 
fi nancial asset expire, or it transfers the fi nancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the fi nancial asset and continues to control the transferred 
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts 
it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a 
transferred fi nancial asset, the Group continues to recognise the fi nancial asset and also recognises a 
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds receivables.

  Financial liabilities and equity instruments

  Classifi cation as debt or equity

  Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by Group are classifi ed according to the substance 
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the defi nitions of a fi nancial liability and an equity 
instrument.

  Equity instruments

  An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 
issue costs.

  Ordinary share capital

  Ordinary share capital is classifi ed as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 
ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity.

  Financial liabilities

  Initial recognition and measurement

  All fi nancial liabilities are recognised on trade date – the date on which the Group commits to purchase 
or sell the asset. All fi nancial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, minus transaction costs, 
except for those fi nancial liabilities classifi ed as at fair value through profi t or loss, which are initially 
measured at fair value.

  Financial liabilities are classifi ed as either fi nancial liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss or 
other fi nancial liabilities.

  Financial liabilities are classifi ed as at fair value through profi t or loss if the fi nancial liability is either 
held for trading or it is designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities classifi ed as at 
fair value through profi t or loss comprise derivatives that are not designated or do not qualify for hedge 
accounting.
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 2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

  Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

  Other fi nancial liabilities

  Trade and other payables

  Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, where applicable, using the effective interest method, with 
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. A gain or loss is recognised in profi t or loss 
when the liability is derecognised and through the amortisation process.

  Borrowings

  Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Any difference between the proceeds 
(net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term 
of the borrowings in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note 2.5 
above). A gain or loss is recognised in profi t or loss when the liability is derecognised and through the 
amortisation process.

  Financial guarantee contracts

  The Company has issued corporate guarantees to banks for banking facilities granted by them to 
certain subsidiaries and these guarantees qualify as fi nancial guarantees because the Company is 
required to reimburse the banks if these subsidiaries breach any repayment terms.

  Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values plus transaction costs 
and subsequently at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance and the amount initially recognised 
less cumulative amortisation in accordance with SFRS(I) 15.

  Derecognition of fi nancial liabilities

  The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

  Offsetting of fi nancial instruments

  A financial asset and a financial liability shall be offset, and the net amount presented in the 
statements of fi nancial position when and only when, an entity:

  (a) currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

  (b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.
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 2.17 Inventories

  Inventories, comprising mainly chemical products, face masks, electronic products for sales, and other 
materials used for the daily operation, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 
comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have 
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated 
using weighted average methods. Net realisable value represents the net amount that the Group 
expects to realise from the sale of inventories in the ordinary course of business.

 2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with fi nancial institutions 
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignifi cant risk of changes 
in value. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash fl ows, cash and cash equivalents 
exclude deposits pledged with the fi nancial institutions as collateral which form an integral part of the 
Group’s cash management.

 2.19 Leases

  At inception of a contract, the Group assessed whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identifi ed asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration.

  Where a contract contains more than one lease component, the Group allocates the consideration 
in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative standalone price of the lease 
component. Where the contract contains non-lease components, the Group applied the practical 
expedient to not to separate non-lease components from lease components, and instead account for 
each lease component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component.

  The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date for all 
lease arrangement for which the Group is the lessee, except for leases which have lease term of 12 
months or less and leases of low value assets for which the Group applied the recognition exemption 
allowed under SFRS(I) 16 Leases. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payment as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

  The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease 
incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and 
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.

  The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the end of the lease term. When the lease transfers ownership of the 
underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset refl ects 
that the Group will exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the 
useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property, plant 
and equipment. The right-of-use asset is also reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for 
certain remeasurements of the lease liability, where applicable.

  Right-of-use assets are presented in Note 17.

  The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot 
be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

  The Group generally uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. To determine the 
incremental borrowing rate, the Group obtains a reference rate and makes certain adjustments to 
refl ect the terms of the lease and the asset leased.
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2. Summary of signifi cant accounting policies (Continued)

 2.19 Leases (Continued)

  The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

  - fi xed payments, including in-substance fi xed payments less any lease incentive receivable,

  - variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 
rate as at the commencement date,

  - amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,

  - the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, and

  - payments of penalties for terminating the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to terminate 
early and lease payments for an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to 
exercise an extension option.

  The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Group 
remeasures the lease liability when there is a change in the lease term due to a change in assessment 
of whether it will exercise a termination or extension or purchase option or due to a change in future 
lease payment resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine those payment.

  Where there is a remeasurement of the lease liability, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
right-of-use asset or in profi t or loss where there is a further reduction in the measurement of the 
lease liability and the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero.

  The Group as a lessor

  Where a contract contains more than one lease and/or non-lease component, the Group allocates the 
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative standalone price of 
the lease component.

  At the lease commencement date, the Group assess and classify each lease as either an operating 
lease or a fi nance lease. Leases are classifi ed as fi nance leases whenever the terms of the lease 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased assets to the 
lessee. All other leases are classifi ed as operating leases.

  Operating leases

  Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which 
use benefi t derived from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and 
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

  When the Group subleases its right-of-use assets, it accounts for its interest in the head lease and the 
sub-lease separately. It assesses its sublease with reference to the right-of- use asset arising from the 
head lease, instead of by reference to the underlying asset. If the head lease is a short-term lease to 
which the Group applied the short-term lease recognition exemption, it classifi es the sublease as an 
operating lease.

 2.20 Provisions

  Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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2. Summary of signifi cant accounting policies (Continued)

 2.20 Provisions (Continued)

  The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the fi nancial year, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash fl ows estimated to settle the 
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash fl ows, which is discounted 
using a pre-tax discount rate.

  When some or all of the economic benefi ts required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

  Changes in the estimated timing or amount of the expenditure or discount rate are recognised in profi t 
or loss as it arises.

 2.21 Government grants

  Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an expense, the grant is 
recognised as income in profi t or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the related costs, 
for which the grants are intended to compensate, is expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset, the 
grant is recognised as deferred capital grant on the statement of fi nancial position and is amortised to 
profi t or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalment.

  Non-monetary government grant is recognised at nominal amount.

 2.22 Contingencies

  A contingent liability is:

  (i) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confi rmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Group; or

  (ii) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

   (a) it is not probable that an outfl ow of resources embodying economic benefi ts will be 
required to settle the obligation; or

   (b) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with suffi cient reliability.

  A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confi rmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Group.

  Contingencies are not recognised on the statements of fi nancial position of the Group, except for 
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that are present obligations and which the fair 
value can be reliably determined.

 2.23 Segment reporting

  Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating 
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identifi ed as the group of 
executive directors and the chief executive offi cer who make strategic decisions.
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

 The Group made judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
that were not readily apparent from other sources in the application of the Group’s accounting policies. 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors 
that are considered to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from the estimates.

 3.1 Critical judgements made in applying the Group’s accounting policies

  Lease extension option included in lease contracts

  The Group has several lease contracts which include an extension option. In the assessment of 
whether to include or exclude the extension period in the lease term, the Company considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances that will create an economic incentive for it to exercise the extension 
option. After the lease commencement date, the Group only reassesses the lease term when there is a 
signifi cant event or change in circumstances that is within its control to affect whether it is reasonably 
certain to exercise the option.

  The Group did not include the extension option in the lease term because they are not reasonably 
certain that the Group would exercise the extension option.

 3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

  The estimates and assumptions that have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next fi nancial year are discussed below.

  Impairment of loan receivable from an associate, G3 Environmental Private Limited (“G3”)

  At the end of each fi nancial year, an assessment is made on whether there is indicator that the Group’s 
loan receivable from an associate is impaired. The Group also considers the forward-looking factors 
specifi c to the associate and the economic environment which could affect the ability of the associate 
to settle the loan, including, but not limited to the viability of the fi nancial support provided by its 
immediate holding company and other shareholder. If the fi nancial conditions of the associate were to 
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of its ability to make payments, allowances may be required.

  Based on the management accounts as at 31 December 2020, current liabilities and total liabilities of 
G3 and its subsidiaries (“G3 Group”) exceeded its current assets and total assets by S$8.3 million and 
S$2.8 million, respectively. In addition, G3 Group incurred a net profi t of S$0.3 million for the fi nancial 
period then ended.

  Given the above fi nancial condition of the associate, management assessed that there is a signifi cant 
increase in credit risk from initial recognition. Management assessed the ECL relating to the 
loan receivable from the associate based on lifetime ECL. The Group considered the ability of the 
associate to settle the loan on a repayable on demand basis, with reference to the viability of the 
fi nancial support provided by its immediate holding company and where the associate has obtained 
confi rmations from other shareholder not to demand for repayment of their respective proportionate 
shareholders’ loans for a period of 13 months from the date of authorisation for the issuance of 
the fi nancial statements. The Group also considered the profi t or loss forecast of G3 Group during 
the expected recovery period with reference to relevant and reliable forward-looking outlook and 
information, including their best estimate of the impact of COVID-19, specifi c to the associate and the 
economic environment which could affect the ability of the associate to settle the loan receivables.

  No allowance for impairment has been recognised as at 31 December 2020 (2019: S$Nil).
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

 3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

  Fair value of fi nancial instruments

  Where the fair values of fi nancial instruments recorded in the statement of fi nancial position cannot be 
derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques, including the discounted 
cash fl ow model. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where possible, 
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing the fair values. The 
judgements include considerations of liquidity and model inputs regarding the future financial 
performance of the investee, its risk profi le, and economic assumptions regarding the industry and 
geographical jurisdiction in which the investee operates. Changes in assumptions about these factors 
could affect the reported fair value of fi nancial instruments. The valuation of fi nancial instruments is 
described in more details in Note 32.

  Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and associates

  At the end of each fi nancial year, an assessment is made on whether there are indicators that the 
Group’s and the Company’s investments are impaired. Where applicable, the Group’s and the 
Company’s assessment are based on the estimation of the value-in-use of the assets defi ned in 
SFRS(I) 1-36 Impairment of Assets by forecasting the expected future cash fl ows for a period up to 
5 years, using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash fl ows. 
In determining the value-in-use, the Group has considered the expected and estimated impact of 
COVID-19 on the key inputs, including the discount rate and growth rate, as well as key assumptions 
applied. The Company’s carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 was 
S$11,486,000 (2019: S$11,478,000) (Note 13). The Group’s carrying amount of investments in associates 
as at 31 December 2020 was S$396,000 (2019: S$494,000) (Note 14).

  Impairment of goodwill

  The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least on an annual basis. Determining whether goodwill 
is impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) to which 
goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future 
cash fl ows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present 
value. The Group also took into consideration of the expected and estimated impact of COVID-19 on 
key inputs, including the discount rate and growth rate, as well as key assumptions applied. There was 
impairment loss S$145,000 (2019: S$Nil) recognised during the fi nancial year. The carrying amount of 
goodwill as at 31 December 2020 was S$5,440,000 (2019: S$5,585,000) (Note 11).

  Impairment of intangible assets

  At the end of each fi nancial year, an assessment is made on whether there are indicators that the 
Group’s intangible assets are impaired. The valuation and useful life of the intangible assets are 
based on management’s best estimates of future performance and periods over which value from the 
intangible asset will be realised. Management reassesses the estimated useful life at each period end, 
taking into account the period over which the intangible asset is expected to generate future economic 
benefi ts. The carrying amount of the Group’s intangible assets as at 31 December 2020 was S$666,000 
(2019: S$603,000) (Note 12).
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

 3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

  Measurement of ECL of trade receivables

  The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure ECL for trade receivables. The ECL rates are based 
on the Group’s historical loss experience of the customers, for the last 3 years prior to the reporting 
date for various customer groups that are assessed through the age analysis, adjusted for forward 
looking factors including their best estimate of the impact of COVID-19, specifi c to the debtors and 
the economic environment which could affect the ability of the debtors to settle the trade receivables. 
The Group adjusts the allowance matrix at each reporting date. Such estimation of the ECL rates may 
not be representative of the actual default in the future. The carrying amount of the Group’s trade 
receivables as at 31 December 2020 was S$11,491,000 (2019: S$11,918,000) (Note 20). The expected 
loss allowance on the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 was S$195,000 (2019: 
S$91,000) (Note 20).

  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

  The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives after taking 
into account of their estimated residual values. The estimated useful life refl ects management’s 
estimate of the period that the Group intends to derive future economic benefi ts from the use of the 
Group’s property, plant and equipment. The residual value refl ects management’s estimated amount 
that the Group would currently obtain from the disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated 
costs of disposal, as if the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of 
its useful life. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could affect 
the economics, useful lives and the residual values of these assets which could then consequentially 
impact future depreciation charges. The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment 
as at 31 December 2020 was S$2,296,000 (2019: S$2,379,000) (Note 16).

  Inventory valuation method

  Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Management reviews the Group’s 
inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving and obsolete inventory and identifi es items of 
inventory which have a market price, being the selling price quoted from the market of similar items 
that is lower than its carrying amount. Management then estimates the amount of inventory loss as 
an allowance on inventory, if any. Changes in demand levels, technological developments and pricing 
competition could affect the saleability and values of the inventory which could then consequentially 
impact the Group’s and the Company’s results, cash fl ows and fi nancial position. The carrying amount 
of the Group’s inventories as at 31 December 2020 was S$1,047,000 (2019: S$947,000). There was no 
allowance made on inventory for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

  Provision for income taxes

  The Group has exposure to income taxes in Singapore of which a portion of these taxes arose from 
certain transactions and computations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the 
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities of expected tax issues based on their best 
estimates of the likely taxes due. Where the fi nal tax outcome of these matters is different from the 
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax 
positions in the period in which such determination is made. The carrying amount of the Group’s and 
Company’s current tax payable as at 31 December 2020 were S$86,000 (2019: S$232,000) and S$5,000 
(2019: S$25,000) respectively.
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4. Revenue

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Service income (point in time)
− Employment Services 5,522 13,086
− Building Management Services 4,735 4,494
− Security Services 47 38

10,304 17,618
Service income (over time)
− Employment Services 28 68
− Building Management Services 25,792 32,742
− Security Services 19,323 19,238

45,143 52,048
Installation services (point in time) 243 459
Sales of goods (point in time) 701 819

56,391 70,944

 Transaction price allocated to the remaining unsatisfi ed or partially satisfi ed performance obligations on 31 
December 2020 which is expected to be realised after more than one year is approximately S$18,139,000 
(2019: S$16,336,000). This may be recognised as revenue subject to the complete satisfaction of the services 
with acceptance by customers and termination clauses within the contracts. The amount disclosed above 
does not include variable consideration which is constrained.

 The Group has applied the practical expedient permitted under SFRS(I) 15 for those performance obligations 
which are part of contracts that have an original expended duration of one year or less.

5. Other operating income

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Administrative fees received from subcontractors 6 25
Bad debts recovered * –
Dividend income 12 –
Foreign exchange gain, net 5 3
Fair value gain arising from unquoted fi nancial assets at FVTPL 12 –
Gain on bargain purchase arising from acquisition 325 –
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net – 35
Government credit schemes and government grants 9,316 878
Gain on lease modifi cation 6 –
Income from supplies to subcontractors 15 23
Interest income from advances to subcontractors 9 15
Interest income from fi xed deposits 236 339
Rental income 44 64
Reversal of loss allowance for receivables (trade) – 2
Refund of insurance charges 32 32
Others 12 32

10,030 1,448

 * Denotes amount less than S$1,000
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5. Other operating income (Continued)

 Government credit schemes and government grants consist of special employment credit, wage credit 
scheme, Jobs Support Schemes (“JSS”), property tax rebates, national serviceman relief, Absentee Payroll 
funding from Singapore Workforce Development Agency, grant under WorkPro programme from Singapore 
National Employers Federation, Skill Future funding from Skills Future Singapore Agency in connection 
to certifi able skills training courses, Capability Development Grant, Enterprise Development Grant and 
Productivity Solutions Grant from Enterprise Singapore.

 COVID-19 Government Assistance Schemes

 During the fi nancial year, to help businesses cope with the impact from COVID-19, the government introduced 
the JSS and property tax rebates.

 The JSS provides wage support to employers to help them retain their local employees (Singapore Citizens 
and Permanent Residents) during this period of economic uncertainty. JSS payouts are intended to offset 
local employees’ wages and help protect their jobs. Under the property tax rebates, the property owners of 
qualifying properties, depending on the property type, will be granted rebates of up to 100% on their property 
tax payable.

 The Group has been awarded certain government grants for which the grant income was recognised in 
other income. The grant income relating to JSS and property tax rebates amounted to S$7,705,000, and the 
corresponding expenses were recognised in staff costs under cost of sales and administrative expenses 
respectively. Grant receivables of S$1,850,000 were recognised in trade and other receivables (Note 20) and 
deferred government income of S$774,000 was recognised in trade and other payables (Note 26).

6. Finance expenses

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Interest expenses on:
− Leases 126 122
− Property loan 14 19

140 141
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7. Profi t before income tax

 The following charges/(credit) were included in the determination of profi t before income tax:

Group
Note 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Included in cost of sales:
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 19 1,003 814
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17 281 246
Insurance 274 726
Expenses relating to short-term leases 460 160
Reversal of provision for warranties 26 (1) (7)
Recruitment expenses 1,827 5,362
Staff costs (excluding key management personnel remuneration) 8 29,070 32,884
Subcontractors’ fees 8,888 11,502

Included in administrative expenses:
Audit fees to auditors of the Company:
- Current fi nancial year 233 268
- Under-provision in previous fi nancial year 2 –
Non-audit fees to auditors of the Company 42 80
Advertising expenses 138 434
Loss allowance for receivables (trade) 20 104 58
Amortisation of intangible assets 12 279 596
Bad debts written-off 15 14
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16 529 507
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17 1,404 1,055
Deposit forfeited on proposed acquisition – 100
Directors’ fees 30 167 150
Fair value loss arising from quoted fi nancial assets at FVTPL 15 9 –
Impairment loss of goodwill 11 145 –
Insurance 166 156
Key management personnel remuneration 30 4,574 3,192
Expenses relating to short-term leases 249 592
Expenses relating to low-value assets 3 7
Property, plant and equipment written-off 16 12
Share option expenses 8 20
Staff costs (excluding key management personnel remuneration) 8 7,466 7,682
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8. Staff costs (excluding key management personnel remuneration)

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Cost of sales
Salaries, allowances and other benefi ts 26,509 30,277
Defi ned contribution plan 2,561 2,607

29,070 32,884
Administrative expenses
Salaries, allowances and other benefi ts 6,775 6,980
Defi ned contribution plan 691 702

7,466 7,682
Total staff costs 36,536 40,566

9. Income tax (credit)/expense

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Current income tax
− Current fi nancial year 34 226
− Over-provision in prior fi nancial years (15) (33)

19 193
Deferred income tax (Note 18)

− Origination and reversal of temporary differences (45) (53)
− Over-provision in prior fi nancial years (10) (15)

(55) (68)
Total tax (credit)/expense (36) 125

 The Group is incorporated in Singapore and accordingly is subject to income tax rate of 17% (2019: 17%). 
There were no changes in the enterprise income tax rate in the current fi nancial year from the previous 
fi nancial year.
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9. Income tax (credit)/expense (Continued)

 Reconciliation of effective tax rate is as follows:

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Profi t before income tax 4,951 562
Share of losses from equity-accounted for associates, net of taxation 98 98
Profi t before income tax and share of losses from equity-accounted for
 associates, net of taxation 5,049 660

Income tax at statutory rate 858 112
Tax effects of:

− Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 317 409
− Income not subject to tax (1,353) (31)
− Tax incentive and special allowance (122) (145)
− Tax exemptions and rebates (62) (235)
− Over-provision in prior fi nancial years (25) (48)
− Unrecognised deferred tax benefi ts 550 121
− Others (199) (58)

Total tax (credit)/expense (36) 125

 The Singapore Government has announced that companies will receive 25% Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) 
rebate that is subject to a cap of S$15,000 for the Year of Assessment 2020.

10. Earnings per share

 Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profi t for the fi nancial year attributable to 
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the fi nancial 
year. The following table refl ects the profi t and share data used in the computation of basic earnings per 
share:

Group
2020 2019

Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share (profi t for
 the fi nancial year attributable to owners of the Company) (S$’000) 4,525 471
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for basic and
 diluted earnings per share (’000) 251,347 251,349
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) 1.80 0.19

 The basic and diluted earnings per share is the same as there were no potentially dilutive instruments.

 Whilst there were 6,250,000 warrants outstanding as at 31 December 2019, the warrants were, given their 
exercise price of S$0.45, not considered to be dilutive for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2019. The 
warrants have expired on 16 May 2020 and were not exercised at expiry date.
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10. Earnings per share (Continued)

 Whilst there were 908,000 share options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 960,000 
share options), the share options were granted at an exercise price of S$0.40 per share (31 December 2019: 
S$0.40 per share) and are not considered to be dilutive for the fi nancial years ended 31 December 2020 and 
31 December 2019.

 The weighted average number of ordinary shares for fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020 was computed 
based on the purchase of 30,000 and 54,000 treasury shares by the Company on 21 December 2020 and 22 
December 2020 respectively.

11. Goodwill on consolidation

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Cost:
At 1 January 5,585 5,489
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary – 96
Impairment loss (145) –
At 31 December 5,440 5,585

 Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated, at acquisition, to the CGU that are expected to 
benefi t from those business combinations. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Ashtree International Pte. Ltd. 115 115
Country Cousins Pte. Ltd. and Our Express Pte. Ltd. (1) – 242
Country Cousins Pte. Ltd. 97 –
Newman & Goh Property Consultants Pte Ltd 1,115 1,115
Newman & Associates Pte. Ltd. 66 66
World Clean Facility Services Pte. Ltd. 33 33
Premier Group (2) 4,014 4,014

5,440 5,585

 (1) Country Cousins Pte. Ltd. and Our Express Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as Envirocare Landscape (S) Pte. Ltd.) have been 
allocated as one CGU in the previous fi nancial year.

 (2) Premier Group – Green Management Pte. Ltd., Premier Eco-Care Pte. Ltd. and Prestige Enviro-Care Pte. Ltd. have been 
allocated as one CGU.

 During the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2019, goodwill with carrying amount of S$97,000 as of the end 
of the previous fi nancial year was acquired through the purchase of Country Cousins Pte. Ltd. (Note 13(c)) in 
the Building Management Services Business Segment.
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11. Goodwill on consolidation (Continued)

 Impairment testing of goodwill

 The Group tests CGU for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication for impairment.

 The Group has measured the recoverable amount of the CGU based on 5-years cash fl ows projections 
approved by the Board of Directors. Key assumptions on which management has based its cash fl ow 
projections for the respective periods of the signifi cant CGU are as follows:

Premier Group
Newman & Goh Property 

Consultants Pte Ltd
2020 2019 2020 2019

Growth rates 0.9% to 1.3% 0% to 1.4%
Actual

contracts
Actual

contracts
Pre-tax discount rate 9.78% 10.65% 10.00% 7.64%

 Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations

 Growth rates – The forecasted revenue growth rates used are based on contractual customers wherein 
contracts are mostly with a one to two-years term and automatic renewal clause relevant to the CGUs and 
regular customers, taking into account of the forecasted revenue growth rate relevant to the environment 
where the CGUs operate in.

 Discount rates – The discount rate used is based on the weighted average cost of the CGU’s capital (the 
“WACC”), adjusted for the specifi c circumstances of the CGU and based on management’s experience, and re-
grossed back to arrive at the pre-tax rate.

 Management is of the view that any reasonable possible change in any of the above key assumptions is not 
likely to materially cause the CGU’s carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

 During the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020, an impairment loss of S$145,000 was recognised for 
goodwill relating to Envirocare Landscape (S) Pte. Ltd. (“Envirocare”) due to Envirocare’s dormant status as 
at 31 December 2020. Envirocare has also been renamed as Our Express Pte. Ltd. and changed its principal 
activity to online sales of facility management services and products with effect from 14 July 2020.
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12. Intangible assets

Group

Customer 
contracts and 

contractual 
customer 

relationships(1)

Non-
contractual 
customer 

relationships(2)

Operation 
system, 

operational 
web portal 
and mobile 

application(3) Total
S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Cost
At 1 January 2019 2,506 304 32 2,842
Additions – – 122 122
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 13(c)) 65 – – 65
At 31 December 2019 2,571 304 154 3,029
Additions – – 334 334
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 13(d)) – 8 – 8
At 31 December 2020 2,571 312 488 3,371

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2019 1,734 85 11 1,830
Amortisation for the fi nancial year 538 41 17 596
At 31 December 2019 2,272 126 28 2,426
Amortisation for the fi nancial year 179 37 63 279
At 31 December 2020 2,451 163 91 2,705

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 120 149 397 666

At 31 December 2019 299 178 126 603

 (1) Customer contracts and contractual customer relationships were acquired in business combinations during the fi nancial 
years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2019.

 (2) Cost of non-contractual customer relationships is attributable to long-term relationship with its customers.

 (3) Cost is attributable to the development of (i) operational web portal for Group’s Employment Services Business, and (ii) 
mobile application for Group’s Building Management Services Business in the previous fi nancial years. During FY2020, the 
Group completed development of a dashboard and operation system for property management services and pest control 
services respectively.

13. Investments in subsidiaries

Company
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Investments in subsidiaries, at cost 11,371 11,371
Deemed investment arising from employees share options provided to
 employees of subsidiaries 115 107

11,486 11,478
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13. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

 The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Effective equity held
by the Company

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities 2020 2019
% %

Held directly by the Company
Advancer Global Manpower Pte. Ltd. (1) Investment holding 100 100

Advancer Global Facility Pte. Ltd. Business and management consultancy
 services / Investment holding

100 100

Advancer Global Security Pte. Ltd. (1) Investment holding 100 100

Held through Advancer Global Manpower Pte. Ltd.
Advancer Nation Pte. Ltd. (1) Business and management consultancy

 services / Investment holding
100 100

APAC Cities Employment Pte. Ltd. (1) Maid agencies / Employment agencies 
 (excluding maid agencies)

100 100

Enreach Employment Pte. Ltd. Maid agencies / Employment agencies
 (excluding maid agencies)

100 100

Nation Human Resources Pte. Ltd. Maid agencies / Manpower contracting
 services (excluding IT manpower)

100 100

Nation Employment Pte Ltd
 (“Nation Employment”)

Maid agencies / Building-cleaning
 services (including janitorial service)

100 100
(Note a)

Held through Advancer Global Facility Pte. Ltd.

Our Express Pte. Ltd. (Formerly
  known as Envirocare Landscape

(S) Pte. Ltd.) (“Our Express”) (1)

Retail sale via Internet 100
(Note b)

76

First Stewards Private Limited Building-cleaning services (including
 janitorial service)

100 100

Green Management Pte. Ltd. (1) Pest control services not in connection
  with agriculture (pest control, fumigation 

and other ecological care services)

100 100

Master Clean Facility Services
 Pte. Ltd.

Building-cleaning services (including
  janitorial service) / Business 

management and consultancy services

100 100

Newman & Associates Pte. Ltd. Real estate agents and property
 management

76 76

Newman & Goh Property Consultants
 Pte Ltd (“NGPC”)

Residential real estate management
  / Real estate agencies and valuation 

services

76 76
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13. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

 The details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Effective equity held
by the Company

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities 2020 2019
% %

Held through Advancer Global Facility Pte. Ltd. (Continued)
Premier Eco-Care Pte. Ltd. Pest control and fumigation services,

  general cleaning services except 
households (including cleaning of public 
areas and janitorial services)

100 100

Prestige Enviro-Care Pte. Ltd.
  (Wholly- owned subsidiary of

Premier Eco- Care Pte. Ltd.)

Pest control and fumigation services,
  landscape care and related maintenance 

services

100 100

World Clean Facility Services Pte. Ltd. General cleaning services except
  household (including cleaning of public 

areas, offi ce and factories) / Plumbing, 
heating (non-electric) and 

 air-conditioning

100 100

Advancer Smart Technology Pte. Ltd.
 (“AST”)

Data analytics, processing and related
  activities N.E.C. / Wholesales of 

electronic component

100 100

Country Cousins Pte. Ltd.
 (“Country Cousins”)

Landscape planting, care and
 maintenance services

76
(Note c)

76
(Note c)

SRE Global Pte. Ltd. (Formerly
  known as Suntec Real Estate 

Consultants Pte. Ltd.) (“SRE”)

Real estate developer / Real estate
 agencies and valuation services

82
(Note d)

–

Held through Advancer Global Security Pte. Ltd.
AGS Integration Pte. Ltd. (“AGSI”) Security services / Installation and

  maintenance of security system and 
other related construction works

70 70

Ashtree International Pte. Ltd. Security services / Building-cleaning
 services (including janitorial service)

100 100

KH Security Pte. Ltd. (Formerly
  known as KC Security &

Investigation Services Pte. Ltd.)

Security and investigation activities
  N.E.C. / Building-cleaning services 

(including janitorial service)

100 100

KH Security Agency Pte. Ltd. Security services / Building-cleaning
 services (including janitorial service)

100 100

 (1) The subsidiaries are dormant.

 All subsidiaries are incorporated and operating in Singapore, and are audited by Mazars LLP, Singapore.

92 ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

13. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

 Interest in subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

 The Group has the following subsidiaries which have NCI that are material to the Group:

Proportion of 
ownership interest 

held by NCI

(Loss)/Profi t 
allocated to

NCI during the
fi nancial year

Accumulated
NCI at the

reporting date
Dividends

payable to NCI
Name of subsidiaries 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

% % S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

AGSI 30 30 (25) (116) (63) (38) – –
NGPC 24 24 448 70 455 163 156 –
SRE 18 – 18 – 224 – – –

 There is no signifi cant restriction on the Group’s ability to access or use the assets and settle the liabilities of 
the Group.

 Summarised fi nancial information (before intercompany eliminations):

AGSI NGPC SRE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Assets:
Non-current assets 1,331 1,429 670 609 224
Current assets 2,826 2,731 2,606 2,138 1,504

Liabilities:
Non-current liabilities 584 594 138 249 106
Current liabilities 3,782 3,693 1,228 1,808 382
Net (liabilities)/assets (209) (127) 1,910 690 1,240

Results:
Revenue 2,595 1,539 10,200 10,334 2,223
(Loss)/Profi t before income tax (82) (388) 1,896 325 496
(Loss)/Profi t for the fi nancial year (82) (388) 1,869 290 490

Net cash fl ow generated from/  
 (used in) operations 2 (482) 1,714 790 615

 (a) Additional investment in a subsidiary – Nation Employment

  On 3 June 2019, Advancer Global Manpower Pte. Ltd. increased its issued and paid-up capital in its 
wholly-owned subsidiary, Nation Employment, from S$150,000 comprising 150,000 ordinary shares to 
S$400,000 comprising 400,000 ordinary shares through the allotment and issuance of 250,000 ordinary 
shares of S$1 per share by way of capitalisation of existing intercompany advances payable by Nation 
Employment to Advancer Global Manpower Pte. Ltd. amounting to S$250,000.
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13. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

 (b) Acquisition of non-controlling interest in investment in a subsidiary – Our Express

  On 14 July 2020, Advancer Global Facility Pte. Ltd. acquired an additional 24% equity interest in Our 
Express comprising 4,800 ordinary shares from its non-controlling interests for a cash consideration 
of S$1. As a result of this additional acquisition, Our Express became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 
Group (Note 23).

 (c) Acquisition of Country Cousins

  On 2 January 2019, Advancer Global Facility Pte. Ltd. completed the acquisition of 76% equity interest 
in Country Cousins, a company incorporated in Singapore, to expand the landscaping business within 
the Group’s facilities management division and to further strengthen the services offerings by providing 
a holistic suite of facilities management solutions and services to wide base of customers. The fair 
value of the identifi able assets and liabilities of Country Cousins as at the acquisition date were:

Fair value 
recognised on 

acquisition
S$’000

Right-of-use assets 108
Customer contracts and contractual customer relationships 65
Trade and other receivables 46
Cash and cash equivalents 21
Trade and other payables (37)
Lease liabilities (91)
Deferred tax liabilities (14)
Total identifi able net assets at fair value 98
Non-controlling interest measured at the non-controlling interest’s
 proportionate share of Country Cousins’s net identifi able assets (24)
Goodwill arising from acquisition 97
Total consideration 171

Effect of the acquisition of Country Cousins on cash fl ows
Total consideration for 76% of equity interest acquired 171
Less: Realisation of refundable deposit paid in previous fi nancial year (171)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents of a subsidiary acquired 21
Net cash infl ow on acquisition 21

  Transaction costs

  No transaction costs related to the acquisition was recognised in the Group’s profi t or loss for the 
fi nancial year ended 31 December 2019.

  Goodwill arising from acquisition

  Goodwill of S$97,000 arising from the acquisition was attributable to the expected synergies from 
combining the operations of Our Express with Country Cousins and increasing in Group’s pool of 
corporate customers in relation to the Building Management Services Business, which provides 
opportunity of cross-selling the facility management services from other subsidiaries within the Group. 
None of the goodwill was expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
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13. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

 (c) Acquisition of Country Cousins (Continued)

  Consideration

  The total consideration for 76% of equity interest acquired of S$171,000 was paid on 26 November 2018 
and recognised as a refundable deposit as at previous fi nancial year end. The acquisition subsequently 
completed on 2 January 2019.

  Intangible assets

  Intangible assets identifi ed relate to contractual customer relationships which were attributable to 
long-term relationships with its major customers. The useful life was estimated at four years.

  Impact of the acquisition on profi t or loss

  From the date of acquisition, Country Cousins had contributed S$651,000 and S$33,000 to the revenue 
and the profi t after tax of the Group respectively during the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2019.

  Update in fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020

  On 16 July 2020, Country Cousins increased its issued and paid-up share capital by way of allotment 
and issuance of 40,000 new shares at S$1.00 per share (“New Shares”).

  Following the allotment and issuance of the New Shares, Country Cousins issued and paid-up share 
capital is S$50,000 comprising of 50,000 ordinary shares and the equity interest of the Group in Country 
Cousins remains the same at 76%.

  The increase in Country Cousins’ share capital was satisfi ed in full by way of capitalisation of dividend 
payable owed by Country Cousins to existing shareholders amounting to S$40,000 (including S$9,600 to 
a non-controlling shareholder) (the “Capitalisation Amount”). The Capitalisation Amount will be used 
mainly for working capital requirements of Country Cousins and to allow Country Cousins in qualifying 
for the government project tenders.

 (d) Acquisition of SRE 

  On 30 September 2020, Advancer Global Facility Pte. Ltd. completed the subscription for 82% 
equity interest in SRE (“Acquisition”), a company incorporated in Singapore, to expand the property 
management, valuation, consultancy and property agency services within the Group’s building 
management division and to further strengthen the services offerings by providing a larger skilled 
workforce and expertise for the Group to tap on and thereby enable it to expand its market share in 
Singapore. The fair value of the identifi able assets and liabilities of SRE as at the acquisition date were:
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13. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

 (d) Acquisition of SRE (Continued)

Fair value 
recognised on 

acquisition
S$’000

Property, plant and equipment 2
Right-of-use assets 36
Non-contractual customer relationships 8
Trade and other receivables 419
Cash and cash equivalents 1,078
Trade and other payables (355)
Lease liabilities (37)
Deferred tax liabilities (5)
Total identifi able net assets at fair value 1,146
Non-controlling interest measured at the non-controlling interest’s
 proportionate share of SRE’s net identifi able assets (206)
Bargain purchase arising from acquisition (325)
Total consideration 615

Effect of the acquisition of SRE on cash fl ows
Total consideration for 82% of equity interest acquired (615)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of a subsidiary acquired 1,078
Net cash infl ow on acquisition 463

  Transaction costs

  Transaction costs related to the Acquisition of S$8,560 have been recognised in the Group’s profi t or 
loss for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020.

  Gain on bargain purchase arising from Acquisition

  Gain on bargain purchase of S$325,000 arising from the Acquisition was mainly due to total 
consideration for subscription of 82% equity interest in SRE has been retained within the Group.

  Consideration

  The total consideration of S$615,000 for the Acquisition, satisfi ed through a cash payment of (i) deposit 
of S$300,000 paid by Advancer Global Facility Pte. Ltd. to SRE’s shareholders in January 2020; and 
(ii) S$315,000 from Advancer Global Facility Pte. Ltd. to SRE prior to the date of completion of the 
Acquisition. The Acquisition subsequently completed on 30 September 2020.

  Intangible assets

  Intangible assets identifi ed relate to non-contractual customer relationships which are attributable to 
long-term relationships with its major customers. The useful life is estimated at two years.

  Impact of the Acquisition on profi t or loss

  From the date of Acquisition, SRE has contributed S$428,000 and S$84,000 to the revenue and the 
profi t after tax of the Group respectively.
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14. Investments in associates

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Investments in associates, at cost 516 516
Share of associates’ results (120) (22)
Carrying amount 396 494

 The details of the associates are as follows:

Country of 
incorporation
and principal 

Effective 
equity interest held

 by the Group
Name of associates place of business Principal activities 2020 2019

% %

Held through Advancer Nation Pte. Ltd.
Fullcast International Co., Ltd.
 (“Fullcast”) (1)

Japan Human resources services 49.0 49.0

Held through Advancer Global Facility Pte. Ltd.
G3 Environmental Private Limited
 (“G3”) (2)

Singapore Commercial and industrial real
  estate management / Recycling of 

metal waste and scrap

20.1 20.1

Held through G3
TEE Environmental Pte. Ltd. (2) Singapore Commercial and industrial real

  estate management / Recycling of 
metal waste and scrap

20.1 20.1

TEE Recycling Pte. Ltd. (2) Singapore Recycling of metal waste and scrap /
 Collection of waste

20.1 20.1

Envotek Engineering Pte. Ltd. (2) Singapore Installation of industrial machinery
  and equipment, mechanical 

engineering works / General 
contractors

20.1 20.1

 (1) The associate was dormant for the fi nancial years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

 (2) The associate was audited by Foo Kon Tan LLP for the fi nancial year ended 31 May 2020.

 The activities of the associates are strategic to the Group’s activities.

 Fullcast

 On 9 August 2019, Advancer Nation Pte. Ltd. (“Advancer Nation”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of 
the Group held through Advancer Global Manpower Pte. Ltd. had entered into a joint venture agreement 
with Fullcast Holdings Co., Ltd. to incorporate Fullcast in Japan providing, inter alia, services in respect of 
staffi ng and dispatching of foreign labor in Japan. Advancer Nation subscribed for 49% of the equity interest in 
Fullcast comprising 784 ordinary shares, for a cash consideration of S$514,618 (equivalent to JPY39,200,000). 
Following the subscription of 49% of the equity interest in Fullcast by the Group, Fullcast was recognised as 
an associate of the Group.
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14. Investments in associates (Continued)

 G3

 The fi nancial statements of G3 are made up to 31 May each year. This was the fi nancial reporting date 
established when G3 was incorporated, and a change of reporting date is not made because the reporting 
date is required to be the same as G3’s parent company, TEE Infrastructure Private Limited, who holds 50.1% 
equity interest in G3.

 The associate, together with its ultimate holding company, have provided a corporate guarantee to bank for 
total facilities of S$4,500,000 granted to a wholly owned subsidiary of the associate.  The bank facilities are 
secured by a charge over the present and future assets (excluding fi xed assets under fi nance leases charged 
to existing lenders), charge of future earnings and charge over ordinary shares of the associate’s wholly 
owned subsidiaries. The corporate guarantee has been discharged on 2 January 2020.

 Summarised fi nancial information for the associates

 The summarised fi nancial information based on its unaudited SFRS(I) fi nancial statements as follows:

G3 Fullcast Group
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Assets and liabilities:
Non-current assets 6,281 11,605 24 28
Current assets 14,647 10,396 375 598
Total assets 20,928 22,001 399 626
Non-current liabilities 818 2,617 – –
Current liabilities 22,936 22,502 18 23
Total liabilities 23,754 25,119 18 23
Net (liabilities)/assets (2,826) (3,118) 381 603

Group’s share of associates’ net
 (liabilities)/assets (568) (627) 187 295 (381) (332)

Carrying amount of the investment
 as at 31 December – – 396 494 396 494

Results:
Revenue 29,874 36,122 – – 29,874 36,122
Profi t/(loss) for the fi nancial year,
  representing total comprehensive 

income/(loss) for the fi nancial year 292 (3,348) (201) (42) 91 (3,390)
Group’s share of associates’ loss
 for the fi nancial year – (78) (98) (20) (98) (98)

 The Group has not recognised losses relating to certain associates where its share of losses exceeds the 
Group’s carrying amount of its investment in those associates. The Group’s cumulative share of unrecognised 
losses were S$536,000 (2019: S$595,000) of which S$Nil (2019: S$595,000) was the share of current year’s 
losses. The Group has no obligation in respect of these losses.
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15. Other investments

Group Company
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Non-current investments
Financial assets held at FVTPL
Unquoted equity instruments –
 at FVTPL 624 – – –

Current investments
Financial assets held at FVTPL
Quoted equity instruments – at FVTPL 1,007 – 1,007 –
Total fi nancial assets held at FVTPL 1,631 – 1,007 –

Movement for unquoted equity
 instruments
At beginning of the year – – – –
Additions 15(b) 612 – – –
Fair value gain recognised in PL 15(a) 12 – – –

624 – – –

Movement for quoted equity
 instruments
At beginning of the year – – – –
Additions 1,016 – 1,016 –
Fair value loss recognised in PL 15(c) (9) – (9) –

1,007 – 1,007 –

 Unquoted equity instruments

 The investments in unquoted equity instruments classifi ed at FVTPL relates to the following:

 (a) Investment in Beijing Singapore Technology & Facility Management Co., Ltd (“BSTFM”), a company 
incorporated in People’s Republic of China, held through NGPC, with shareholding at 10% (2019: 10%) 
(“Unquoted China Investment”).

  As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the equity instrument was determined based on bid and ask 
price for disposal of Unquoted China Investment (Note 36 (v)).

  The Group has recognised fair value gain on Unquoted China Investment amounting to S$12,144 during 
the fi nancial year.

  It is denominated in Chinese renminbi.
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15. Other investments (Continued)

 Unquoted equity instruments (Continued)

 (b) Investment in Zhe Jiang Zhi Wu Hui Yun Technology Co. Ltd. (“ZWHY”), a company incorporated in 
People’s Republic of China, held through AST, with shareholding at 15%.

  On 23 December 2020, ZWHY completed registration of change to include AST as shareholder for 
its 15% equity interest in the registered capital of ZWHY. The cash consideration of RMB3 million 
for subscription of 15% shares in ZWHY was received by ZWHY on 14 January 2021 and recorded as 
investment payable as at 31 December 2020 (Note 26).

  As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the equity instrument was determined based on transaction 
price between market participant which is the cash consideration of RMB3 million (approximate to 
S$612,000) pursuant to investment agreement entered with the existing shareholders of ZWHY who are 
third parties of the Group.

  It is denominated in Chinese renminbi.

 Quoted equity instruments

 (c) The quoted equity instruments classifi ed at FVTPL have no fi xed maturity date or coupon rate. The fair 
values of these instruments are based on closing quoted market prices on the last market day of the 
fi nancial year.

  The currency profi les of the Group’s and Company’s investments in quoted equity instruments as at 31 
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Group and Company
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Singapore dollar 731 –
United States dollar 276 –

1,007 –
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16. Property, plant and equipment

Group
Leasehold 

building Equipment
Motor 

vehicles

Computers 
and offi ce 
equipment

Renovation, 
furniture

and fi ttings Total
S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Cost
At 1 January 2019 883 565 156 1,479 644 3,727
Additions – 42 57 235 314 648
Disposals – – (41) – – (41)
Write-offs – (*) – (310) (281) (591)
At 31 December 2019 883 607 172 1,404 677 3,743
Additions – 74 – 150 236 460
Write-offs – (164) (8) (309) (361) (842)
Acquired on acquisition of a
 subsidiary (Note 13(d)) – – – – 2 2
At 31 December 2020 883 517 164 1,245 554 3,363

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019 11 140 126 752 446 1,475
Depreciation 19 123 22 217 126 507
Disposals – – (39) – – (39)
Write-offs – (*) – (305) (274) (579)
At 31 December 2019 30 263 109 664 298 1,364
Depreciation 19 128 22 238 122 529
Write-offs – (164) (8) (302) (352) (826)
At 31 December 2020 49 227 123 600 68 1,067

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 834 290 41 645 486 2,296

At 31 December 2019 853 344 63 740 379 2,379

 * Denotes amount less than S$1,000

 The Group’s leasehold building is recorded at cost as stated under Note 2.12 to the fi nancial statements and 
no valuation was conducted.

 The Group’s leasehold building with carrying amount of S$834,000 (2019: 853,000) was mortgaged to secure 
the Group’s bank borrowing (Note 25).

 Details of the leasehold building held by the Group as at 31 December are set out below:

2020 2019

Description and location Tenure
Unexpired 
lease term Tenure

Unexpired 
lease term

18 Boon Lay Way #03-138 Tradehub 21,
 Singapore 609966 (the “Tradehub21 Property”)

46 years
4 months

42 years
11 months

46 years
4 months

43 years
11 months
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17. The Group as a lessee

 The Group leases certain offi ce premises, offi ce equipment, motor vehicles and other operating facilities for 
one to fi ve years.

 Extension options

 The Group has several lease contracts with extension options exercisable by the Group up to 6 months before 
the end of the non-cancellable contract period. These extension options are exercisable by the Group and 
not by the lessors. The extension options are used by the Group to provide operation fl exibility in terms of 
managing the assets used in the Group’s operation.

 Recognition exemptions

 The Group has certain offi ce premises, offi ce equipment, motor vehicles and other operating facilities with 
lease terms of 12 months or less and/or of low value. For such leases, the Group has elected not to recognise 
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

 Right-of-use assets

 The carrying amount of right-of-use assets is as follows:

Offi ce 
premises

Offi ce 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles

Other 
operating 
facilities Total

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

At 1 January 2019 771 55 846 264 1,936
Additions 1,119 321 528 257 2,225
Acquisition of a subsidiary
 (Note 13(c)) – – 108 – 108
Depreciation (547) (86) (428) (240) (1,301)
At 31 December 2019 1,343 290 1,054 281 2,968
Additions 496 – 376 301 1,173
Reclassifi cation (11) – – 11 –
Written off of early lease
 termination (142) – (12) – (154)
Acquisition of a subsidiary
 (Note 13(d)) 28 8 – – 36
Depreciation (737) (92) (575) (281) (1,685)
At 31 December 2020 977 206 843 312 2,338

 The total cash outfl ow for repayment of lease liabilities’ principal and interest during the fi nancial year ended 
31 December 2020 is S$1,739,000 and S$25,000, (31 December 2019: $1,280,000 and $32,000) respectively.

 The total initial cash payment made for certain lease arrangement during the fi nancial year ended 31 
December 2020 is S$Nil (31 December 2019: S$23,000).
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17. The Group as a lessee (Continued)

 Lease liabilities

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Lease liabilities – non-current 1,129 1,732
Lease liabilities – current 1,472 1,457
At end of fi nancial year 2,601 3,189

 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 31.

 Lease liabilities are denominated in Singapore dollar.

 Amounts recognised in profi t or loss

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Interest expense on lease liabilities 126 122
Expense relating to short-term leases 709 752
Expense relating to low-value assets 3 7

18. Deferred tax

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Deferred tax assets 28 20
Deferred tax liabilities (123) (165)

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities principally arise as a result of difference between carrying amount and tax 
written down value of property, plant and equipment.

 The movements in deferred tax position for the fi nancial year are as follows:

 Deferred tax assets

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

At beginning of fi nancial year 20 19
Credit to profi t or loss 16 10
Over-provision in prior fi nancial years (8) (9)
At end of fi nancial year 28 20
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18. Deferred tax (Continued)

 Deferred tax liabilities

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

At beginning of fi nancial year (165) (218)
Credit to profi t or loss 29 43
Over-provision in prior fi nancial years 18 24
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 13(d)) (5) (14)
At end of fi nancial year (123) (165)

 (a) Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefi ts through 
future taxable profi ts is probable.

 (b) The following deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the statements of fi nancial position in 
respect of the tax losses due to uncertainty in the availability of future taxable profi t against which the 
Group can utilise the tax benefi ts are as follows:

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Tax losses 4,258 1,024

Unrecognised deferred tax benefi ts at statutory rate 724 174

19. Inventories

 Inventories of the Group comprise mainly chemical products, electronic products for sales, face masks and 
other materials that used for the daily operation purpose. Cost of inventories recognised as expense and 
included in cost of sales as disclosed in Note 7 to the fi nancial statements.
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20. Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Trade receivables
− Third parties 10,552 10,718 – –
− Related party 16 – – –
− Accrued receivables 1,111 1,281 – –
− Retention receivables 7 10 – –

Less: loss allowance (Note 31) (195) (91) – –
Total trade receivables 11,491 11,918 – –

Other receivables
− Third parties 59 40 7 28
− Subsidiaries – – 7,241 7,442
− Related parties 13 13 – –
− Loan receivable from an associate 3,296 3,296 – –
− Advances to recruiters and suppliers 626 617 – –
− Deferred costs 155 125 – –
− Deposits 670 600 – –
− Dividend receivable from subsidiaries – – 7,110 3,840
− Prepayments 309 294 7 6
− Receivable from government credit schemes 1,850 606 – –
− Staff loans 190 123 – –

Total other receivables 7,168 5,714 14,365 11,316
Total trade and other receivables 18,659 17,632 14,365 11,316

 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the Group generally does not extend credit period to the 
customers except for provision of building management services and security services which have credit 
period extended at 7 to 90 (2019: 7 to 90) days credit terms. They are recognised at the transaction price 
which represent their fair values on initial recognition.

 Accrued receivables of S$1,111,000 (2019: S$1,281,000) relate to completion of installation services contracts 
and security services rendered but has not been invoiced to the customers as at the end of fi nancial year.

 Retention receivables of S$7,000 (2019: S$10,000) relate to retention monies held by customers due to 
completion of landscaping services contracts but has not been invoiced to the customers as at the end of 
fi nancial year.

 Other receivables from subsidiaries and loan receivable from an associate are unsecured, interest-free and 
repayable on demand. There was repayment of loan from an associate of S$Nil (2019: S$40,000) during the 
fi nancial year.

 Advances to recruiters represent advanced payments as at fi nancial year end that would be offset against the 
costs of FDWs’ arrivals in the next fi nancial year.

 Deferred costs relate to the recruitment expenses deferred till completion of the performance obligation to 
recruiters in the future fi nancial period.

 Staff loans are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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20. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

 The carrying amount of trade receivables determined to be impaired is as follows:

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Past due for 0 to 30 days * –
Past due for 31 to 60 days * –
Past due for 61 to 90 days * –
Past due for 91 to 365 days 3 9
Past due more than 365 days 192 82

195 91

 Movements in the loss allowance for trade receivables are as follows:

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

At beginning of fi nancial year 91 36
Charged to profi t or loss 104 58
Written off during the fi nancial year – (1)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 13(d)) * –
Reversal of loss allowance – (2)
At end of fi nancial year 195 91

 * Denotes amount less than S$1,000

 Trade and other receivables are denominated in Singapore dollar.

21. Cash and bank balances

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Cash at banks 11,690 6,796 960 310
Cash on hand 94 80 – –
Fixed deposits 15,833 18,775 15,222 17,770

27,617 25,651 16,182 18,080

 Cash at banks earns interest at fl oating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

 Fixed deposits of the Group and the Company bear interest rates ranging from 0.30% to 1.40% (2019: 0.35% 
to 1.80%) per annum and 0.38% to 0.50% (2019: 1.77% to 1.80%) per annum respectively. Fixed deposits of 
the Group and the Company are for tenure of 3 to 12 (2019: 1 to 12) months and 3 to 9 (2019: 3) months 
respectively.
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21. Cash and bank balances (Continued)

 The fi xed deposits of S$5,000 (2019: S$5,000) were pledged to fi nancial institutions for banker guarantees 
which was issued by the banker to Group’s customer as security deposits for provision of pest control 
services.

 The currency profi les of the Group’s and Company’s cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2020 and 31 
December 2019 are as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Singapore dollar 27,010 25,651 16,182 18,080
Chinese renminbi 607 – – –

27,617 25,651 16,182 18,080

 For the purpose of presenting the consolidated statement of cash fl ows, cash and cash equivalents comprise 
the following at the end of fi nancial year:

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Cash and bank balances 27,617 25,651
Fixed deposits pledged (5) (5)
Cash and cash equivalents 27,612 25,646

22. Share capital

Group and Company
No. of shares

’000 S$’000

Issued and fully paid, with no par value
At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 252,364 40,607

 On 2 May 2017, the Company issued and allotted 12,500,000 new ordinary shares (“Placement Shares”) at an 
issue price of S$0.40 per Placement Share (“Placement”) and 6,250,000 warrants (“Warrant Shares”), each 
carrying the right to subscribe for 1 new ordinary share in the capital of the Company at an exercise price of 
S$0.45 per Warrant Share. The Placement raised gross proceed of S$5.0 million. The Warrant Shares have 
expired on 16 May 2020 and were not exercised.

 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled 
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
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22. Share capital (Continued)

 Treasury shares

Group and Company
No. of shares

’000 S$’000

Issued and fully paid, with no par value
At 1 January 2019 and 1 January 2020 1,015 223
Repurchased during the year 84 9
At 31 December 2020 1,099 232

 During the fi nancial year, the Company acquired 84,000 of its own shares through purchases on SGX. The total 
amount paid to acquire the shares was S$8,904 and has been deducted from shareholders’ equity.

23. Other reserves

 Other reserves comprise reserves as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Capital reserve (339) (353) – –
Share options reserve 112 106 112 106
Merger reserve (2,603) (2,603) – –

(2,830) (2,850) 112 106

 Capital reserve

 The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair value of the consideration paid and the 
carrying amount of the non-controlling interest of AST (formerly known as Unipest Pte. Ltd.) and Our Express 
(formerly known as Envirocare Landscape (S) Pte. Ltd.) for the acquisition of the remaining 20% and 24% 
equity interest in AST and Our Express (Note 13(b)) respectively.

 Share options reserve

 The share options reserve comprises the cumulative value of employee services received for the issue of 
share options. When the share options are exercised, the related balance previously recognised in the share 
options reserve is transferred to share capital. When the share options expire, the related balance previously 
recognised in the share options reserve is transferred to retained earnings. Further information about the 
share-based payments to employees is set out in Note 24 of the fi nancial statements.

 Merger reserve

 Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares issued by the Company in 
exchange for the nominal value of shares and net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired which is accounted 
for under “merger accounting”.
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24. Share-based payment

 The ESOS of the Company was approved and adopted by its members on 6 June 2016.

 Information regarding the ESOS is set out below:

 (i) Group employees (including Directors of the Company) who have attained the age of 21 years and are 
not undischarged bankrupts and have not entered into a composition with their respective creditors, 
and who have been in the employment of the Group for a period of at least 12 months, or such shorter 
period as the Remuneration Committee may determine, are eligible to participate in the ESOS.

 (ii) The maximum discount shall not exceed 20% of the market price on the date of the grant of the 
options.

 (iii) The options granted with the exercise price set at market price should only be exercised after the fi rst 
anniversary from the grant date and before the tenth anniversary of the grant date.

 (iv) The option granted with exercise price set at a discount to market price should only be exercised after 
the second anniversary from the grant date and before the tenth anniversary of the grant date.

 (v) The option shall immediately lapse and become null and void when the participant cease to be in 
employment of the Group.

 (vi) All options are settled by delivery of shares.

 On 20 April 2017, the Company granted 1,156,500 share options, at exercise price of S$0.40 for each share, to 
the eligible employees of the Group. The options shall be vested equally over three years, fi rst year of vesting 
being two years from the grant date. The options shall be exercised (a) before the fi fth anniversary of the 
grant date, failing which all unexercised options shall immediately lapse and become null and void, and (b) in 
whole and not in part, i.e. all at once, not multiple series of smaller lots.

 Details of the share options outstanding during the fi nancial year are as follows:

Group and Company
2020 2019

Number
of share 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price

Number
of share 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price
(’000) S$ (’000) S$

Outstanding at the beginning of the
 fi nancial year 960 0.40 1,086 0.40
Lapsed or expired during the fi nancial year (52) 0.40 (126) 0.40
Outstanding at the end of the fi nancial year 908 0.40 960 0.40

Exercisable at the end of the fi nancial year 605 0.40 320 0.40

 The fair value of services received in return for share options granted are measured by reference to the fair 
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services received is measured based 
on a Binomial model. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best 
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.
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24. Share-based payment (Continued)

 Fair value of share options and assumptions

Date of grant of options 20 April 2017
Fair value at measurement date S$0.128
Share price S$0.345
Exercise price S$0.40
Expected volatility 53.63%
Expected option life 5 years
Expected dividends yield 2.26%
Risk-free interest rate 1.62%

 The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of comparable companies (calculated based on the 
weighted average expected life of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due 
to publicly available information.

 There are no market conditions and non-market performance conditions associated with the share option 
grants. Service conditions are taken into account in the measurement of the fair value of the services to be 
received at the grant date.

25. Bank borrowing

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Property loan 592 621

Repayable:
Within one year 30 29
Within two to fi ve years 125 123
More than fi ve years 437 469

592 621

 The property loan is secured by fi rst legal mortgage over the Tradehub21 Property and guaranteed by the 
Company and its subsidiary, Advancer Global Security Pte. Ltd.. The property loan bears interest at 2.30% 
(2019: 2.30%) in the fi rst and second year and bank’s prevailing enterprise fi nancing rate in the subsequent 
years.

 The carrying amount of the Group’s bank borrowing approximates its fair value due to either the relatively 
short-term maturity of this loan or the interest rate approximates the market rate prevailing at end of the 
fi nancial year.

 Bank borrowing is denominated in Singapore dollar.
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26. Trade and other payables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Trade payables
− Third parties 995 1,366 – –
− Related parties 127 260 – –

Total trade payables 1,122 1,626 – –

Other payables
− Subsidiary – – 500 100
− Amount due to director – 47 – –
− Accrued operating expenses 4,339 3,815 47 29
− Deferred income 774 445 – –
− Deposit received 9 7 – –
− Dividend payables to non- controlling interests – 48 – –
− Credit notes to customers 501 418 – –
− Investment payable 607 – – –
− Provision for warranties 2 3 – –
− GST payables 851 852 – –

Total other payables 7,083 5,635 547 129
Total trade and other payables 8,205 7,261 547 129

 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the average credit period on purchases of supplies and services 
range from 31 to 60 (2019: 31 to 60) days according to the terms agreed with the suppliers.

 Other payables to a subsidiary and amount due to director are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 
demand.

 Deferred income relates to government grant received and is recognised as income in profi t or loss on a 
systematic basis over the period in which the related costs, for which the grant is intended to compensate.

 Credit notes to customers relate to amount refundable to employers for return of FDWs placed and goodwill 
rebate to customers during the fi nancial year.

 Investment payable relates to the investment in unquoted equity interest in ZWHY, as disclosed in Note 15(b).

 The Group provides fi ve-year warranties relating to pest control services rendered that failed to perform 
satisfactorily. The provision for warranties represents the management’s best estimates of total cost of 
corrective treatment with reference to historical trends within the warranty periods granted.

 Movements in the provision for warranties are as follows:

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

At beginning of fi nancial year 3 10
Reversal of provision (Note 7) (1) (7)
At end of fi nancial year 2 3
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26. Trade and other payables (Continued)

 The currency profi les of the Group’s and Company’s trade and other payables as at 31 December 2020 and 31 
December 2019 are as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Singapore dollar 7,598 7,253 547 129
Chinese renminbi 607 8 – –

8,205 7,261 547 129

27. Contract liabilities from contracts with customers

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Contract liabilities
Advance consideration 793 646

 Advance consideration relates to advances received for provision of Employment Services, Building 
Management Services and Security Services. Revenue for Employment Services and Security Services are 
recognised at the point in time whereas revenue for Building Management Services is recognised over time 
or at a point in time although the customer pays for the services at the contract inception date. A contract 
liability is recognised for the advances received from the customers and is derecognised as and when the 
performance obligation is satisfi ed. Contract liabilities for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020 
increased due to additional advances received from customers during the fi nancial year.

 The Group applies practical expedient and most of the contracts with customer has an original expected 
duration of one year or less. The Group has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that 
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to date, thus the 
Group may recognise revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to invoice.

 The Group’s revenue recognised in the fi nancial years that was included in the contract liabilities balance at 
the beginning of the respective fi nancial years is as follows:

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the fi nancial year
- Service income from Employment Services 373 490
- Service income from Building Management Services 79 80
- Service income from Security Services 83 –

535 570
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28. Operating lease commitments

 The Group as lessor

 The Group sub-let its offi ce premises under operating leases. These non-cancellable leases have remaining 
lease term of fi ve months (2019: seventeen months to twenty-three months).

 At the end of fi nancial year, future minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are 
as follows:

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Future minimum lease payments receivable:
Within one year 27 62
After one year but within fi ve years – 46

27 108

 The rental income recognised in profi t or loss during the fi nancial year is disclosed in Note 5 to the fi nancial 
statements.

29. Contingent liabilities

 As at 31 December 2020, the Company has given corporate guarantee amounting to S$688,000 (2019: 
S$688,000) to a bank in respect of a banking facility granted to a subsidiary (Note 25).

 The Company has evaluated the fair value of the corporate guarantee. Consequently, the Company is of the 
view that the fair value of the guarantee to the bank with regard to the subsidiary is not signifi cant. The 
Company has not recognised any liability in respect of the guarantee given to the bank for banking facility 
granted to the subsidiary as the Company’s directors have assessed that the likelihood of the subsidiary 
defaulting on repayment is remote.

 As at the end of the fi nancial year, the total amount of outstanding bank borrowing covered by corporate 
guarantee is S$592,000 (2019: S$621,000) (Note 25). Such guarantee is in the form of a fi nancial guarantee 
as they require the Company to reimburse the bank if the subsidiary to which the guarantee was extended fail 
to make principal or interest repayments when due in accordance with the terms of the borrowing. There has 
been no default or non-repayment since the utilisation of the banking facility.

 As at the end of the fi nancial year, the Company had also given undertakings to certain subsidiaries for 
providing them with continued fi nancial support. The fi nancial support enable these subsidiaries to operate 
as going concern and to meet their obligations as and when they fall due for at least 12 months from the 
fi nancial year end.

 From time to time, in the normal course of business, the Group is involved in legal proceedings. The directors 
believe that the ultimate outcome of such pending litigation will not materially affect the results of operations 
or the fi nancial position of the Group.
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30. Signifi cant related party transactions

 A related party is defi ned as follows:

 (a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group and Company if that person:

  (i) Has control or joint control over the Company;

  (ii) Has signifi cant infl uence over the Company; or

  (iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or Company or of a parent of the 
Company.

 (b) An entity is related to the Group and Company if any of the following conditions applies:

  (i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, 
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

  (ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a 
member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

  (iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

  (iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third 
entity;

  (v) The entity is a post-employment benefi t plan for the benefi t of employees of either the Company 
or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring 
employers are also related to the Company;

  (vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identifi ed in (a);

  (vii) A person identifi ed in (a)(i) has signifi cant infl uence over the entity or is a member of the key 
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

  (viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel 
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

 Key management personnel

 Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the Group and the Company, directly or indirectly, including any director 
(whether executive or otherwise) of that company.

 The effect of the Group’s and Company’s transactions and arrangements with related parties is refl ected 
in these fi nancial statements. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand unless 
otherwise stated.
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30. Signifi cant related party transactions (Continued)

 During the fi nancial year, in addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these fi nancial statements, the Group 
and the Company entered into the following signifi cant transactions with related parties:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Subsidiaries
Dividend income – – 3,470 400
Payment on behalf by subsidiary – – – 10
Payment on behalf for subsidiary – – – 1
Advances to subsidiaries – – 150 2,515
Advances from a subsidiary – – 500 100

Related parties
Service income from related parties 42 12 – –
Sales of goods to a related party * – – –
Service income from associates – 12 – –
Purchases from non-controlling interests 404 766 – –
Purchases from an associate 23 33 – –
Loan repayment from an associate – 40 – –
Payment on behalf by related parties 333 184 – –
Lease from related parties 73 77 – –

 Key management personnel remuneration

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Salaries, bonuses and other employee benefi ts 4,176 2,966
Defi ned contribution plan 398 221
Employee share options * 5

4,574 3,192

Directors’ fees
Directors of the Company 167 150

 * Denotes amount less than S$1,000

 The key management personnel comprise directors and senior management of the Company and its 
subsidiaries such as Head of Employment Services Business, Chief Financial Offi cer, and their compensation 
is disclosed as above.

 The key management personnel also participate in the Group’s ESOS. At the end of the fi nancial year, 230,000 
(2019: 266,000) share options granted to the key management personnel of the Group were outstanding.
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31. Financial instruments and fi nancial risks

 The Group’s activities expose it to credit risk, market risk (including foreign currency risk, equity price risk 
and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management strategy seeks to minimise 
adverse effects from the volatility of fi nancial markets on the Group’s fi nancial performance.

 The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the objectives and underlying principles of fi nancial risk 
management for the Group. The management then establishes the detailed policies such as authority levels, 
oversight responsibilities, risk identifi cation and measurement, and exposure limits, in accordance with 
the objectives and underlying principles approved by the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee provides 
independent oversight to the effectiveness of the risk management process. It is, and has been throughout the 
current and previous fi nancial year, the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes 
shall be undertaken.

 There have been no changes to the Group’s exposure to these fi nancial risks or the manner in which it 
manages and measures the risk. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis indicated 
below.

 Credit risk

 Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a loss 
to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining 
suffi cient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of fi nancial loss from defaults.

 The Group’s credit risk arises mainly from bank balances, trade and other receivables and other debt 
instruments carried at amortised cost. Bank balances are mainly deposits with banks with high credit-ratings 
assigned by international credit rating agencies and the Group does not expect the impairment loss from bank 
balances to be material, if any.

 To assess and manage its credit risk, the Group categorises the aforementioned fi nancial assets according to 
their risk of default. The Group defi nes default to have taken place when internal or/and external information 
indicates that the fi nancial asset is unlikely to be received, which could include a breach of debt covenant, 
default of interest due for more than 365 days. Due to the nature of the industry that the Group operates in, 
the Group has rebutted the presumption that default has taken place when the fi nancial asset is more than 30 
days past due as per SFRS(I) 9.

 In their assessment, the management considers, amongst other factors, the latest relevant credit ratings 
from reputable external rating agencies where available and deemed appropriate, historical credit 
experiences, latest available fi nancial information and latest applicable credit reputation of the debtor.
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31. Financial instruments and fi nancial risks (Continued)

 Credit risk (Continued)

 The Group’s internal credit risk grading categories are as follows:

Category Description Basis of recognising ECL

1 Low credit risk(1) 12-months ECL

2 Non-signifi cant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition and financial asset is
≤ 365 days past due

12-months ECL

3 Significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition(2) or financial asset is
> 365 days past due

Lifetime ECL

4 Evidence indicates that fi nancial asset is 
credit-impaired(3)

Difference between fi nancial asset’s gross 
carrying amount and present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted 
at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate

5 Evidence indicates that the management 
has no reasonable expectations of 
recovering the write off amount(4)

Written off

 Note 1. Low credit risk

 The fi nancial asset is determined to have low credit risk if the fi nancial assets have a low risk of default, the 
counterparty has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash fl ow obligations in the near term and adverse 
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the 
ability of the counterparty to fulfi l its contractual cash fl ow obligations. Generally, this is the case when the 
Group assesses and determines that the debtor has been, is in and is highly likely to be, in the foreseeable 
future and during the (contractual) term of the fi nancial asset, in a fi nancial position that will allow the debtor 
to settle the fi nancial asset as and when it falls due.

 Note 2. Signifi cant increase in credit risk

 In assessing whether the credit risk of the fi nancial asset has increased signifi cantly since initial recognition, 
the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the fi nancial asset as of reporting date with the risk 
of default occurring on the fi nancial asset as of date of initial recognition, and considered reasonable 
and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of signifi cant 
increases in credit risk since initial recognition. In assessing the signifi cance of the change in the risk 
of default, the Group considers both past due (i.e. whether it is more than 365 days past due) and forward 
looking quantitative and qualitative information. Forward looking information includes the assessment of the 
latest performance and fi nancial position of the debtor, adjusted for the Group’s future outlook of the industry 
in which the debtor operates based on independently obtained information (e.g. expert reports, analyst’s 
reports etc) and the most recent news or market talks about the debtor, as applicable. In its assessment, 
the Group will generally, for example, assess whether the deterioration of the fi nancial performance and/
or fi nancial position, adverse change in the economic environment (country and industry in which the 
debtor operates), deterioration of credit risk of the debtor, etc. is in line with its expectation as of the date 
of initial recognition of the fi nancial asset. Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group 
presumes that the credit risk on a fi nancial asset has increased signifi cantly since initial recognition when 
contract payments are >365 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that 
demonstrates otherwise.
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31. Financial instruments and fi nancial risks (Continued)

 Credit risk (Continued)

 Note 3. Credit impaired

 In determining whether fi nancial assets are credit-impaired, the Group assesses whether one or more events 
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash fl ows of the fi nancial asset have occurred. 
Evidence that a fi nancial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:

  Signifi cant fi nancial diffi culty of the debtor;

  Breach of contract, such as a default or being more than 365 days past due;

  It is becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other fi nancial reorganisation; or

  The disappearance of an active market for the fi nancial asset because of fi nancial diffi culties.

 Note 4. Write off

 Generally, the Group writes off, partially or fully, the fi nancial asset when it assesses that there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery of the amount as evidenced by, for example, the debtor’s lack of assets or income 
sources that could generate suffi cient cash fl ows to repay the amounts subjected to the write-off.

 The Group performs ongoing credit evaluation of its counterparties’ fi nancial condition and generally does not 
require collateral.

 The Group and Company do not have any signifi cant credit exposure to any single counterparty or any groups 
of counterparties having similar characteristics.

 With reference to Note 29, the Company provides fi nancial guarantee to a bank in respect of bank facility 
granted to a subsidiary. The date when the Group becomes a committed party to the guarantee is considered 
to be the date of initial recognition for the purpose of assessing the fi nancial asset for impairment. In 
determining whether there has been a signifi cant risk of a default occurring on the drawn-down facilities, the 
Group considered the change in the risk that the specifi ed debtor (i.e. the applicable subsidiaries) will default 
on the contract. The Company assessed that the credit risk relating to the fi nancial guarantees is insignifi cant 
to the Company.

 As at the end of the fi nancial year, there was no signifi cant concentration of credit risk. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each fi nancial asset in the statements of 
fi nancial position.

 Trade receivables (Note 20)

 The Group uses the practical expedient under SFRS(I) 9 in the form of allowance matrix to measure the ECL 
for trade receivables, where the loss allowance is equal to lifetime ECL.

 The ECL for trade receivables are estimated using an allowance matrix by reference to the historical credit 
loss experience of the customers for the last 3 years prior to the respective reporting dates for various 
customer groups that are assessed through the age analysis, adjusted for forward looking factors specifi c to 
the debtors and the economic environment which could affect the ability of the debtors to settle the fi nancial 
assets. In considering the impact of the economic environment on the ECL rates, the Group assesses, for 
example, the gross domestic production growth rates of the country and the growth rates of the major 
industries which its customers operate in.

 Trade receivables are written off when there is evidence to indicate that the customer is in severe fi nancial 
diffi culty such as being under liquidation or bankruptcy and there are no reasonable expectations for 
recovering the outstanding balances.
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31. Financial instruments and fi nancial risks (Continued)

 Credit risk (Continued)

 The loss allowance for trade receivables are determined as follows:

Current

Past due 
for 1 to
30 days

Past due 
for 31 to
60 days

Past due 
for 61 to
90 days

Past due 
for 91 to 
365 days

Past due 
more than 
365 days Total

31 December 2020
Expected credit loss rates ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 100%
Trade receivables (Gross)
 (S$’000) 6,343 2,118 1,450 586 996 193 11,686
Loss allowance (S$’000) * * * * 2 193 195

31 December 2019
Expected credit loss rates 0% 0% 0% 0% 1.0% 37.1%
Trade receivables (Gross)
 (S$’000) 5,751 3,062 1,482 619 874 221 12,009
Loss allowance (S$’000) – – – – 9 82 91

 * Denotes amount less than S$1,000

 ^ Denotes percentage less than 1%

 The movement in the loss allowance during the fi nancial year and the Group’s exposure to credit risk in 
respect of the trade receivables is as follows:

Trade receivables
Internal credit risk grading Note (i) Category 4 Total

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Loss allowance
Balance at 1 January 2019 23 13 36
Financial assets repaid – (2) (2)
Written off recognised – (1) (1)
Impairment loss recognised 58 – 58
Balance at 31 December 2019 81 10 91
Impairment loss recognised 104 – 104
Balance at 31 December 2020 185 10 195

Gross carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 11,999 10 12,009
At 31 December 2020 11,676 10 11,686

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 11,918 – 11,918
At 31 December 2020 11,491 – 11,491

 Note (i) For trade receivables, the Group uses the practical expedient under SFRS(I) 9 in the form of an 
allowance matrix to measure the ECL, where the loss allowance is equal to lifetime ECL.
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31. Financial instruments and fi nancial risks (Continued)

 Credit risk (Continued)

 The age analysis of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired is as 
follows:

Group
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Not past due 6,343 5,751
Past due for 1 to 30 days 2,118 3,062
Past due for 31 to 60 days 1,450 1,482
Past due for 61 to 90 days 586 619
Past due for 91 to 365 days 994 865
Past due for more than 365 days – 139

11,491 11,918

 Other receivables (Note 20)

 As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded loan of S$3,296,000 (2019: S$3,296,000) to an associate, G3, 
which is non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. In their assessment of the ECL relating to the loan 
receivable, it has been assessed that there is a signifi cant increase in credit risk from initial recognition. 
Management assessed the ECL relating to the loan receivable from the associate based on lifetime ECL. The 
Group considered the ability of the associate to settle the loan on a repayable on demand basis, with reference 
to the viability of the fi nancial support provided by its immediate holding company and where the associate 
has obtained confi rmations from its other shareholder not to demand for repayment of their respective 
proportionate shareholders’ loans for a period of 13 months from the date of authorisation for the issuance 
of the fi nancial statements. The Group also considered the profi t or loss forecast of G3 Group during the 
expected recovery period with reference to relevant and reliable forward-looking outlook and information. The 
Group measured and determined the ECL for the loan receivable from its associate to be insignifi cant.

 As at 31 December 2020, the Company recorded other receivables from subsidiaries of S$7,241,000 (31 
December 2019: S$7,442,000) consequent to an extension of advances to the subsidiaries. The Company 
assessed the impairment loss allowance of these amounts on a 12-month ECL basis consequent to their 
assessment and conclusion that these receivables are of low credit risk. In its assessment of the credit risk 
of the subsidiaries, the Company considered amongst other factors, the fi nancial position of the subsidiaries 
as of 31 December 2020, the past fi nancial performance and cash fl ow trends, adjusted for the outlook of the 
industry and economy in which the subsidiaries operate in. Using 12-month ECL, the Company determined 
that the ECL is insignifi cant.

 Market risk

 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and 
equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of fi nancial instruments. The Group’s 
activities expose it primarily to the fi nancial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, equity price 
and interest rates. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures 
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.
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31. Financial instruments and fi nancial risks (Continued)

 Market risk (Continued)

 Foreign currency risk

 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on certain liabilities that are denominated in currency other 
than the functional currency of the Group. As at the reporting date, the Group does not have signifi cant foreign 
currency risk exposure except for fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities denominated in Chinese renminbi.

 The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities 
as at the end of the fi nancial year are as follows:

Group
Assets Liabilities

2020 2019 2020 2019
S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Chinese renminbi (“RMB”) 607 – 607 8

 Sensitivity analysis of Singapore dollar against RMB is not presented as it is not material to the Group.

 Equity price risk

 The Group is exposed to equity risk arising from equity investments classifi ed as at fi nancial assets at FVTPL. 
These securities are quoted in Singapore. To manage the price risk, the Group monitors share price on a daily 
basis.

 If prices for equity securities listed in Singapore change by 5% (2019: Nil) with all variables including tax rate 
being held constant, the effects on equity will be:

Group
Increase/(Decrease)

In Profi t or loss
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Listed in Singapore
- increased by 42 –
- decreased by (42) –

 Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates.

 The Group’s interest rate risk relates to interest-bearing liabilities.

 The Group’s policy is to maintain an effi cient and optimal interest cost structure using a combination of fi xed 
and variable rate debts, and long and short-term borrowings.

 The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the fl oating rate borrowings with fi nancial institutions.
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31. Financial instruments and fi nancial risks (Continued)

 Market risk (Continued)

 Interest rate risk (Continued)

 The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is disclosed in the Notes 17 and 25 to the fi nancial statements, and 
the interest rates are as follows:

Group
2020 2019

Bank loan 2.30% to 6.50% 2.30% to 6.50%
Lease liabilities 4.94% to 6.18% 4.94% to 6.17%

 Interest rate sensitivity analysis

 The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rate risk for interest-
bearing fi nancial liabilities at the end of the fi nancial year. For fl oating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared 
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the fi nancial year was outstanding for the whole 
fi nancial year. The sensitivity analysis assumes an instantaneous 1% (2019: 1%) change in the interest rates 
from the end of the fi nancial year, with all variables held constant.

Group
Increase/Decrease

in Profi t or Loss
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Bank loan 5 5

 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the Group encounters difficulties in meeting its short-term 
obligations. Liquidity risks are managed by matching the payment and receipt cycle.

 The Group’s operations are fi nanced mainly through equity, retained earnings and borrowings. Adequate lines 
of credits are maintained to ensure the necessary liquidity is available when required.

 The repayment terms of the lease liabilities and bank loans are disclosed in Notes 17 and 25 to these fi nancial 
statements respectively.

 The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative fi nancial 
instruments. The table has been drawn up based on contractual undiscounted cash fl ows of fi nancial 
instruments based on the earlier of the contractual date or when the Group is expected to receive or (pay). 
The table includes both interest and principal cash fl ows.
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31. Financial instruments and fi nancial risks (Continued)

 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group
Effective 

interest rate
1 year or

less
2 to

5 years
Over

5 years Total
% S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Undiscounted fi nancial assets
Trade and other receivables – 18,659 – – 18,659
Less: Advances to recruiters and
 suppliers – (626) – – (626)
Less: Deferred cost – (155) – – (155)
Less: Prepayments – (309) – – (309)

17,569 – – 17,569
Cash and cash equivalents 0.30-1.40 27,617 – – 27,617
As at 31 December 2020 45,186 – – 45,186

Trade and other receivables – 17,632 – – 17,632
Less: Advances to recruiters and
 suppliers – (617) – – (617)
Less: Deferred cost – (125) – – (125)
Less: Prepayments – (294) – – (294)

16,596 – – 16,596
Cash and cash equivalents 0.35-1.80 25,651 – – 25,651
As at 31 December 2019 42,247 – – 42,247

Undiscounted fi nancial liabilities
Trade and other payables – 8,205 – – 8,205
Less: Deferred income – (774) – – (774)

7,431 – – 7,431
Lease liabilities 4.94-6.18 1,547 1,165 – 2,712
Bank borrowing 2.30 43 171 506 720
As at 31 December 2020 9,021 1,336 506 10,863

Trade and other payables – 7,261 – – 7,261
Less: Deferred income – (445) – – (445)

6,816 – – 6,816
Lease liabilities 4.94-6.17 1,565 1,780 13 3,358
Bank borrowing 2.30-6.50 43 171 542 756
As at 31 December 2019 8,424 1,951 555 10,930

Total undiscounted net fi nancial
 assets/(liabilities)
- at 31 December 2020 36,165 (1,336) (506) 34,323
- at 31 December 2019 33,823 (1,951) (555) 31,317
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31. Financial instruments and fi nancial risks (Continued)

 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Company
Effective 

interest rate

On demand 
and within

1 year
% S$’000

Undiscounted fi nancial assets
Trade and other receivables – 14,365
Less: Prepayments – (7)

14,358
Cash and cash equivalents 0.38-0.50 16,182
As at 31 December 2020 30,540

Trade and other receivables – 11,316
Less: Prepayments – (6)

11,310
Cash and cash equivalents 1.77-1.80 18,080
As at 31 December 2019 29,390

Undiscounted fi nancial liabilities
Trade and other payables – 547
As at 31 December 2020 547

Trade and other payables – 129
As at 31 December 2019 129

Total undiscounted net fi nancial assets
- at 31 December 2020 29,993
- at 31 December 2019 29,261
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31. Financial instruments and fi nancial risks (Continued)

 Liquidity risk (Continued)

 Financial instruments by category

 The carrying amount of the different categories of fi nancial instruments is as disclosed on the face of the 
statements of fi nancial position and as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000
Financial assets at fair value through profi t
 or loss
Unquoted equity instruments 624 – – –
Quoted equity instruments 1,007 – 1,007 –
Total 1,631 – 1,007 –

Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables 18,659 17,632 14,365 11,316
Less: Advances to recruiters and suppliers (626) (617) – –
Less: Deferred cost (155) (125) – –
Less: Prepayments (309) (294) (7) (6)

17,569 16,596 14,358 11,310
Cash and cash equivalents 27,617 25,651 16,182 18,080
Total 45,186 42,247 30,540 29,390

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 8,205 7,261 547 129
Less: Deferred income (774) (445) – –

7,431 6,816 547 129
Lease liabilities 2,601 3,189 – –
Bank borrowing 592 621 – –
Total 10,624 10,626 547 129

32. Fair value of assets and liabilities

 The fair values of applicable assets and liabilities, are determined and categorised using a fair value hierarchy 
as follows:

 (a) Level 1 - the fair values of assets and liabilities with standard terms and conditions and which trade in 
active markets that the Group can access at the measurement date are determined with reference to 
quoted market prices (unadjusted).

 (b) Level 2 - in the absence of quoted market prices, the fair values of the assets and liabilities are 
determined using the other observable, either directly or indirectly, inputs such as quoted prices for 
similar assets/liabilities in active markets or included within Level 1, quoted prices for identical or 
similar assets/liabilities in non-active markets.

 (c) Level 3 - in the absence of quoted market prices included within Level 1 and observable inputs 
included within Level 2, the fair values of the remaining assets and liabilities are determined in 
accordance with generally accepted pricing models.
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32. Fair value of assets and liabilities (Continued)

 Fair value measurements that use inputs of different hierarchy levels are categorised in its entirety in the 
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is signifi cant to the entire measurement.

 The table below analyses the Group’s assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring 
basis in the statement of fi nancial position after initial recognition.

Group
Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$’000 $’000 $’000

2020
Recurring fair value measurements
Assets
Financial assets:
Financial assets at FVTPL
- Unquoted equity instruments 15 – – 624
- Quoted equity instruments 15 1,007 – –
Financial assets as at 31 December 1,007 – 624

 Except as disclosed in the respective notes, the carrying amounts of the current fi nancial assets and fi nancial 
liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, lease liabilities and bank 
borrowing and the above fi nancial assets, approximate their respective fair values.

 Level 3

 Unquoted equity instruments

 For unquoted equity instruments, the valuation technique has been described in Note 15.

33. Capital management policies and objectives

 The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern 
while maximising the return to stakeholders through optimisation of debt and equity balance except where 
decisions are made to exit businesses or close companies.

 The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which includes the borrowing disclosed in Note 25 and 
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued capital, retained earnings and reserves as 
disclosed in Notes 22, 23 and statements of changes in equity.

 The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on a regularly basis. As part of this review, 
management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Upon review, 
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends to shareholders, issue 
new shares and share buy-backs. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2019.

 Management monitors capital based on a gearing ratio of less than one. The gearing ratio is calculated as 
net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total liabilities (excluding income tax payable and 
deferred tax liabilities as shown in the statements of fi nancial position), less cash and cash equivalents. Total 
capital is calculated as total equity as shown in the statements of fi nancial position, plus net debt.
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33. Capital management policies and objectives (Continued)

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Total liabilities 12,191 11,717 547 129
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (27,617) (25,651) (16,182) (18,080)
Net debt (15,426) (13,934) (15,635) (17,951)
Total equity 47,718 44,165 42,488 40,720
Total capital 32,292 30,231 26,853 22,769

Gearing ratio N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M.

 * N.M.: Not meaningful

 The Group and the Company are not subjected to any externally imposed capital requirements during the 
fi nancial years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

34. Segment information

 For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services, 
and has three reportable segments as follows:

 (a) Employment Services Business segment – the provision of one-stop shop services for the sourcing, 
employment and training of FDWs to households, as well as sourcing and employment of foreign 
workers to, amongst others, corporate and organisations.

 (b) Building Management Services Business segment – the provision of integrated building facility 
management services including property consultancy, property and facilities management services, 
property valuation, investment sales, cleaning and stewarding, waste management, landscape, pest 
control and fumigation services to, amongst others, hospitals, hotels, schools, residential, commercial 
and industrial properties.

 (c) Security Services Business segment – the provision of manpower and technology for security solutions 
and services to, amongst others, commercial, industrial and residential properties, as well as remote 
surveillance and security consultancy services such as crisis management.

 Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable 
operating segments.

 Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making 
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based 
on operating profi t or loss which in certain respects, as explained in the table below, is measured differently 
from operating profi t or loss in the fi nancial statements. Group fi nancing (including fi nance expenses) and 
income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

 Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions 
with third parties.

 The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described 
in Note 2.23.
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34. Segment information (Continued)

 Information about reportable segments

Group

Employment 
Services 
Business

Building 
Management 

Services 
Business

Security 
Services 
Business Unallocated Total

S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

2020
External sales 5,592 30,681 20,118 – 56,391
- Service income 5,550 30,527 19,613 – 55,690
- Sales of goods 42 154 505 – 701
Cost of sales 3,008 23,501 17,009 – 43,518
Interest income – 9 6 230 245
Interest expense 27 82 31 – 140
Dividend income – – – 12 12
Amortisation 10 269 – – 279
Depreciation 424 1,336 454 – 2,214
Loss allowance for receivables (trade) – 104 – – 104
Bad debts written-off – 15 – – 15
Reportable segment profi t before income tax (14) 2,837 2,022 106 4,951

Share of losses from equity-accounted for
 associates 98 – – – 98
Reportable segment assets 2,641 26,264 14,010 17,203 60,118
Interest in associates 396 – – – 396
Reportable segment liabilities 2,079 6,324 4,111 (114) 12,400
Capital expenditures 182 529 83 – 794

2019
External sales 13,154 37,472 20,318 – 70,944
- Service income 13,154 37,236 19,735 – 70,125
- Sales of goods – 236 583 – 819
Cost of sales 7,569 29,041 17,273 – 53,883
Interest income – 15 7 332 354
Interest expense 6 74 61 – 141
Amortisation 11 585 – – 596
Depreciation 428 990 390 – 1,808
Loss allowance for receivables (trade) – 58 – – 58
Reversal of loss allowance for receivables
 (trade) – 2 – – 2
Bad debts written-off – 14 – – 14
Reportable segment profi t before income tax 191 318 273 (220) 562

Share of losses from equity-accounted for
 associates 20 78 – – 98
Reportable segment assets 3,620 22,080 12,465 18,114 56,279
Interest in an associate 494 – – – 494
Reportable segment liabilities 3,146 5,376 3,538 54 12,114
Capital expenditures 37 566 222 – 825
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34. Segment information (Continued)

 Geographical information

 The Group operates in one principal geographical area being Singapore except for Employment Services 
business in Japan through Fullcast (Note 14).

 The Group’s revenue and non-current assets information based on the geographical location of customers 
and assets respectively are in Singapore, with no signifi cant concentration of particular customers.

35. Dividends

Group and Company
2020 2019

S$’000 S$’000

Declared during the fi nancial year:

Dividends on ordinary shares
Interim tax-exempt dividend for 2020: S$0.0059 (2019: S$Nil) per share 1,483 –
Final tax-exempt dividend for 2019: S$Nil (2018: S$0.0015) per share – 377

1,483 377

Dividends were settled as follows:

Cash paid during the fi nancial year
Interim tax-exempt dividend in respect of the fi nancial year ended:
31 December 2020 1,483 –

1,483 –
Final tax-exempt dividend in respect of the fi nancial year ended:
31 December 2018 – 377
Total dividends settled during the fi nancial year 1,483 377

36. Subsequent event after reporting date

 (i) On 8 January 2021, the Group disposed 15% issued and paid-up share capital of AST to AST’s directors, 
who are independent and unrelated third parties to the Company for a total cash consideration of 
S$30,000. Following the completion of the disposal, AST will become an 85%-owned subsidiary of 
AGF and an indirect 85%-owned subsidiary of the Company. This would enable them to take up an 
ownership role in AST and ensure their aligned interest and commitment to AST’s strategic direction, 
business growth and product developments.

 (ii) On 5 January 2021 and 12 January 2021, the Company acquired 10,000 and 69,000 of its own shares 
respectively through purchases on SGX. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was S$8,396 and 
has been deducted from shareholders’ equity.

 (iii) On 14 January 2021, the cash consideration of RMB3 million (equivalent to S$612,000) was received by 
ZWHY and the investment was completed. The details of the investment is in Note 15(b).
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36. Subsequent event after reporting date (Continued)

 (iv) On 15 January 2021, the Group has acquired 45% of total issued and paid-up share capital of Eazable 
Pte. Ltd. representing 135,000 ordinary shares for a total cash consideration of S$180,000 through 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Advancer Global Security Pte. Ltd.. This would allow the 
Group to further strengthen its service offerings and augment a unique selling proposition for the 
Group’s services, giving the Group a competitive advantage in the facility management sector. At the 
reporting date, the Group has yet to perform purchase price allocation exercise for the acquisition.

 (v) On 1 February 2021, the Group has entered into a share transfer agreement with an independent and 
unrelated third party to dispose off its 10% total equity interest held in the registered capital of BSTFM 
through a 76% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company, NGPC for a total cash consideration of 
RMB60,000 (equivalent to S$12,144). Following the completion of the disposal, NGPC will cease to hold 
the 10% equity interest in registered capital of BSTFM. The disposal will allow NGPC to recover partial 
investment in BSTFM, which has been dormant since year 2016 and suffered losses in recent years. No 
gain or loss on disposal of fi nancial assets held at FVTPL will be recognised.

 (vi) On 1 February 2021, the Group has entered into a sales and purchase agreement with independent 
and unrelated third parties to acquire 100% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of PropNex 
Property Management Consultants Pte. Ltd. (“PPMC”) through a 76% indirectly owned subsidiary of the 
Company, NGPC with initial consideration amounting to S$814,400 upon completion of the transfer of 
shares. A further consideration of up to S$203,600 shall be paid by NGPC on the date falling 12 months 
after the completion date subject to certain adjustments as agreed in sales and purchase agreement. 
This acquisition aimed to achieve synergies between PPMC and Group’s current property valuation, 
property management and property agency services. It would provide larger skilled workforce and 
expertise for the Group to tap on and thereby enable it to expand its market share and presence in 
Singapore. The acquisition was completed on 2 February 2021. At the reporting date, the Group has yet 
to perform purchase price allocation exercise for the acquisition.

 (vii) On 1 March 2021, the Group announced fi nal tax-exempt dividend of S$0.0079 per share which is 
payable on 31 May 2021 and subject to shareholders’ approval during Annual General Meeting.

37. Development of COVID-19 outbreak and its corresponding impact on the Group/Company

 COVID-19 outbreak has brought about an unprecedented challenge for many entities, with increased 
uncertainty in the global economy and may have the following accounting implications on the Group:

  Interruption of Employment Service Business, Building Management Services Business and Security 
Services Business activities

  Shortage in supply of FDWs

  Reduction in sales or earnings

 As the situation is still evolving, the full effect of the outbreak is still uncertain and the Group is therefore 
unable to provide a quantitative estimate of the potential impact of this outbreak on the Group. The 
Group continues to monitor and evaluate any possible impact on the Group´s business and will consider 
implementation of various measures to mitigate the effects arising from the COVID-19 situation. Based on 
management’s latest assessment, there is no indicator that the going concern assumption used by the Group 
in preparing the fi nancial statement is inappropriate.
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As at 22 March 2021

Issued and fully paid-up capital (including Treasury Shares) : S$41,919,249
Issued and fully paid-up capital (excluding Treasury Shares) : S$41,678,075
Number of Shares issued (including Treasury Shares) : 252,363,591
Number of Shares issued (excluding Treasury Shares) : 251,185,691
Number and Percentage of Treasury Shares : 1,177,900 or 0.47%
Number and Percentage of Subsidiary Holdings : 0 or 0%
Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares
Voting Rights : One vote per share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 22 MARCH 2021

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS
NO. OF

SHAREHOLDERS %
NO. OF

SHARES %

1  -  99 7 1.46 230 0.00
100  -  1,000 19 3.98 11,944 0.00
1,001  -  10,000 187 39.12 1,161,745 0.46
10,001  -  1,000,000 250 52.30 22,271,935 8.87
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 15 3.14 227,739,837 90.67
TOTAL 478 100.00 251,185,691 100.00

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 22 MARCH 2021

NO. NAME SHARES %

1 UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED 70,221,522 27.96
2 CHIN SWEE SIEW @ CHEN YIN SIEW 38,062,126 15.15
3 CHIN MUI HIONG 37,573,963 14.96
4 CHIN MEI YANG 30,931,018 12.31
5 ONG ENG TIANG 19,985,436 7.96
6 CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 12,593,000 5.01
7 TEO SAU KEONG 6,623,376 2.64
8 KEK YEW LENG @ KEK BOON LEONG 2,141,164 0.85
9 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 1,712,515 0.68
10 CHIN YIN YEE STANLEY 1,608,100 0.64
11 ANG BOON HOW 1,491,400 0.59
12 THE KONGZI CULTURE FUND LTD 1,214,078 0.48
13 LIM CHER KHIANG 1,209,939 0.48
14 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 1,206,000 0.48
15 SING CHEE NGEE 1,166,200 0.46
16 JO NAERDE BERG 870,000 0.35
17 HUI HIU FAI 827,100 0.33
18 CHAN HOCK LYE 746,400 0.30
19 JAMES ALVIN LOW YIEW HOCK 691,106 0.28
20 CHUA TAI WEE (CAI DAWEI) 675,000 0.27

TOTAL 231,549,443 92.18
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
As at 22 March 2021

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 22 MARCH 2021 AS SHOWN IN THE REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL 
SHAREHOLDERS

Substantial Shareholder
Direct Interest Deemed Interest

No. of Shares %(1) No. of Shares %(1)

FULLCAST HOLDINGS CO., LTD.(2) 65,000,000 25.88 – –
HIRANO ASSOCIATES CO., LTD.(2) – – 65,000,000 25.88
TAKEHITO HIRANO(2) – – 65,000,000 25.88
CHIN SWEE SIEW @ CHEN YIN SIEW 38,062,126 15.15 – –
CHIN MUI HIONG 37,573,963 14.96 – –
CHIN MEI YANG 30,931,018 12.31 – –
ONG ENG TIANG 19,985,436 7.96 – –
MOHAMED ABDUL JALEEL S/O MUTHUMARICAR 

SHAIK MOHAMED(3) 1,502,500 0.60 12,500,000 4.98

Notes:

(1) The shareholdings percentage are calculated based on 251,185,691 issued shares of the Company, excluding treasury shares. 

(2) Takehito Hirano and his family hold 100% ordinary shares in Hirano Associates Co., Ltd. (of which Takehito Hirano himself holds 
18.04% ordinary shares). In addition, Takehito Hirano is a director and the chairman of Fullcast Holdings Co., Ltd.. Hirano Associates 
Co., Ltd. holds 37.39% ordinary shares in Fullcast Holdings Co., Ltd., which in turn holds 25.88% ordinary shares of Advancer Global 
Limited (excluding treasury shares). Hence, Takehito Hirano and Hirano Associates Co., Ltd. are deemed interested in the 65,000,000 
shares held by Fullcast Holdings Co., Ltd. in the Company by virtue of Section 7 of the Companies Act.

(3) Mr. Mohamed Abdul Jaleel S/O Muthumaricar Shaik Mohamed is deemed interested in the 12,500,000 shares held by MES Group 
Holdings Pte. Ltd. in the share capital of the Company through his 100% interest held in MES Group Holdings Pte. Ltd.. The shares 
of the Company held by MES Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. are held through CIMB Securities (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.. Mr. Mohamed Abdul 
Jaleel S/O Muthumaricar Shaik Mohamed also holds 1,502,500 shares through Philip Securities Pte. Ltd.. 

SHAREHOLDINGS HELD IN THE HANDS OF PUBLIC

Based on the information provided and to the best knowledge of the Directors, approximately 15.67 % of the issued 
ordinary shares in the capital of the Company are held in the hands of the public as at 22 March 2021.  Rule 723 of 
the Listing Manual (Section B: Rules of Catalist) of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited has therefore 
been complied with.  
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Advancer Global Limited (the “Company”) will be 
convened and held by way of electronic means on Thursday, 29 April 2021 at 3.00 p.m. to transact the following 
businesses:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Statement and the Audited Financial Statements for 
the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.

(Resolution 1) 

2. To declare a fi nal one-tier tax exempt dividend of 0.79 Singapore cent per ordinary share 
for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020. (FY2019: Nil)

(Resolution 2)

3. To re-elect Mr. Chin Mui Hiong who is retiring pursuant to Regulation 117 of the 
Company’s Constitution, as Director of the Company. [See Explanatory Note (i)]

(Resolution 3) 

4. To re-elect Mr. Yau Thiam Hwa who is retiring pursuant to Regulation 117 of the 
Company’s Constitution, as Director of the Company. [See Explanatory Note (ii)]

(Resolution 4)

5. To note the retirement of Mr. Vincent Leow who is retiring pursuant to Regulation 117 of 
the Company’s Constitution, as Director of the Company. 

Mr. Vincent Leow will not seek for re-election and will retire as Director of the Company 
on 29 April 2021 at the close of the Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Vincent 
Leow will relinquish his position as the Chairman of Nominating Committee and a 
member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

6. To approve the payment of S$145,000 as Directors’ fees for the fi nancial year ending 
31 December 2021, payable quarterly in arrears. (FY2020: S$166,792.35)

(Resolution 5) 

7. To re-appoint Mazars LLP as auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to 
fi x their remuneration. 

(Resolution 6) 

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following resolutions, with or without amendments, 
as Ordinary Resolutions:-

8. Authority to allot and issue shares and convertible securities (Resolution 7) 

“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore (the 
“Companies Act”), the Constitution and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual Section B: Rules 
of Catalist (the “Catalist Rules”) of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited 
(“SGX-ST”), authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to:

(a) (i) allot and issue shares in the capital of the Company (the “Shares”) whether 
by way of rights, bonus or otherwise; and/or

 (ii) make or grant offers, agreements, or options (collectively, “Instruments”) 
that might or would require Shares to be issued, including but not limited to 
the creation and issue of (as well as adjustments to) warrants, debentures 
or other instruments convertible into Shares, 

 at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to 
such persons as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fi t; and
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(b) (notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to 
be in force) issue Shares in pursuance of any instruments made or granted by the 
directors while this Resolution was in,

provided that:

(1) the aggregate number of Shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution 
(including Shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted 
pursuant to this Resolution) shall not exceed 100% of the total number of issued 
Shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings, if any) (as calculated 
in accordance with sub-paragraph (2) below) or such other limit as may be 
prescribed by the Catalist Rules as at the date of this Resolution is passed, of 
which the aggregate number of Shares to be issued other than on a pro-rata 
basis to existing shareholders of the Company (including Shares to be issued in 
pursuance of the Instruments, made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) shall 
not exceed 50% of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares 
and subsidiary holdings, if any) (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph 
(2) below) or any such other limit as may be prescribed by the Catalist Rules as at 
the date of this Resolution is passed;

(2) (subject to such manner of calculation and adjustments as may be prescribed by 
the SGX-ST) for the purpose of determining the aggregate number of Shares that 
may be issued under sub-paragraph (1) above, the total number of issued Shares 
(excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings, if any) shall be calculated 
based on the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and 
subsidiary holdings, if any) at the time of the passing of this Resolution, after 
adjusting for:-

 (a) new Shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible 
securities;

 (b) new Shares arising from the exercise of share options or vesting of share 
awards, provided the share options or share awards (as the case may be) 
were granted in compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8 of the Catalist Rules; 
and

 (c) any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of Shares; 

 Adjustments for (a) and (b) above are only to be made in respect of new Shares 
arising from convertible securities, share options or share awards which were 
issued and outstanding or subsisting at the time of the passing of this Resolution;

(3) in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply 
with the provisions of the Catalist Rules for the time being in force (unless such 
compliance has been waived by the SGX-ST), all applicable legal requirements 
under the Companies Act, and otherwise, the Constitution for the time being of the 
Company; and

(4) (unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting) the authority 
conferred by this Resolution shall continue in force until the conclusion of the 
next annual general meeting of the Company or the date by which the next annual 
general meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is the 
earlier. [See Explanatory Note (iii)]
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9. Authority to allot and issue Shares under Advancer Global Limited Scrip Dividend 
Scheme

(Resolution 8) 

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Rule 805 of the Catalist Rules and 
the Constitution of the Company, authority be and is hereby given to the Directors to allot 
and issue from time to time such number of ordinary Shares as may be required to be 
allotted and issued pursuant to Advancer Global Limited Scrip Dividend Scheme.
[See Explanatory Note (iv)]

10. Authority to allot and issue Shares under Advancer Global Employee Share Option 
Scheme 

(Resolution 9) 

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, authority be and is hereby given to 
the Directors to offer and grant options in accordance with the provisions of the Advancer 
Global Employee Share Option Scheme (“Advancer Global ESOS”) and to allot and issue 
or deliver from time to time such number of fully paid-up Shares as may be required to 
be issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted under the Advancer Global ESOS, 
provided always that the aggregate number of Shares to be allotted and issued pursuant 
to the Advancer Global ESOS, when aggregated to the aggregate number of Shares 
issued and issuable or transferred and to be transferred in respect of all options under 
any other share option schemes shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued 
Shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) of the Company from time 
to time. The authority conferred by this Resolution shall, unless revoked or varied by the 
Company in a general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the next annual 
general meeting of the Company, or the date by which the next annual general meeting 
of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier.
[See Explanatory Note (v)]

11. Authority to grant awards, allot and issue Shares under Advancer Global Performance 
Share Plan

(Resolution 10) 

That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors to offer and grant awards in 
accordance with the provisions of the Advancer Global Performance Share Plan 
(“Advancer Global PSP”) and to allot and issue or deliver from time to time such number 
of fully paid-up Shares as may be required to be issued pursuant to the vesting of 
awards under the Advancer Global PSP, provided that the aggregate number of Shares 
to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Advancer Global PSP when aggregated with 
the aggregate number of Shares over which awards are granted under any other share 
schemes shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury 
shares and subsidiary holdings) of the Company from time to time. The authority 
conferred by this Resolution shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company in a general 
meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of 
the Company, or the date by which the next annual general meeting of the Company is 
required by law to be held, whichever is earlier. [See Explanatory Note (vi)]

12. Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Mandate (Resolution 11) 

That:

(a) for the purposes of the Catalist Rules and the Companies Act, the exercise by 
Directors of all the powers of the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire the 
issued ordinary Shares in the capital of the Company not exceeding in aggregate 
the Prescribed Limit (as defi ned herein), at such price(s) as may be determined 
by the Directors from time to time up to the Maximum Price (as defi ned herein), 
whether by way of:
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 (i) on-market purchases, transacted on the SGX-ST through the 
SGX-ST’s trading system or, as the case may be, any other securities 
exchange on which the Shares may, for the time being, be listed (“Market 
Purchase”); and/or

 (ii) off-market purchases (if effected otherwise than on the SGX-ST) in 
accordance with an equal access scheme(s) which shall satisfy all the 
conditions prescribed by the Companies Act, as may be determined 
or formulated by the Directors as they may consider fit (“Off-Market 
Purchase”), 

 and otherwise in accordance with all other laws, regulations and the Catalist 
Rules as may for the time being be applicable, be and is hereby authorised and 
approved generally and unconditionally (the “Share Buy-back Mandate”);

(b) the authority conferred on the Directors pursuant to the Share Buy-back Mandate 
may be exercised by the Directors at any time and from time to time during the 
period commencing from the passing of this Resolution and expiring on the 
earliest of:

 (i) the date on which the next annual general meeting of the Company is held 
or required by the law to be held;

 (ii) the date on which the Share Buy-backs have been carried out to the full 
extent mandated under the Share Buy-back Mandate; or

 (iii) the date on which the authority contained in the Share Buy-back Mandate is 
varied or revoked by Shareholders in a general meeting;

(c) in this Resolution:

 “Prescribed Limit” means 10% of the total number of issued Shares of the 
Company (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) as at the date of 
passing of this Resolution, unless the Company has effected a reduction of its 
share capital in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
at any time during the Relevant Period, in which event the total number of issued 
Shares of the Company shall be taken to be the total number of issued Shares of 
the Company as altered (excluding any treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) 
that may be held by the Company from time to time;

 “Maximum Price” in relation to a Share to be purchased or acquired, means the 
purchase price (excluding brokerage, stamp duties, applicable goods and services 
tax and other related expenses) not exceeding:

 (i) in the case of a Market Purchase, 105% of the Average Closing Price (as 
defi ned herein); and 

 (ii) in the case of an Off-Market Purchase pursuant to an equal access scheme, 
120% of the Average Closing Price, where:

 “Average Closing Price” means the average of the closing market prices of the 
Shares over the last 5 Market Days on which the Shares are transacted on Catalist 
or, as the case may be, such securities exchange on which the Shares are listed or 
quoted, immediately preceding the date of the Market Purchase by the Company 
or, as the case may be, the Offer Date pursuant to the Off-Market Purchase, and 
deemed to be adjusted, in accordance with the Catalist Rules, for any corporate 
action that occurs after the relevant 5 Market Days period;
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 “Market Day” means a day on which the SGX-ST is open for trading in securities; 
and

 “Offer Date” means the date on which the Company makes an offer for a Share 
Buy-back, stating therein the relevant terms of the equal access scheme for 
effecting the Off-Market Purchase; and

 

(d) the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete and do 
all such acts and things (including executing such documents as may be required) 
as they may consider expedient or necessary to give effect to the transactions 
contemplated by this Resolution. [See Explanatory Note (vii)]

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

13. To transact any other business which may properly be transacted at an annual general 
meeting. 

By Order of the Board

Sin Chee Mei and Koo Wei Jia
Company Secretaries

Singapore, 13 April 2021

Explanatory Notes:

(i) Ordinary Resolution 3 – Mr. Chin Mui Hiong will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as an Executive Director. 
Detailed information on Mr. Chin Mui Hiong can be found under the “Board of Directors”, “Corporate Governance Report” and 
“Disclosure of Information on Directors seeking re-election” sections in the Company’s Annual Report. 

(ii) Ordinary Resolution 4 - Mr. Yau Thiam Hwa will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as Independent Director of 
the Company, Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee. He is considered to be independent 
pursuant to Rule 704(7) of the Catalist Rules. Detailed information on Mr. Yau Thiam Hwa can be found under the “Board of 
Directors”, “Corporate Governance Report” and “Disclosure of Information on Directors seeking re-election” sections in the 
Company’s Annual Report.

(iii) Ordinary Resolution 7 – The resolution, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to allot and issue Shares in the 
capital of the Company and/or Instruments (as defined above), up to a number not exceeding, in total, 100% of the total number of 
issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) in the capital of the Company, of which not exceeding 50% of the 
total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) may be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to 
existing shareholders. This authority will, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, expire at the next annual general meeting 
of the Company or by the date by which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is 
earlier.

(iv) Ordinary Resolution 8 – The resolution, if passed, will empower the Directors, to allot and issue ordinary Shares pursuant to the 
Advancer Global Limited Scrip Dividend Scheme (“Scheme”) should the Company decide to apply the Scheme to any dividend 
declared by the Company from the date of this Annual General Meeting until the date of the next annual general meeting of the 
Company.
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(v) Ordinary Resolution 9 – The resolution, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to offer and grant options, and to allot 
and issue new Shares in the capital of the Company, pursuant to the Advancer Global ESOS as may be modifi ed by the Remuneration 
Committee from time to time, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Advancer 
Global ESOS shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued Shares of the Company (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary 
holdings) from time to time.

(vi) Ordinary Resolution 10 – The resolution, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to offer and grant awards, and 
to allot and issue new Shares in the capital of the Company, pursuant to the Advancer Global PSP as may be modifi ed by the 
Remuneration Committee from time to time, provided that the aggregate number of Shares to be allotted and issued pursuant to 
the Advancer Global PSP shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued Shares of the Company (excluding treasury shares and 
subsidiary holdings) from time to time.

(vii) Ordinary Resolution 11 – The resolution, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to make purchases or otherwise 
acquire the Company’s issued Shares from time to time subject to and in accordance with the guidelines set out in the Addendum to 
Shareholders dated 13 April 2021. The authority will expire at the next annual general meeting of the Company or the date by which 
the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier, unless previously revoked or 
waived at a general meeting.

Notes:

1. The Annual General Meeting of the Company (“Meeting” or “AGM”) is being convened, and will be held, by way of 
electronic means pursuant to First Schedule of the COVID-19 (Temporary Measures) (Alternative Arrangements for 
Meetings for Companies, Variable Capital Companies, Business Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) Order 2020. 
Printed copies of this Notice of AGM will not be sent to members of the Company. Instead, this Notice of AGM will be 
sent to members of the Company by electronic means via publication on SGXNET and the Company’ corporate website at 
https://advancer.listedcompany.com/sgx_announcements.html/year/2021. 

2. Alternative arrangements relating to attendance at the Meeting via electronic means (including arrangements by which the Meeting 
can be electronically accessed via live audio-visual webcast), submission of questions in advance of the Meeting, addressing of 
substantial and relevant questions, are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 13 April 2021 (the “Announcement”), which 
has been uploaded together with the Notice of AGM on SGXNET on the same day. The Announcement may also be assessed at 
https://advancer.listedcompany.com/sgx_announcements.html/year/2021. For the avoidance of doubt, the aforesaid section is 
circulated together with and forms part of this Notice of AGM in respect of the Meeting. 

3. Due to the current Covid-19 restriction order in Singapore, members will not be able to attend the AGM in person. Members 
(whether individual or corporate) must appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as his/her/its proxy to attend, speak and vote on 
his/her/its behalf at the Meeting, if such member wishes to exercise his/her/its voting rights at the Meeting. In appointing the 
Chairman of the Meeting as proxy, members of the Company (whether individual or corporate) must give specifi c instructions as to 
voting, or abstentions from voting, in the form of proxy, failing which the appointment will be treated as invalid. 

4. The Chairman of the Meeting, as proxy, need not be a member of the Company. 

5. The instrument appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as a proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority under 
which it is signed (if applicable) or a notarial certifi ed copy thereof, must:

 (i) If submitted by email, be received by the Company’s Share Registrar, In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as 
RHT Corporate Advisory Pte. Ltd.) at shareregistry@incorp.asia; or

 (ii) If submitted by post, be lodged at the  Company’s Share Registrar, In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as 
RHT Corporate Advisory Pte. Ltd.) at 30 Cecil Street, #19-08 Prudential Tower, Singapore 049712,

 In either case, by 3.00 p.m. on 26 April 2021 (being not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for holding the 
Meeting) (or any adjournment thereof) and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

 In view of the current COVID-19 situation and the related safe distancing measures which may make it diffi cult for members of the 
Company to submit completed proxy forms by post, members of the Company are strongly encouraged to submit completed proxy 
forms electronically via email.

 
6. This instrument appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy must be under the hand of the appointor or on his/her attorney 

duly authorised in writing.  Where the instrument appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy is executed by a corporation, 
it must be executed either under its common seal or under the hand of its attorney or duly authorised offi cer, failing which the 
instrument of proxy may be treated as invalid. 

7. For investors who hold Shares in the capital of the Company under Supplementary Retirement Scheme (“SRS Investors”), this proxy 
form is not valid for their use and shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by them. SRS 
Investors who wish to appoint the Chairman of the Meeting to act as their proxy should approach their respective SRS Operators to 
submit their votes at least seven (7) workings days before the Meeting.

138 ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY

By submitting an instrument appointing the Chairman of the meeting to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting and/or any 
adjournment thereof, or (b) submitting details for the registration to observe the proceedings of the AGM via live audio-visual webcast, or 
(c) submitting any question prior to the AGM, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s 
personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its agents) or 
proxy forms appointing the Chairman as proxy of the AGM (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and compilation of 
the attendance lists, proxy lists, minutes and other documents relating to the AGM (including any adjournment thereof), and processing 
of the registration for purpose of granting access to members (or their corporate representatives in the case of members which are legal 
entities) to observe the proceedings of the AGM via live audio-visual webcast and providing any technical assistance where necessary, 
addressing relevant and substantial questions from members received before and/or during the AGM and if necessary, following up with 
the relevant members in relation to such questions and enabling the company to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations 
and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”); Photographic, sound, and/or video recordings of the AGM may be made by the Company 
for record keeping and to ensure the accuracy of the minutes prepared of the AGM. Accordingly, the personal data of the member of the 
Company (such as his/her name, his/her presence at the AGM and any questions he/she may raise or motions he/she propose/second) 
may be recorded by the Company for such purpose.

This notice has been reviewed by the Company’s sponsor, SAC Capital Private Limited (the “Sponsor”). 

This notice has not been examined or approved by the SGX-ST and the SGX-ST assumes no responsibility for the contents of this notice, 
including the correctness of any of the statements or opinions made, or reports contained in this notice. 

The contact person for the Sponsor is Ms. Charmian Lim (Telephone no.: 65-6232 3210) at 1 Robinson Road, #21-00 AIA Tower, 
Singapore 048542.
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ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITED 
(Co. Reg. No. 201602681W)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
PROXY FORM

IMPORTANT: 

1. Due to the current COVID-19 situation in Singapore, members will not be able to 
attend the Annual General Meeting in person. Members (whether individuals or 
corporates) must appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as their proxy to attend, 
speak and vote on their behalf at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) if such 
members wish to exercise their voting rights at the AGM.

2. Alternative arrangements relating to attendance at the AGM via electronic means, 
submission of questions in advance of the Meeting and voting by appointing the 
Chairman of the Meeting as proxy at the AGM, are set out in this Notice of AGM. 

3. Please read the notes to this Proxy Form.

I/We,  (Name),  (NRIC/Passport/Co. Reg. No.) 

of  (Address) 

being a member/members of ADVANCER GLOBAL LIMITED, (the “Company”), hereby appoint the Chairman of the Meeting 
as my/our proxy, to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf, by poll, at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the 
Company to be convened and held by electronic means on Thursday, 29 April 2021 at 3.00 p.m. and at any adjournment 
thereof.
 
I/We direct my/our proxy to vote for or against, or to abstain from voting on the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM as 
indicated hereunder. If no specifi c direction as to voting is given and in the event of any other matter arising at the meeting 
and at any adjournment thereof, the appointment of the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy for that resolution will 
be treated as invalid.

No. Resolutions relating to: For Against Abstain

1. Adoption of Directors’ Statement, Audited Financial Statements for the 
fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020 together with the Auditors’ Report.

2. Declaration of a fi nal one-tier tax exempt dividend of 0.79 Singapore cent 
per ordinary share for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2020.

3. Re-election of Mr. Chin Mui Hiong as Director.

4. Re-election of Mr. Yau Thiam Hwa as Director.

5. Approval of payment of Directors’ fees of S$145,000 for the fi nancial year 
ending 31 December 2021, payable quarterly in arrears.

6. Re-appointment of Mazars LLP as auditors and authority to fix their 
remuneration.

7. Authority to allot and issue shares and convertible securities.

8. Authority to allot and issue shares under Advancer Global Limited Scrip 
Dividend Scheme.

9. Authority to allot and issue shares under Advancer Global Employee Share 
Option Scheme.

10. Authority to grant awards and allot and issue shares under Advancer Global 
Performance Share Plan.

11. Proposed renewal of Share Buy-Back Mandate.

NOTE: All Resolutions put to vote at the AGM shall be decided by way of poll. If you wish the Chairman of the Meeting as your proxy to 
exercise all your votes “For” or “Against” or “Abstain” the relevant resolution, please tick (√) within the box provided.  Alternatively, please 
indicate the number of votes as appropriate. If you mark the abstain box for a particular resolution, you are directing your proxy, who is the 
Chairman of the Meeting, not to vote on that resolution on a poll and your votes will not be counted in computing the required majority on 
a poll.

Dated this  day of  2021

Total Number of Shares in No. of Shares

(a) CDP Register

(b) Register of Members

Signature(s) of Member(s)/and, Common Seal of 
Corporate Member

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF





Notes:

1. This Proxy Form must be read in conjunction with the Company’s announcement dated 13 April 2021. This Proxy Form may be 
accessed at the Company’s website at https://advancer.listedcompany.com/sgx_announcements.html/year/2021 and will also be 
made available on SGXNET. A printed copy of this Proxy Form will not be despatched to members.

2. Please insert the total number of Shares held by you. If you have Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register (as 
defi ned in Section 81SF of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore), you should insert that number of Shares. If 
you have Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert that number of Shares. If you have shares 
entered against your name in the Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should 
insert the aggregate number of shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the 
Register of Members. If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the 
Shares held by you.

3. Due to the current COVID-19 restriction orders in Singapore, members will not be able to attend the AGM in person. A member 
(whether individual or corporate) must appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as his/her/its proxy to attend, speak and vote on 
his/ her/its behalf at the AGM if such member wishes to exercise his/her/its voting rights at the AGM. In appointing the Chairman of 
the Meeting as proxy, a member (whether individual or corporate) must give specifi c instructions as to voting, or abstentions from 
voting, in respect of a resolution in the form of proxy, failing which the appointment of the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy for that 
resolution will be treated as invalid.

4. The Chairman of the Meeting, as proxy, need not be a member of the Company. 

5. The instrument appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as a proxy must be submitted in the following manner:

 (i) If submitted by email, be received by the Company’s Share Registrar, In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as 
RHT Corporate Advisory Pte. Ltd.) at shareregistry@incorp.asia; or

 (ii) If submitted by post, be lodged at the Company’s Share Registrar, In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as 
RHT Corporate Advisory Pte. Ltd.) at 30 Cecil Street, #19-08 Prudential Tower, Singapore 049712,

 In either case, by 3.00 p.m. on 26 April 2021, being not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for holding the 
Meeting (or any adjournment thereof) and in default the instrument of proxy shall not treated as valid.

 In view of the current COVID-19 situation and the related safe distancing measures, members of the Company are strongly 
encouraged to submit completed proxy forms electronically via email. 

5. The instrument appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as a proxy must be under the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly 
authorised in writing.  Where the instrument appointing Chairman of the Meeting as a proxy is executed by a corporation, it must be 
executed either under its seal or under the hand of its attorney or a duly authorised offi cer. Where a proxy form is signed on behalf 
of the appointor by an attorney, the letter or power of attorney or a duly certifi ed copy thereof must be lodged with the proxy form, 
failing which the proxy form may be treated as invalid. The dispensation of the use of common seal pursuant to the Companies Act, 
Chapter 50 of Singapore effective from 30 March 2017 is applicable at this AGM.

 
6. For investors who hold Shares in the capital of the Company under Supplementary Retirement Scheme (“SRS Investors”), this proxy 

form is not valid for their use and shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by them. SRS 
Investors who wish to appoint the Chairman of the Meeting to act as their proxy should approach their respective SRS Operators to 
submit their votes at least seven (7) workings days before the Meeting.

 
7. The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as a proxy which is incomplete, 

improperly completed, illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the 
appointer specifi ed in the instrument appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as a proxy. In addition, in the case of shares entered 
in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as a proxy lodged if the 
member being the appointer, is not shown to have shares entered against his name in the Deposit Register as at 72 hours before the 
time appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting, as certifi ed by the Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company. 

PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY

By submitting an instrument appointing the Chairman of the meeting as a proxy to vote at the Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof, 
a member of the Company accepts and agrees to the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 
13 April 2021.
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